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DEFINITIONS

BE

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RARERN  BXEREEIN

“Advisory Committee”

g
X
il
23

|
p=111%
BY

“Articles of Association”
[HHEEIR4RA ]

“Audit Committee”
[BZEEg]

“Board”

[E%3)

“CG Code”

[EEREARTA

“Chairman”

[EEEK]

“Company” or
“Landsea Green Life”

[ARRAE K EARFARE LR ]

“connected person(s)”

[EEAL]

“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ R A R

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ESG”
[ESG]

“GFA”
[ZEEmAE]

THAZRAEBNATEE

a committee appointed by the Board comprising Mr. Tian, Ms. Zhou Qin and Mr. Wu
Xu, with the power and authority to administer and distribute Shares under the Share
Award Scheme

HELE  AHPREIRRBELEXNNEZTRZENEZE S AERNLEERE
W& tn B2 @y AT 81 B IR LA K 5 B AR fn

il

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RATRBBERMB - T ZEF]

the audit committee of the Board
EEREREEE

the board of Directors
EER

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) of the
Listing Rules
AR EECT (LR AMER ) FrEi 2 ER~FR

the chairman of the Board

EERMNESE

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1965)

B EERBARDE  RASHSTMAZONBRAR - BB BTN B
RETER L (AR AR5 - 1965)

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB BRI TRE

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmRRIE T RE

director(s) of the Company

ARBIE=R

environmental, social and governance
RE - g kER

gross floor area
EEmE
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“Group”
BT

“HKFRSS’
[E BB HREEA]

“HKICPA”
[(EAEGMAE]

HKS’
5t

“Hong Kong”
[ &% ]

“Landsea Green Management”

[BAFFar 25 IR ]

“Landsea Group”

[BAEF & E ]

“Listing”

[ b7

“Listing Date”
[ ETH

“Listing Rules’

[ EmARA

“Model Code”

(1R %57 Al

“Mr. Tian”

[AE]

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZN/NSIDSENii ) NC]

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BB RE LR

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BRGNS

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEEEET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEABFRITTHR

Landsea Green Management Limited , a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 106)
AFZEERARALNGR - REMER ETHRQR] (RHRE - 106)

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BAFF&E IR {7 B R A 7)), a joint stock company established
in the PRC with limited liability on 24 December 2001 which is controlled as to 50.0%
by Mr. Tian

BREEBROAERAR  RZ2ZE—F+_A-+HAEFBERINBRGERAR -
FH 5% 4 15 11 50.0%

the listing of the Shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange
PR A0 A B S P AR £ 7

8 July 2021, being the date of the Listing
T —F+ANRA - BIEWHEH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B AZ P78 % L AR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) of the Listing Rules
FRBIMTEEC3 (LRI AMER ) & E B ITAESETERRRHNRLESTA

Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a controlling shareholder of
the Company
HIELAE ARRIEER  IERITESHRITRARE

BRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH 7



DEFINITIONS

BE

“Mr. Tian Associates”

[AEEHEA

“Nanjing Property Management

(ERYEEE]

“Nomination Committee”

[RBZBE]

“PRC”
[ E]

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[#FrINEZ B g

“Reorganisation”

[E4]

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
[ 5 R E EpI]

“Shareholder(s)”
[

“Share(s)”
[ 15 ]

“Share Award Scheme”

[ R 7 B2 Bt &1

“Share Option Scheme’

IR in HAtE =t &)

Mr. Tian and his associates (excluding Landsea Green Management and its subsidiaries
but including its joint ventures and associates)
AEEMEBEA (TEERFGEERERANBAREBRESERERBELSE)

Nanjing Landsea Property Management Co., Ltd. (B REAMEETIEBR A F), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

HRAFMETEERAR  RPRKIMERAR  ARAINEEZEMNB AT

the nomination committee of the Board

E=ZRREELZES

the People’s Republic of China
hEARLM

the prospectus of the Company dated 25 June 2021
AARBBHAZE_—F A THAEHMNBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EERFMEZES

the reorganisation of the Group in preparation of the Listing as disclosed in the
Prospectus
OB ERMESE  AEEREE LLTm#ETCER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PEDEEEBARK

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
EBENESTI BES MAERD

holder(s) of the Shares
LSUESTEDN

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AR TR FREEOC.01ETTH B

the share award scheme adopted by the Company on 18 March 2022
ARFRZBZZFZ A\ BFRAN R 8

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on 15
June 2021
RRARR T —FRNA T+ BB GREBET R E A BT 2
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“sq.m.”

[ 75K

“Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
“The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”
[ B SX P 1 3 [ 2 B Bk 32 P | =%

[BREBER 5]
“U.s.”
ESEW

“Year” or “Year of 2023” or
“FY2023” or “Period”

(FEIS ==/
R =WF S HIM]

wgp”
[%)]

square meters

F K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEMERSMAR AR

the United States of America

ENBERE

the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_ZE-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

per cent.
Bkt

BRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023

E_—FRERERE

HONORS OR AWARDS OF THE COMPANY IN 2023: 2023 A TR E o 3818 :

10

On 24 February, Landsea Green Life (01965.HK) was selected as
one of the Top 30 New Shares of the 100 Hong Kong Listed
Companies at the Hong Kong Listed Companies Development
Summit Forum and the TOP 100 Hong Kong Listed Companies
Awards Ceremony.

On 15 March, LeJuCaiJing (£2 /% B/ £8) released the “2023 China
Property Service Satisfaction Blue Book”, which announced the
“Top 100 Satisfaction Enterprises” of property service and the
“Top 10 Enterprises in various provinces and cities”,
Landsea Green Life won the “China Property Service Satisfaction
TOP39, and five cities, namely Beijing, Hangzhou, Hefei,
Shanghai and Wuxi, were selected as the Top 10 Satisfaction
Cities.

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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On 26 April, the Press Conference on Research Results of Top
100 Property Management Service Providers in China and the
16th China Top 100 Property Management Companies Forum
was held in Beijing. China Index Academy released the List of
Top 100 Excellent Property Management Companies in China in
2023, and Landsea Green Life was awarded five honors, namely
“2023 China Top 100 Property Management Companies
TOP23”, “2023 China Leading Internet Community
Operations Companies”, “2023 China Top 100 Leading
Property Management Companies of Satisfaction”, “2023
China Leading Property Management Companies of
Market-oriented Operations” and “2023 China Featured
Property Management Companies of Social
Responsibility”.

4A268  FEMEREAREETFITKR
EMEEF T ANETENERGAREERR

AL R ER 1T o I FU BT 30 (2023 F
BEMERGEREFEELE)  AFKRECE
EDRIRIE2028FFEIMERBEREE
TOP23]  [2023HF B EMMHBEELFEE DL
¥ (2023 EIEBRBEERARMREELL
¥ (2023 EMEERTETHRCEZEE
S| (2023 ERFEYERBEFELS
EERLEIRIERE -
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023
—ECCFAELHEKE

12

On 10 May, CPM Think Tank and China Academy of Engineering
Physics released the “2023 Evaluation and Research Report on
Listed Property Enterprises of China Property Management
Companies”, and Landsea Green Life (01965.HK) won the “2023
Best ESG Practice of Chinese Listed Property Enterprises”.

On 30 May, the China Real Estate and Property Listed
Companies Evaluation Results Conference, guided by the China
Real Estate Association (F B = &= % 1% &), hosted by
Shanghai E House Real Estate Research Institute (8 5 & = it
EMFEPr), and co-hosted by Beijing China Real Estate Research
Association Technical Services Co., Ltd. (1t I & &= ff 175 52 i R
7% B2 A 7)and CRIC Group, was held in Hong Kong. At the
conference, CRIC Property Management (7 3% ¥ &) released
the research results of China’s listed property management
companies in 2023, and Landsea Green Life (01965.HK) was
honored the “ESG Sustainable Development TOP10”.

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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ESG

{ZEESGITHR

On 4 July, the 2023 ESG and Sustainable Development Summit
Forum for Listed Enterprises hosted by EH Consulting and EH
Property Research ({8 8 #1fff) was successfully concluded.
During the period, the 2023 White Paper on Sustainable
Development of China’s Property Management Industry and the
2023 Research Results on the Comprehensive Strength of Listed
Real Estate Enterprises were released. Landsea Green Life won
three awards, namely “2023 China Listed Property Enterprise
TOP21”, “2023 Top Ten China Listed Property Enterprise
with Most Development Features (Green Building
Services)”’ and “EH ESG Rating-BBB".

TR4B BEBEE EBYHEH
2023ESGE LMW Al FEERE S ERIEK
EE - IR EREEM2023 R EYE T
BEZRREANEZER2023 LT LEREE D
TR -AFHEEEERE20230E LT
WELETOP21] - [2023F B LT EREA
REBETRSZERERE]  [BEBESGHF
#—BBB | = #%18 -
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023
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On 4 August, the “Long Slope, Thick Snow, Persistent is the Key
— 2023 China’s Top 100 Property Management Companies in
Comprehensive Strength Summit” sponsored by EH Consulting
and EH Property Research (15 % #15f). At the conference, the
“2023 Top 100 Research Report on Comprehensive Strength of
China’s Property Management Companies” was released, and
Landsea Green Life won the “2023 China’s Listed Property
Management Companies Comprehensive Strength TOP23”
together with four honors, namely “2023 China’s Property
Customer Satisfaction Model Enterprise”, “2023 China’s
Leading Property Management Companies of Service
Quality” and “2023 China’s Leading Property Management
Companies of Regional Competitiveness in Eastern China”.
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On 10 August, at the Seminar for the Research and Development
of the 2023 Top 100 Enterprises in Comprehensive Strength of
Property Management in China held by CPM Think Tank and
China Academy of Engineering Physics, Landsea Green Life was
awarded five major honors, namely “23rd in the 2023 Top 100
Enterprises in Comprehensive Strength of Property
Management in China”, “2023 Top 100 Enterprises in High-
quality Service Quality of Property Management in China”,
“2023 Top 20 Property Management Enterprises in Eastern
China”, “2023 Top 100 Enterprises in Brand Influence of
Property Management in China” and “2023 Leading
Enterprises in Market-oriented Development of Property
Management in China”.

8A10R - EEHPWEE - R £ 5
2023 FE LA B N BRI ENREM
L PSS EEELE 2023 E ¥R
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023
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On 6 December, Landsea Green Life (01965) won the “Best
ESG Information Disclosure” award at the 8th Zhitong
Financial Capital Market Annual Conference and Listed
Company Award Ceremony.

On 15 December, at the “2023 Real Estate Industry High-Quality
Development Summit and Annual Conference of Super Product
and Service Power” held by EH Consulting and EH Property
Research ({2 & ¥ 1), Landsea Green Life won six awards,
including “2023 China Real Estate Enterprise Super Service
Power TOP18”, “2023 China Residential Property Service
Benchmark Project”, “2023 China Public Property Service
Benchmark Project”, “2023 China Property Service Leading
Enterprise in Eastern China Service Power”, “2023 China
Property Service Nanjing High-quality Enterprise” and “2023
Wuxi Special High-quality Project’.
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On 15 December, Landsea Green Life won the “Best ESG
Practice Award for Listed Companies” at the 2023 Hong
Kong International Finance Forum and the Annual Selection of
Hong Kong International ESG List held by the Hong Kong
International ESG Alliance, which was approved by the organizing
committee and evaluated by experts.

On 21 December, the “2023 East China Regional Brand Strategy
Innovation Annual Conference” sponsored by CRIC Property
Management (% X% %) &) and China Property Management
Research Institute was held in Shanghai. At the annual meeting,
CRIC released the “2023 Research Report on Property Brand
and Excellent Service Capability in Eastern China”, and Landsea
Green Life won four honors, namely “2023 Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises in Eastern China (Top 20 Enterprises)”,
“2023 TOP 30 Property Service Capability in Jiangsu
Province”, “2023 Top 10 Property Service Enterprises in
Nanjing” and “2023 Leading Residential Property Service
Enterprises in China”.
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023

E_—FRERERE

MAJOR EVENTS IN 2023:

18

In January, in the research of building a low-carbon community
and zero-waste work, Landsea Green Life successfully applied
for three invention patents, namely “An Environmental-friendly
Degradable Green Land Soil Modification Agent and Use
Method”, “A Comprehensive Management and Evaluation
Method of Water Resources in Residential Communities Based
on loT Technology” and “A Smart Community Carbon Emission
Warning Management Method”, to continuously innovate and
lead green development.

On 12 January, on the occasion of the 18th anniversary of
Landsea Green Life, the “excellent case database” was officially
launched. Among more than 200 service projects in the past, 35
excellent cases were selected, with innovation as the driving
force and service as the basis, and from the perspective of brand
marketing, to review the excellent cases in the past and create
the ultimate service benchmark.

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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On 31 January, the “Landsea Friends (5% /& 2 4t)” mini-program
platform used to link Landsea’s community residents was
officially launched. Landsea residents can sign up, share, interact
and communicate, check-in and initiate community creation
activities through online tools. Through a series of interesting
methods, we effectively improved the participation of customer
community construction, promoted the co-construction of
neighbors, fully exert the customers’ spirit of “owner”, realized
the cooperation between neighbors and property management,
together creating a humanistic community.

On 20 March, Landsea Green Life (1965.HK) announced that the
acquisition of the asset-light operation business of Landsea
Apartment has been approved at the shareholders’ meeting. While
achieving scale growth, sub-sectors and products and services
will be further integrated, developed and deepened, promoting the
development of the apartment long-term lease industry towards a
more professional direction. After the injection of the mature core
capabilities of long-term rental apartment operation and
management of Landsea Apartment, the business system of
Landsea Green Life will be more diversified and abundant.

.'-'.'n\\\'l\\!“|l"|lfl’
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2023
TECFREGEEE

)RR | RN

1965.HE

2022

BARBRBEE
- HEREAERS

e On 28 April, Landsea Green Life released the 2022 ESG report. o 4 A28H » BAFH&R @ £ R L2022 F 2

With the mission of “leading life services and creating a better ESGHE + LA[SIBEERY + HAIZELF AR
future”, Landsea Green Life continued to explore the path of BfEt  BEBERRIFELENIRFMZE -
carbon neutrality for sustainable communities, promoted the B30 60] R EIZ - R AMEEESE
“30 ® 60” dual carbon goals, and contributed Landsea’s strength FHEEBRBAFIE

to the realization of green and beautiful life.

e On 9 June, Anhui Xindi Ruiyi Property, a wholly-owned subsidiary ¢ 6 A9HBIfFs 4 EL2EF R a — BEH

of Landsea Green Life, successfully signed contracts for the M BEMERNENGLERENEZXE -
Sunshine Power Bozhou Industrial Park (F5 ¢ &R = M & % Mg REMERE - WAENEEXEEZ
and the Siwei Energy Bozhou Industrial Park (PO 4 858 = M| & HEAFIIM B BES —RRIEMNIE
% &). The signing of the Double Industrial Park represents that FEE AFTMHEERT)BEEEYE
Landsea Xindi Ruiyi has successfully entered the second large- fREBEEHHNERELMMEFLE  BHEE
scale non-residential business. Landsea Xindi Ruiyi will give full BHARBIRTEZRE NEZENEN
play to its resource advantages and brand influence in the field of mmEXE BREHFTHE -

property services, and work with partners to build a well-known
high-end industrial park in Anhui Province and even the whole
country, so as to achieve a win-win situation for both parties.

.. 1 A h
" ghd
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On 8 July, Landsea Green Life earnestly fulfilled its social
responsibilities. On the occasion of the second anniversary of its
listing, Landsea Green Life launched 188 community care centres
in 34 cities, 156 communities and 32 cases across the country.
The community care centres provides 13 caring services such as
drinking water, convenient medical kit, hand sanitizers and basic
first aid in 365 days and 24 hours a day, linking the Landsea
Friends and the needy in the society with a healthy and equal
emotional connection, and providing 24-hour protection. With
empathy as a link, we delivers pure love without impurities.
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CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2023 is an extraordinary year, with the end of three years of anti-
epidemic work and the return of operations to the pre-epidemic track.
Meanwhile, the real estate industry experienced a turning point after
more than ten years of growth, and the market sentiment became
gloomy. The Group adheres to the corporate motto of “down-to-earth
and long-term ambition”, never stops moving forward and makes every
step count.

UPHOLDING CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH

STRONG DETERMINATION

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of corporate development.
Enhancing service quality and customer satisfaction is our top priority.
In 2023, Landsea Green Life adheres to its original aspiration, attaches
great importance to service quality and continues to be customer-
oriented. We ranked the 18th among the“EH Consulting ® EH Property
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Research 2023 Super Service Power of Property Management
Companies in the PRC” (18 5 /& o (28 ¥ 5 2023 7 B ¥ 10 8 4% AR
7% 77) and ranked the 23rd among the “2023 Top 100 Property
Management Companies in the PRC” (2023 TR B 3 RS B 8 (b 3).
During the Period, two times of 36.5° star-rating assessment to
community housekeepers have been completed. Accordingly, more
housekeepers can provide more sophisticated services to our
customers in a more professional manner. The star-rating certification
system has been more mature so as to inspire front-line staffs to offer
more proactive services and consider themselves as a companion and
friend of the residents. The Company will continue to enhance
organizational and structural construction in the future to provide high-
quality services in a more stable and compassionate manner.

As a responsible corporation, not only do we take good care of our
customers, but we also take good care of and give back to our
community. Year of 2023 is the second full year since the listing of

o mm 1y
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CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT
ER®E

Landsea Green Life, and is the 18th anniversary of the Company. The
Company expresses its heartfelt gratitude to its community and its
customers. We set up 188 community care centres in 34 cities, 156
communities and 32 sales sites across the country which provide 13
service items including drinking water, medical kit and basic first-aid for
24 hours a day, 365 days a year to bring our kindness and sincerity to
the community and our customers.

LAYING THE FOUNDATION OF DIVERSIFIED
SERVICES WITH COURAGE

In 2023, the Company emphasized satisfying the needs of the
customers for diversified life services products. Our community
resources business as a whole developed steadily. Our commodity
retail and house renovation business segments achieved a
breakthrough in terms of the number of completed transactions and
revenue as compared with the prior year. Our customer assets services
achieved a turnaround from loss to profit and were developing in a
more stable manner. Among which, we completed more than 75,000
commodity retail transactions with the target achievement rate being
110%. Services and products of Landsea Green Life are not limited to
commercial life services. Cultivation and promotion of community
cultural products is of equal importance to us. As a community cultural
brand, Landsea Friends (#F & 2 #1) adheres to the core concept of
“creating a warm community” and facilitates friendly interaction
between residents by innovative measures to build up a community of
friends with warmth and kindness. During the Year of 2023, we
completed 25 internal training sessions for more than 2,600
participants for deepening the understanding on “warm community”
among our staff and to make it the service motto of our staff. 848
activities were held successfully, of which 168 were organized by
residents on their own. The online APP was launched with 30,400
registered users to create and enjoy harmonious community life
together.

Meanwhile, the Company has proactively enhanced the diversity of its
business operations and acquired the light-asset business of Landsea
Apartment in March 2023 to enlarge its young customer base as well
as its leasing business. In the long term, the future will be promising.
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NAVIGATING THE PATH TO SUSTAINABILITY
WITH ADHERENCE TO THE BOTTOM LINE

Since 2019, the Company has undergone rapid expansion in terms of
the scale of marketization. As of 2023, after going through the process
of trial and error in the market for five years, we developed a market
development theory that is applicable to Landsea Green Life amid
fierce competition. Meanwhile, we raised the standard for ourselves,
being “quality development”. We watch closely to management scale
and more importantly, the bottom line for our operations. Accordingly,
in 2023, Landsea Green Life follows the path of quality development
and actively expands the non-residential business. Furthermore, we
insist on the protection of the rights of our customers and shareholders
by orderly settlement and withdrawal from a number of long-term loss-
making projects to uphold customer service quality. In addition, value-
added services to non-property owners accounted for a smaller
percentage of around 11% of our total revenue in 2023, so that the
impact of the real estate industry on the Company can be substantially
and swiftly reduced and we can navigate the path to sustainability.

ENHANCING COST REDUCTION AND
OPERATING EFFICIENCY WITH WELL-
FORMULATED PLANS

In 2023, the Company adopted various measures to enhance
operational efficiency. In terms of team building, we emphasized being
result-oriented, valued operational profit and reformulated incentives.
We enhanced our overall project development and raised our standard
of talent acquisition to improve the quality of our staff. In terms of
financial management, we adopted a more strict method of financial
measurement which emphasized analysis and management of real-
time collection rate and cash flow. We only spent what we earned and
ensured stable and healthy business operations. We can succeed only
if we make every step count. With the implementation of various
measures, there was a significant decrease in the human resources
costs and sales costs substantially incurred (excluding merger and
acquisition costs) during the Year of 20283.

Looking back, the light boat slipped past ranges and ranges of
mountains. Moving forward, Landsea Green Life will embrace
unpretentiousness, stay steadfast, and achieve long-lasting success.
We firmly believe that extraordinary results always come from and
consist of ordinary work.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGTN

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tian Ming (H 88), born on 24 January 1961, was appointed as our
Director on 1 December 2020 and re-designated as our non-executive
Director and chairman of the Board on 15 January 2021. Mr. Tian is
primarily responsible for providing guidance on the overall development
of our Group. Mr. Tian is the founder of Landsea Group, which
Landsea Green Life Service was a part of until the Reorganisation. Mr.
Tian has more than 20 years of extensive experience in the fields of
competitive strategy, operation management and property investment
and development. In December 2001, Mr. Tian founded Landsea
Group and has since served as its director and chief executive officer,
and began serving as the chairman of the board and an executive
director of Landsea Green Management, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1086), since July 2013. Since July 2013,
Mr. Tian has also served as the chairman of Shanghai Landleaf
Architecture Technology Co., Ltd., the shares of which were listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code:
870998) from February 2017 to March 2020. Furthermore, Mr. Tian
has served as the chairman of the board and a director of Landsea
Homes Corporation, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market
(stock code: “LSEA”) since January 2021. He has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Chervon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2285), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 8
December 2021.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in Chinese language and literature from
Nanjing Amateur Liberal Arts University (f 7 3 #4 X &L K 2) in the
PRC in December 1988, completed a master’s course programme in
administrative management from Nanjing University (5 5 A 2) in the
PRC in August 1997, and obtained an executive master’s of business
administration (EMBA) from China Europe International Business
School (“CEIBS”) (R BB FR T &) in the PRC. In October 2019,
Mr. Tian was awarded the “EY Entrepreneur of the Year” (Z Kk 1> % R
#%) by Ernst & Young, recognising his entrepreneurial achievements in
the field of property development. Mr. Tian has also served on various
committees, such as the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (£
Bt 5 EE 7€) and the CEIBS Alumni Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHOU Qin (/& &), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 January 2021. Ms. Zhou is currently our deputy
chairman and is primarily responsible for formulating strategies for the
overall development of our Group, and supervising our corporate
governance and business operations. Ms. Zhou has nearly 26 years of
experience in business development, investment and operation
management in real estate. Ms. Zhou joined Landsea Group in July
2002 and served in various managerial positions until June 2012
including as regional general manager in Shanghai. From September
2012 to March 2013, Ms. Zhou has assumed positions at Landsea
Group including the assistant to chairman, the head of the secretariat
and the head of the supervision office and the general manager of
Shanghai Landleaf Architecture Technology Co., Ltd listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code:
870998) from February 2017 to March 2020, where she was
responsible for the business operations of Landsea Group in the U.S.
She used to be the general manager of Shanghai Tangzheng
Programming Construction Design Co., Ltd (“Architecture Design
Institute”), an indirect subsidiary of Landsea Group Company
established to engage in construction design services. Ms. Zhou has
served as the vice president of Landsea Group Company since March
2014, where she was a non-executive director and an executive
director of Landsea Green Management, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from January 2015 to August 2016
and from August 2016 to June 2020 respectively. Since January 2021,
Ms. Zhou has served as a director of Landsea Homes Corporation, a
company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market (stock code: “LSEA”).

Ms. Zhou obtained a diploma in decoration engineering from Yangzhou
University (#1X228) in the PRC in July 1993, a master’s of business
administration from Nanjing University (F8 52 X £) in the PRC in June
2006, and an executive master’s of business administration (EMBA)
from CEIBS in the PRC in October 2011. Ms. Zhou was certified as a
senior engineer by the Evaluation Committee of Advanced Professional
Technical Qualifications for Construction Engineering in Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province (L@ &R M ER I RS REXRMERTEE
B ), and was awarded the Green Ecological Building Gold Award —
Elite Residential Technology Awards (4% 2 £ RE 5 & 42 — 1BIn{E=E
L2317 4%) by the Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC (77
#= AR HEME R E 1 E0), to recognise her achievements in
innovating with and applying green technologies.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGTN

Mr. WU Xu (= /B), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
on 15 January 2021. Mr. Wu is currently our chief executive officer and
is primarily responsible for overseeing our daily operations, community
value-added services, customer relations management, formulating our
business strategies and development plans and implementing our
Board decisions. Mr. Wu joined our Group in May 2017 and currently
serves as general manager of Nanjing Property Management, where he
is responsible for overall management.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wu was the superintendent of Xiandai
Huagai Design Ltd. (E/ BB REZZEXRAAERRER QA a
subsidiary of Arcplus Group PLC (ZEERZEE B (7D B R A 7)), the
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600629) between October 2010 and April 2014. Mr. Wu was the
general manager of Architecture Design Institute and the asset
operation department of companies under Landsea Group between
August 2016 and May 2017. Since May 2017, Mr. Wu has been the
general manager of Landsea Green Life Service.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
the University of Shanghai for Science and Technology in the PRC in
July 2001. Mr. Wu was awarded the Shanghai engineering planning
and design professional qualification (/&M L2 R IR 2|8 st B 2
5 M EE T ). Mr. Wu has also served on various industry
committees, such as the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
City Renewal and Existing Building Remodeling Branch (2 B 5= b 2 7
EWMMEFMIAE REWED ) as well as the Commercial and
Tourism Real Estate Professional Committee of the China Real Estate
Association (FEIFEHEH S mEMRENESELZE ).
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Mr. LIU Chao (2I#8), aged 43, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 15 January 2021. Mr. Liu has been redesignated from the
position of the chief financial officer of the Company to the positions of
the vice president in charge of operations and the board secretary of
the Company with effect from 14 September 2022. Mr. Liu remains as
an executive Director, the company secretary and the authorised
representative of Company. Mr. Liu joined Landsea Green Life in
September 2019. Prior to his joining, Mr. Liu served successively as an
audit associate and a senior audit associate at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Dalian Branch. Since
June 2011, Mr. Liu has been the senior financial manager of Dalian
Haichang Corporation Development Co.,Ltd. (Ki#E/FE P EEEFR
‘A A]), the senior financial manager of Haichang (China) Co.,Ltd. (/8 &
(P E)& R A &) and the financial manager at Haichang Holdings
(Hong Kong) Ltd. (& B () B R 2 R]) as well as the company
secretary at Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. (& & /8% A B 3% %
B R~ A, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2255). Since December 2018, Mr. Liu has served as the board
secretary of Landsea Green Management, where he is responsible for
overseeing corporate governance, compliance with Listing Rules
requirements and investor relations.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in business management from
Liaoning University in the PRC in July 2003, a master’'s degree in
banking and finance from Monash University in Australia in November
2006 and a master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) with the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November 2020.
Mr. Liu is taking the Doctor of Business Administration (DBA)
Programme at the City University of Hong Kong currently. Mr. Liu is a
certified member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) (H Izt it & 5T AT 1% & ), an associate member of
the Association of International Accountants (BB € 5tAI A €), a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and an affiliated person of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEGTN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Yong, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company since 8 June 2022. He completed his correspondence
study of Finance in Peking University in July 2003. Mr. Liu Yong served
as human resources manager of Anhui Guoxun Education Technology
Co., Ltd. (R W EM#HE R KA R & E R F) from 2001 to 2005,
recruitment and training manager of Anhui Xinhua Group (& # &
) from 2005 to 2006. Since 2006, he has worked in Anhui Jindadi
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (Z & KXt i& E1EE AR 2 7)) (‘Anhui
Jindadi”), in which he was the human resources manager from 2006
to 2014; the general manager assistant and human resources
administration director from 2014 to 2015, the deputy general manager
and is also in charge of Anhui Xindi Ruiyi Property Services Co., Ltd.
(R R 8 B W 2 AR A BR 2 &) (“Xindi Ruiyi”) from 2015 to 2021.
He has been the real estate sector general manager of Anhui Jindadi
since 2021 and is in charge of Xindi Ruiyi. Xindi Ruiyi is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lu Mei (& 18), aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 15 June 2021. Ms. Lu is responsible for providing
independent judgement on strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, internal control and corporate governance. Ms. Lu
served in various government positions, including the department of
administration and national defence of the National Audit Office of the
PRC (B R &E:+Z77 B E ) &) and the Ministry of Commerce of the
PRC (# R 1% 30) after graduation from university. Since January
1999, she has assumed positions such as the vice president of China
Jinmao Holdings Group Limited (FE & XK EB AR R ), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0817) and the
head of administrative affairs of GP Capital Co., Ltd. (& HE £I8EE
SEEBRAQR).

Ms. Lu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in economics from the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (_t /& B1 4 KX £) in the PRC in
July1984 and an executive master’s of business administration (EMBA)
from CEIBS in the PRC in September 2005. Ms. Lu has also applied
her expertise to advise social organisations and academic institutions,
serving as institution supervisor at the Shanghai Lequn Social Work
Service (L /B2 81 T IR 4L), as well as senior consultant at the
Chinese Academy of Financial Inclusion at the Renmin University of
China (FEIARKRZHEEH S B HATRR).
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Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen (f& 2 X ), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 June 2021. Dr. Chen is
responsible for providing independent judgement on strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, internal control and corporate
governance.

Dr. Chen has successively served as professor, chair professor of
accounting and the head of the Department of Accounting of the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology (& & £H% A £2) since July
1996, when he served as assistant professor and associate professor
of the department of accounting at Rutgers University in the U.S. Dr.
Chen is now an independent non-executive director of Chanjet
Information Technology Company Limited (%% 312 & £ i1 i% 1) A IR
A 7)) (stock code: 1588), where he is primarily responsible for
providing independent opinion and judgement to the board, particularly
with regard to the financial aspects of the company.

Dr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration with
a major in accountancy from National Taiwan University (B 37 £ /&
£ in June 1976, a master’'s degree in accounting science from the
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the U.S. in May 1983 and
a doctoral degree of philosophy in accountancy from the University of
lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the U.S. in May 1985. Dr. Chen was
certified as a Chartered Accountant by the Ministry of Examination of
the Republic of China (# % K B £ 3Z &[). Dr. Chen was a member of
the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Council and became a member of the Market Misconduct
Tribunal in April 2019.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Xin, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 12 April 2022. She received a master’s
degree in applied linguistics from the Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Sciences in July 1986, and a master’s degree in business
administration (MBA) from The California State University in June 1991.
She obtained a doctor’s degree in business administration from The
University of California in June 1995. Ms. Xin has been a professor of
management since September 2001 at China Europe International
Business School. She served as an assistant professor of management
at The University of Southern California from September 1995 to
August 1999. She served as an associate professor of management at
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from September
1999 to August 2001, and as a professor of management in the
Faculty of IMD, Lausanne, Switzerland from August 2006 to December
2009. Ms. Xin was awarded the Chinese Most Cited Researchers by
Elsevier, a global provider of scientific, technical, and medical
information, for consecutive years from 2014 till now. Ms. Xin is
currently an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited: Fosun Tourism Group (stock code: 1992), Euro Eyes
International Eye Clinic Limited (stock code: 1846) and Kingdee
International Software Group Company Limited (stock code: 268).
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LIU Chao (#2I#8), aged 43, was appointed as the company
secretary and the authorised representative of Company on 15 January
2021. The biographical details of Mr. Liu are set out under this section
headed“Biographies of Directors — Executive Directors”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. DENG Peng (58 §5), aged 46, is our vice president. Mr. Deng is
primarily responsible for overseeing the operation and management of
our property management business. Mr. Deng joined Landsea Green
Life in October 2007 and has held various positions successively such
as the project manager, the internal training manager, the branch
manager of southern Jiangsu area, the general manager of the Zhejiang
area branch, the general manager of the Shenzhen area premises and
the assistant to general manager and deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Deng graduated from the Central Party School of the Communist
Party of China (FF ¥ ff R E ) in the PRC in December 2004 with his
professional in law, and the University of International Business and
Economics (¥/9MEEE 5K E) in the PRC in January 2020 through
completing online courses. Mr. Deng was certified as a National
Property Management Enterprise Manager (2 B 4 2 & 18 > 2 4¢38)
by MOHURD. Mr. Deng was certified as a Property Management
Project Excellence Evaluation Expert Committee Member (#7111 7 ¥ 5
ERRBAERETEREKE
Management Association (#1412 & 2 % €). Mr. Deng was
recognised as one of the “2019 Top 100 Property Management Talent
in China” (2019 R B ¥ % 4L 38 A B 3%) by a joint committee including
representatives from the China Property Management Association (A

=) by the Hangzhou Property

YIEE IR K ), recognising his achievements in the field of property
management.
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Ms. Xue Yuan (E£ ), aged 41, has been redesignated from the
position of the chief human resources officer to the position of the vice
president and chief financial officer of the Company with effect from 14
September 2022. Ms. Xue joined Landsea Green Life in August 2021.

Prior to her joining, Ms. Xue has held various positions under Landsea
Group since February 2004, including the chief financial officer, the
assistant to general manager and the director of human resources and
administration of the Shanghai branch of Landsea Green Management,
the deputy general manager and the finance director of long-term
rental apartment division of Landsea Group and the person in charge
of the support platform for our innovative business.

Ms. Xue obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in management from Nanjing
Audit University in June 2004, with the accountant certification of
intermediate level from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

Ms. Wang Lin (E %), aged 46, is appointed as the assistant to
president in November 2021. Ms. Wang is mainly responsible for our
innovative businesses such as home economics services and elderly
care services in the community.

Ms. Wang joined Landsea Group in November 2001 and has held
various positions during this period such as the deputy director of the
President’s Office of Landsea Group, the director of human resources,
the assistant to general manager of our administration centre for
human resources, the general manager of human resources and
administration and the deputy general manager of the Nanjing Real
Estate Company under Landsea Group. Ms. Wang has been the
deputy general manager of the elderly care service division of Landsea
Group since May 2015.

Ms. Wang graduated from Southeast University majoring in
construction engineering in July 1998 and has obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology.
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Mr. He Xin ({a]£%), aged 51, is appointed as the assistant to president
in November 2021. Mr. He is mainly responsible for innovative
businesses such as housing (745 ) and post-investment management
of joint ventures.

Previously, Mr. He has worked in Jiangsu Provincial Communications
Research Institute Co., Ltd. (T2 & X BRI SRR D R A R)
as the head of audit and Nanjing Central Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. as
the general manager. Mr. He joined Landsea Group in December 2014
and has served as the director of the supervision and audit office of
Landsea Group and the chief supervision and audit officer of Landsea
Group.

He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in financial management from East
China University of Political Science and Law in July 2015. Mr. He is
also certified as a certified public accountant by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an accountant by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security and the Ministry of Finance and an
auditor by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security and
the National Audit Office of the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a growing life service provider well-established in the
Yangtze River Delta that provides diversified types of property
management services and value-added services. According to China
Index Academy, we ranked the 23rd among the “2023 Top 100
Property Management Companies in the PRC” (2023 Ff B ¥ 2 R %5 &
58 1 %) in terms of overall strength, considering factors including
respective property management scale, operational performance,
service quality and growth potential.

As of 31 December 2023, our property management services covered
37 cities, including 24 cities in the Yangtze River Delta and 13 other
cities in the PRC. As of 31 December 2023, our GFA under
management amounted to approximately 30.06 million sg.m. with a
total of 203 managed properties, including 171 residential properties,
24 commercial and office buildings and involving 8 urban services,
serving over 250,000 households.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group provides diversified property management services to
property owners and residents, mainly serving residential properties
with an expanding portfolio of non-residential properties. We also offer
value-added services to non-property owners, primarily property
developers, to meet their various needs for property management.
With an aim to providing quality property management services, we
also offer a range of community value-added services to our property
owners and residents of our managed residential properties. Our
community value-added services complement our property
management services and contribute to enhancing the satisfaction and
loyalty of property owners and residents. We also provide apartment
operation and management services to meet the needs of customers
in the full cycle of leasing life and derivative scenarios, which mainly
include white-collar apartments, youth apartments, light luxury serviced
apartments, staff accommodation, co-working space, ancillary
commercial, hotels and bed and breakfasts, and other products and
services, with an aim to enrich the Company’s diversified income and
help to enhance brand value and customer satisfaction.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Group provides property developers, property owners and
residents with a range of property management services, primarily
including security, cleaning, gardening and landscaping, car parking
management, and daily repair and maintenance services. Our project
portfolio included residential properties, commercial and office buildings
and urban service projects, among which, the projects of commercial
and office buildings cover office buildings and rental apartments,
whereas urban service projects cover urban civil services and the
services of public facilities, industrial parks and branches of bank.

The Group continued to put profound efforts in the Yangtze River Delta
by adhering to multi-channel expansion for sustainable scale growth.
The Group will increase our types of project management business,
actively entering the undeveloped regional markets. As of 31 December
2023, the contracted GFA of the Group was approximately 37.46
million sg.m. For the Year of 2023, the new contracted GFA was
approximately 3.03 million sg.m., of which, in terms of customer type,
the new contracted GFA from independent third parties was
approximately 2.84 million sg.m., accounting for approximately 93.7%
of the total new contracted areas for 2023. In terms of property type,
the new contracted GFA from our projects of commercial and office
buildings was approximately 330,000 sg.m., accounting for
approximately 10.9% of the total new contracted areas for the year.
The Group is determined to safeguard the interest of its customers and
shareholders as well as maintaining customer service quality. As an
operation arrangement, we have decisively retreated from long-term
loss making projects which are incoherent with the service quality of
the Group to maintain our quality of development.
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The breakdown of our revenue from property management services by
property types and GFA under management of the Group were as

AEEZYEELE DY EEERBFKARE
EREEABPHALT ¢

follows:
2023 2022

gk “Z-F Year-on-year
GFA under % of GFA under % of growth rate
management Revenue revenue  management Revenue revenue of revenue
g #E AR
BEAR A WAL BEAE WA WAL ERE

Tenthousand  Ten thousand Tenthousand  Ten thousand

sq.m. RMB sg.m. RMB

BYnk  ARWER EThx  ARBERL
Residential properties FENF 2,859.8 61,410.2 87.3% 2,768.9 53,660.7 86.3% 14.4%
Commercial and office buildings BERETE 146.2 6,959.2 9.9% 149.1 6,695.5 10.8% 3.9%
Urban services SRR NATER 1,945.8 2.8% N/ATER 1,822.4 2.9% 6.8%
Total CH) 3,006.0 70,315.2 100.0% 29180 62,178.6 100.0% 13.0%

During the Period, the Group actively and strategically developed the
non-residential market, and focused on projects such as public
buildings, industrial parks and commercial buildings. As of 31
December 2023, the GFA under management of commercial and office
buildings was approximately 1.46 million sqg.m.. The revenue of
commercial and office buildings increased by approximately 3.9% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2022.

Urban services represent a new breakthrough in the property industry.
In 2023, the Company successfully won the bid for the Siwei Energy
Industrial Park Project* (V8 4 8¢ )R Z= % & 18 B ), Guoyang Yangguang
Power Industrial Park Project* (55 EIRE X E TE B ) and Hefei
Special Police Detachment Project” (& B2 3 B8 B ), representing
a key breakthrough for the Group in the field of urban services, which
may contribute to the construction of urban life service concept of the
Group and to the further enrichment of our business portfolio. Total
revenue from urban service projects under management reached
approximately RMB19.46 million in 2023, representing an increase of
approximately 6.8% as compared with the corresponding period in
2022.

*  For identification purposes only
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The breakdown of our revenue from property management services by AEBEZEFBENE DN YESERBS KA M FE
customer types and GFA under management of the Group were as & EEEERAHT :

follows:

2023 2022
gk “E-F Year-on-year
GFA under % of GFA under % of growth rate
management Revenue revenue  management Revenue revenue of revenue
g #E AR
BEER WA WAEL BEER KA LN ERE
Tenthousand  Ten thousand Tenthousand  Ten thousand
sq.m. RMB sg.m. RMB
BYnk  ARWER BTk ARBERL
Properties developed by Landsea P e ERRENNE
Green Management 832.1 21,702.3 30.8% 826.3 22,3855 36.0% -3.1%
Properties developed by joint ventures B B EBABEA ]
and associates of Landsea RENNE
Green Management 461.3 9,964.6 14.2% 4224 9330.3 15.0% 6.8%
Properties receiving project e ERRENNE
management services from
Landsea Green Management 198.2 3,929.3 5.6% 189.3 3,898.9 6.3% 0.8%
Properties developed by BUE=HREMNNE
independent third-party 1,514.4 34,719.0 49.4% 1,480.0 26,563.9 42.7% 30.7%
Total CH) 3,006.0 70,315.2 100.0% 29180 62,178.6 100.0% 13.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The growth of results performance of the Group for 2023 was also
benefitted from expansion and acquisition by fairly balancing both
quality and scale. The Group has 21 new projects through bidding in
the market with a new contracted GFA of approximately 3.03 million

sg.m. and a new GFA under management of approximately 3.30 million

sg.m. during the year:

Year-on-year

AEB_FT_-"FHNREERTSarBEEE
ER RN R R YR - B ERTISRIR
FIBIAE 2118 - AEMIBRAVBEMITA03EF
oK FIBEEREERASB0EF K

Year-on-year

growth growth
(addition (Addition
in 2023 in 2023
Additional compared Addition compared
contracts with that of under with that of
signed 2022) management 2022)
ELER RELEER
(ZB==#% (ZB==#
2EHBLE 2B
—EB-—F —EB-—F
MIBER 2EHIE) MEEE 2EHIE)
Residential properties (et
Number of projects 1B E EEk 10 Decreased by 31 20 Decreased by 25
A 31 & A 25 fE
GFA (in ten thousand sq.m.) BERE (BYHK) 270 —741% 297 —71.6%
Number of households = 15,889 -80.2% 16,595 -78.2%
Commercial and office buildings HAEREFE
Number of projects TH B {EE 8  Increased by 1 8  Decreased by 1
30 1 {E B 1 {E
GFA (in ten thousand sq.m.) BERE (BYHK) 33 —25.0% 33 -54.8%
Urban services 35, AR 7%
Number of projects 18 B &k 3 Decreased by 9 3 Decreased by 9

B9 18

B9 18
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Adhering to a flexible and open market-oriented cooperative attitude,
the Group has reached strategic cooperation with state-owned
government enterprises and regional property developers and
established partner companies to handle the property management
services arising from projects developed and delivered by and from the
projects to be developed by the companies by leveraging mature
service system and management standardization strength of Landsea
Green Life. As of 2023, a total of 16 partner companies have been
established, among which seven were consolidated into the Group,
namely (1) Landsea Property Management (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd.* (BB :5 8
YIS IR (1R ) B BR A A)); (2) Anju Landsea Property Management
Service (Yangzhou) Co.,Ltd.* (% /& BAFF M R (B M) BR A F]); )
Jiangsu Landsea Sea Lake Property Management Co.,Ltd.* (JT #xBf &5
Y8 4 % A BR A 7]); (4) Sichuan Langshang Property Management
Co., Ltd.* (10| AR M % E IR B BR A Al), (5) Xi'an Langze Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (Fa % BRIZ Y X EIE AR A F]); (6) Anhui Xindi
Zhihui City Technology Services Co., Ltd.* ; and (7) Suzhou Langyiju
Commercial Management Service Co., Ltd.* (& /N EARE 5 & 2 B 12 R
% A BR A &) while the accounts of the remaining nine were not
consolidated into that of the Group where only investment gains would
be shared, namely (1) Chengdu Fulang Property Services Co., Ltd.* (X
#84@ BA ¥ 2 R A BR 2 7]); (2) Huizhou Landsea Dezhou Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (BMAFEMIEEEBR A A); ()
Zhejiang Langheng Property Management Co., Ltd.* G LEAE ¥ % &
32 F R A A)); (4) Shanghai Landsea Savills Property Management Co.,
Ltd* (E/BRAE — K FR A& WEEIEFRAQR]); (5) Dongyang
City Investment Landsea Property Service Co., Ltd.* (B F5 T 1% B 5
¥ AR5 A BR A 7]); (6) Suzhou Langtong Green Elevator Service Co.,
Ltd.* (BR /M B mAx & E AR5 B BR A 7]); (7) Suzhou Gaolang Green
Life Services Co., Ltd.*(#x /I & B4k & 4 )& lR75 B PR 2 7)); (8) Nanjing
Lang Yue Property Management Co., Ltd.* (R BB EEIR AR A
A]); and (9) Suzhou Wanling Commercial Asset Management Co.,
Ltd.* (&R N 8 g %5 E B B AR 2 Al). The total number of off-
balance-sheet management projects was 27 with off-balance-sheet
GFA under management amounting to approximately 3.19 million
sg.m. by the end of 2023.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group insisted on the standardization of service quality during
enhancement of service diversification. The Group passed the second
supervision audits on ISO50001 energy management system and
ISO27001 information security management system certifications in
February 2023 successively, ensuring the stable and orderly operation
of the Company’s energy management and information security
management. In June 2023, the Company passed the second
supervision audits for the re-certification of 1SO90001 Quality
Management System, ISO14001 Environmental Management System
and 1ISO45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
which ensure the orderly operation of the Company in the fields of
quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
management. In January and May 2022, the Group passed the
certification of GB/T31950 Corporate Integrity Management System
and SA8000 Corporate Social Responsibility Management System
respectively, which provided systematic support for the standardisation
of corporate integrity management and fulfilment of social responsibility.
With the expansion of scale in property management, the improvement
of branding impact and quality standardization, the average property
management fee per sq.m. per month for 2023 reached approximately
RMB2.06, among which, the overall average property management fee
per sg.m. per month for residential properties amounted to
approximately RMB1.86 while the overall average property
management fee per sq.m. per month for commercial and office
buildings as a whole was approximately RMB6.38.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY
OWNERS

The Group offers value-added services to non-property owners to
address their various needs on property management, including (i)
sales assistance services, which mainly include visitors reception, on-
site cleaning, security, repair and maintenance services to assist
property developers in showcasing and marketing their properties at
the pre-sale stage; (ii) property consultancy services and other pre-
delivery services such as cleaning, inspection, repair and maintenance
services at the pre-delivery stage and to a lesser extent, repair and
maintenances services after delivery; and (iii) property agency services
provided for sales and leases of properties to property developers.
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The following table sets out a breakdown of the revenue of value-
added services to non-property owners by types for Year of 2023:

—ECFERRBEBAE IR T RERBK
= AAA

2023 2022 Year-on-Year
—EBC=F g growth rate of
Revenue % of revenue Revenue % of revenue revenue
WARLE
A AL L WA WAELL BRX

Ten thousand Ten thousand

RMB RMB

ARBETR AREET
Sales assistance services KI5 R1% 4,463.3 42.0% 5,765.9 30.8% -22.6%

Property consultancy YRR

services 1,555.8 14.7% 4,917.7 26.2% -68.4%
Property agency services MR IR 4,599.1 43.3% 8,062.4 43.0% -43.0%
Total At 10,618.2 100.0% 18,746.0 100.0% -43.3%

The Group is engaged in providing perfect “first impression” to
customers by building professional sales assistance services teams. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group provided sales assistance services to
28 sales offices of Landsea Green Management and its partners and
property companies which were independent third parties, representing
a decrease in income from sales assistance services of approximately
22.6% as compared to the corresponding period. The proportion of
the Group’s revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners has been reduced from approximately 21.0% in Year of 2022
to approximately 11.4% in Year of 2023, thereby enhancing the
marketization our property operations and reducing our reliance on the
real estate business.
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The Group provided property agency services to developers to facilitate
the sale of new or remaining properties of developers and meet the
home purchase and car parking space purchase demand of more
property owners. The Group has established a professional sales team
for property agency services assisting community management service
providers in enhancing service quality based on analysis on customers’
needs. As to remaining properties, we have facilitated 18 residential
property transactions, 57 industrial factory transactions, and 193 car
parking space transactions, respectively. During the Year of 2023, the
Group’s revenue from property agency services amounted to
approximately RMB46 million. During the Period, the Group continued
to improve its profitability in the car parking space marketing business
segment by adjusting its operation structure and building up the
capability of its sales team, and carrying out online and offline
marketing. The Group also strived to lay out a broader deployment on
urban areas and provide professional car parking space sales services
to more projects.

COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

The Group offers a wide range of community value-added services in
its residential properties under management to cater for the evolving
needs of its customers and improve their quality of life. The services
primarily consist of (i) home-living services such as household
maintenance, house renovation, housekeeping and cleaning, and new
retail,etc.; (i) public resource management services, which primarily
include the leasing of advertising spots and community space; and (iii)
asset management services for properties which relate to the sales and
leases of properties, car parking spaces and use rights of the car

parking spaces.
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The following table sets out a breakdown of the revenue of community
value-added services by types for the Year of 2023:

—E__FRREBRISNEREZERBEA
BRAD

2023 2022 Year-on-Year
—BC-Z=F —F- growth rate
Revenue % of revenue Revenue % of revenue of revenue
NG
KA W5 WA WAMEE BRE

Ten thousand Ten thousand

RMB RMB

AR¥ER AREET
Home-living services BREERS 4,789.2 55.5% 3,918.3 48.9% 22.2%
Public resource management services AL EREE IR 2,415.8 28.0% 1,999.8 24.9% 20.8%
Asset management services BEEERE 1,426.5 16.5% 2,102.7 26.2% -32.2%
Total CH 8,631.5 100.0% 8,020.8 100.0% 7.5%

Home-living services are provided in terms of household maintenance,
house renovation, housekeeping and cleaning, new retail, etc. Our own
engineering staff provides property owners with convenient, small-
scale and paid home maintenance services at any time. We provide
house renovation services in cooperation with professional decoration
companies to meet the increasing needs of property owners. We
provide property owners with free on-site room measurement, design
and quotation services, so that property owners can save time, effort
and money. In the Year of 2023, the total number of housing renovation
requests was 2,658, and the total number of completed housing
renovation transactions was 897. Meanwhile, we also provide
housekeeping and cleaning services to property owners, including
indoor cleaning, external wall cleaning, carpet cleaning and disinfection
and hourly home services. Our new retail business is also in full swing,
cooperating with high-quality suppliers, and combining online and
offline operations to provide property owners with products of superior
quality, affordable price, rich variety and guaranteed after-sales
services. Property owners can purchase goods they want without
leaving their home by placing orders online for our home delivery
services. This service enhances our interaction with property owners,
allowing us to well understand their needs and providing them with
quality services in a timely manner. In 2023, we recorded an aggregate
86,265 orders for new retail sales, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 35.4% as compared to that of 2022, and the
transaction amount amounted to approximately RMB6.0 million.
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The public resource management services mainly focus on the lease of
both advertisement spots and community space. We lease certain
public areas to third parties on behalf of the property owners for
advertising and other uses, such as advertising space inside and
outside elevators and in public spaces in the community. We determine
the lease price with the lessee, generally taking into account the
advertising theme, target location and lease term and other factors.
Revenue from leasing public areas will be primarily used to fund public
repairs and maintenance, and could also be used to pay for smart
community upgrades. We collect rent on behalf of the property owners
and recognise it as income based on a defined percentage of the rent.

Regarding our asset management services, in 2023, we started 260
transactions for our trading business and 992 transactions for our lease
business with the transaction amount of approximately RMB424
million. We continued to focus on the needs of the customers so as to
get closer to the lives of the property owners. Through long-term and
high-quality services, we will continue to develop the existing market,
broaden the boundaries of life services, and strive to bring more
beautiful life experiences to the property owners’ families.

As always, the Group adheres to the service concept of‘creating a
warm community” and continues to build the customer community
brand of Landsea Friends (5% A 4t). In the Year of 2023, we held 25
internal training sessions for more than 2,600 participants for
deepening the understanding on “warm community” among our staff.
In order to encourage interaction and cooperation between residents
of the community, the online Landsea Friends APP was officially
launched with 30,400 registered users and 368,222 cumulative visits.
Besides, 220 interest groups were established so that all residents can
access the cross-community platform of community collaboration
through the APP to create a harmonious life. 848 activities were held
successfully, of which 168 were organized by residents on their own,
gaining a total of approximately 72,000 customers participating in
various community cultural activities , and therefore realizing the goal of
building a community with online 3-in-1 tool for the “headquarters,
property management services providers and customers”.
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APARTMENT OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

On 16 December 2022, Langhong (Nanjing) Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.* (BAB (A R ) X B E B R A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Nanjing
Langjun Commercial Management Limited* (F R EAER I £ B IE A R
A A]), Huge Wealth Group Limited and Beihai Langrun Commercial
Management Limited* (IL/8BRE X EEF R 2 7)) (“Beihai
Langrun”) to acquire the entire equity interest in Beihai Langrun. Beihai
Langrun and its subsidiaries provide apartment operation and
management services, managing more than approximately 16,000
asset-light entrusted management apartments, covering 13 first-and
second-tier cities. The transaction was completed on 31 March 2023,
and the Group realised revenue of approximately RMB36 million from
apartment operation and management services. Apartment operation
and management services have provided substantial new customer
resources for the property management services of the Group as well
as business opportunities for the community value-added services. The
market penetration rate of the Group has increased due to
geographical overlap, laying the foundation for enriching our operations
in the market.

INFORMATISATION ESTABLISHMENT

The Group continues to promote the digital establishment of project
services and internal operation and management to further improve
customer service experience and corporate operational efficiency. As
of 31 December 2023, our corporate service account covered all
projects under management, and the WeChat accounts of our project
managers and our WeCom (& &R 1 3£) basically achieved full cover of
families, when customer service mini-program was also fully launched.
At present, under further optimisation and upgrading to enhance users’
experience, the functions of property management services including
online payment, repair request, complaint, announcement and inquiry
have been basically realised.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Group’s intelligent inspection of internal equipment and facilities
covers all projects under management, realising platform-based
management from maintenance and repair to warehousing and
settlement. The Group continued to promote and upgrade the
intelligent management system for community visitors and parking, in
which the visitor management system has achieved full project
coverage, and the intelligent car parking management system was
further promoted, covering more than 90% of its own projects.
Meanwhile, in 2023, in order to facilitate the development of value-
added services business, the Group continued to optimise the
operating spot management system, community group purchase
management system, housing rental and sales management system,
home delivery service system and vehicle charging system. Regarding
internal operation and management, in addition to continuously
promoting the construction and optimisation of human resources and
financial sharing system and platform, the Group also initiated the
construction or optimization of income and expenditure management
platform, taxation management platform and payment channel in 2023.
At present, all-in-one income management platform and taxation
management platform have been established and the payment channel
of the Company has been refined to further improve management
efficiency and help achieve refined management.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a fast-growing green life service provider in the full life cycle, the
Company actively promoted environmental, social and governance
work, and formulated a leading and scientific ESG governance strategy
for 2025 with reference to the Building Research Establishment (BRE)
Green Building Operation Standards (BREEAMIn-Use). Meanwhile, the
Company firmly believes that sound and effective ESG governance will
promote the healthy development of our business, and create value for
all stakeholders by integrating ESG strategies with business
development strategies and operational management objectives. The
Company’s ESG governance strategy focuses on three major areas,

» o«

namely “warm and inclusive”, “safe and healthy” and “green and low-
carbon”, and sets corresponding quantitative ESG management goals,
and regularly adjusts management strategies and measures to
contribute to China’s “30 e 60” goal of carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality and the achievement of “sustainable cities and communities”

in the global sustainable development goals (SDGs).
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During the Year, the Company actively carried out a number of ESG-
related management work, such as regularly collecting and analysing
resource use and carbon emission data, carrying out in-depth research
on the construction of green and low-carbon communities, and
continuously providing value-added services that meet multiple
scenarios, so as to promote the achievement of various ESG
management goals in an orderly manner. Specifically, the Company
uses the application information system to regularly collect energy use
and carbon emission data of the headquarters and branches and
subsidiaries, so as to form a carbon emission list and a panorama of
corporate carbon and reduce unnecessary energy consumption by
regularly managing the progress of ESG targets and carrying out
targeted measures. At the same time, the Company and the Institute of
Ecology and Environment of Nanjing University (Lishui) carried out
cooperative research on the theme of “carbon reduction and green
operation and maintenance in communities”, and was committed to
building a new system of community carbon reduction and green
operation and maintenance from the dimensions of carbon emission
management, energy management, water resources management and
waste management. During the Reporting Period, we applied for
patents for 3 new researches, specifically covering an environmentally
friendly soil amendment and use method of degraded green space, a
comprehensive management and assessment method of residential
community water resources based on Internet of Things technology
and a management method of carbon emissions from electricity
consumption in smart community public areas . The Company will
publish the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
as scheduled to disclose more detailed ESG performance and related
information for the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 4.7% from
approximately RMB889 million for the Year of 2022 to approximately
RMB931 million for the Year of 2023, due to (i) the increase in number
of projects and GFA under management of the Group, resulting in
increase in revenue from property management services; (i) the gradual
scope expansion of community value-added services provided by the
Group as a result of our continuous business development; and (i) the
additional revenue from apartment operation and management
services.

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
business line for the periods indicated:

5 %5 (2] 8

W &=
AEEHKREH-_ZTZ_FENHARKESLIE
TLIEMBATREZT_=FENHARKIIE
T EROASBEBEEEEEZEAMBEREN 0
XERRBABRABGE : ((BEEFXBTETE
R AEERHEAOTEEERSHEEREMEN &
(i) FTIE A E L E R ERRIEUAFTE

TREIAMTARAASEBREBEE 5
BR4A :

2023 2022
—EBC=E 2T
RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T % AREFIT %
Property management services Y% EERTE 703,152 75.5 621,786 70.0
Value-added services to FEHE FILE AR
non-property owners 106,182 11.4 187,460 21.0
Community value-added services t (@3B (E AR 86,315 9.2 80,208 9.0
Apartment operation and management NELE N ERRE
services 35,626 3.9 - -
Total 4Bt 931,275 100.0 889,454 100.0

Revenue from property management services increased by
approximately 13.0% from approximately RMB622 million for the Year
of 2022 to approximately RMB703 million for the Year of 2023. Such
increase was primarily due to the increase in number of projects and
GFA under management of the Group.
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Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners decreased
by approximately 43.3% from approximately RMB187 million for the
Year of 2022 to approximately RMB106 million for the Year of 2023.
Such decrease was due to the impact of the fluctuation of the property
market resulting in the decrease in revenue from sales assistance
services , property consulting services and property agency services.

Revenue from community value-added services increased by
approximately 7.5% from approximately RMB80 million for the Year of
2022 to approximately RMB86 million for the Year of 2023. Such
increase was primarily due to the increase in revenue from home-living
services and public resources management services as a result of the
increase in the number of projects and GFA under management of the
Group.

For the Year of 2023, the Group enhanced its business diversity,
therefore the revenue from apartment operation and management
services increased by approximately RMB36 million.

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The Group’s cost of sales and services includes employee benefit
expenses, cleaning costs, security costs, maintenance costs, utilities,
greening and gardening costs, depreciation and others.

The Group’s cost of sales and services increased by approximately
13.7% from approximately RMB691 million for the Year of 2022 to
approximately RMB786 million for the Year of 2023. Such increase was
primarily due to the increase in staff headcount and subcontracting
costs as a result of the expansion of the Group’s business.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit decreased by
approximately 26.8% from approximately RMB198 million for the Year
of 2022 to approximately RMB145 million for the Year of 2023. The
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 22.3% for the Year
of 2022 to approximately 15.6% for the Year of 2023. The decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in staff
costs of property management services; and (i) the decline in the gross
profit margins of sales assistance services, property agency services
and property consultancy services as a result of the cyclical impact of
the property industry.
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OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income mainly represents government grants,
additional VAT deductibles and others. The Group’s other income
decreased from approximately RMB11 million for the Year of 2022 to
approximately RMB5 million for the Year of 2023, primarily due to the
decrease of additional VAT deductibles by 5 percentage points as
compared to the Year of 2022.

SELLING EXPENSES

The Group’s selling expenses mainly represent employee benefit
expenses, business development expenses, travel expenses, office
expenses and others.

The Group’s selling expenses increased by approximately 14.3% from
approximately RMB21 million for the Year of 2022 to approximately
RMB24 million for the Year of 2023, primarily due to the continuous
expansion of the Group’s business.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly represent employee
benefit expenses, professional fees, travel expenses, office expenses
and others.

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
10.8% from approximately RMB102 million for the Year of 2022 to
approximately RMB113 million for the Year of 2023, primarily due to
the continuous expansion of the Group’s business.

FINANCE INCOME — NET
The Group’s net finance income represent various interest expenses
and interest income from bank deposits.

The Group’s net finance income decreased from net income of
approximately RMB2.14 million for the Year of 2022 to net income of
approximately RMB1.37 million for the Year of 2023, primarily due to a
decrease in interest income.
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SHARE OF NET PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES

The Group’s share of net profit of associates decreased from
approximately RMBO.77 million for the Year of 2022 to approximately
RMBO0.29 million for the Year of 20283.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

The Group’s income tax refers to PRC enterprises income tax at a tax
rate of 25% on taxable profits of our subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC and the land appreciation taxes required in accordance with the
relevant tax laws and regulations in the PRC. Some subsidiaries of the
Group are qualified as small and micro businesses and enjoy
preferential tax rate of 5% for the Year of 2023.

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by approximately
366.7% from approximately RMB12 million for the Year of 2022 to
income tax credit of approximately RMB32 million for the Year of 2023,
mainly attributable to the decrease in profit before income tax.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the Year of 2023
decreased by approximately 565.5% from approximately RMB29
million for the Year of 2022 to loss of approximately RMB135 million for
the Year of 2023.

LIQUIDITY, RESERVES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately RMB691 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 23.0% as compared with approximately RMB897 million

as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R D

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, amounted to
approximately RMB333 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 7.0% as compared with approximately RMB358 million
as at 31 December 2022, mainly due to the net cash inflow from
operating activities of approximately RMB120 million, representing an
increase of approximately 122.2% from the net cash inflow of
approximately RMB54 million for the Year of 2022, and the net outflow
from financing activities of approximately RMB3.38 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 27.2% from the net inflow of
approximately RMB4.64 million for 2022, and the net cash outflow
from investing activities of approximately RMB142 million, representing
an increase of approximately 5.2% as compared with the net inflow of
approximately RMB135 million for the Year of 2022. As at 31
December 2023, the Group’s total equity amounted to approximately
RMB265 million, representing a decrease of approximately 33.6% from
approximately RMB399 million as at 31 December 2022. The decrease
was mainly due to the loss for the year.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables primarily consist of receivables for our
property management services and community value-added services
from our customers.

The trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2023 were
approximately RMB215 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 30.4% from approximately RMB309 million as at 31
December 2022. Such decrease was primarily due to the increase in
bad debts of trade receivables as a result of the cyclical impact of the

property industry.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s prepayments, deposits and
other receivables amounted to approximately RMB138 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.5% as compared with
approximately RMB228 million as at 31 December 2022. It was
primarily due to a decrease in the deposit for the exclusive sales
agency business for the Year of 2023.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB564 million, representing an increase
of approximately 36.9% as compared with approximately RMB412
million as at 31 December 2022. This was primarily due to the
continuous expansion of the Group’s business.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as stipulated in the property management agreements.
Certain payments are usually received in advance of the performance
under the contracts which are mainly from property management
services.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB211 million, representing an increase of
approximately 1.9% as compared with approximately RMB207 million
as at 31 December 2022. Such increase was primarily due to the

continuous expansion of the Group’s business.

BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investment during the Year of 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2023,
the following connected transaction was approved:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R D

On 16 December 2022, Langhong (Nanjing) Enterprise Management
Co., LTD* (BAG (AR EXEERAR A

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity

A]) (‘Langhong Nanjing”), a

transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) (as amended
by a supplemental agreement dated 24 February 2023) with Huge
Wealth Group Limited (% Ff & B A R 22 7]) (‘Huge Wealth”), Beihai
Langrun Commercial Management Limited* (1L /&R E M ¥ SR AR
‘A 7)) (“Beihai Langrun”) and Nanjing Langjun Commercial
Management Limited* (FA REAZSE £ EHE AR A A
Langjun”), which is ultimately owned as to 50% by Mr. Tian. As

) (“Nanjing

Nanjing Langjun is an associate of Mr. Tian, it is a connected person of
the Company. The Equity Transfer Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, subject to the
reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 24 February 2023, Langhong Nanjing, Nanjing Langjun, Huge
Wealth and Beihai Langrun entered into a supplemental agreement in
relation to, among other things, the disposal of 100% equity interests
in Shanghai Liansheng Zhichuang Management Consulting Co., Ltd.*
(E/EB B A EEZE AR A A by Langhong Nanjing to Nanjing
Langjun at the consideration of RMB197,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
Nanjing Langjun is an associate of Mr. Tian and a connected person of
the Company, the Disposal constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this report, during the Year of 2023, the Company
did not conduct any material acquisitions or disposals of assets,
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

*  For identification purposes only
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 3,346 employees
(as at 31 December 2022: 3,891). The Group offers employees
competitive remuneration packages that include fees, salaries,
allowances and benefits in kind, bonuses and pension scheme
contribution and social welfare. The Group contributes to social
insurance for its employees, including medical insurance, work-related
injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance and housing funds.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no pledge of assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property management
services and community value-added services. Save as disclosed
in the Prospectus no concrete plan for future investment is in place as
at the date of this report.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio, defined as lease liabilities and amounts due to related
parties divided by total equity and multiplied by 100% was 0.99% as at
31 December 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8
July 2021 by way of global offering, 100,000,000 shares were issued,
and the total of 110,765,000 shares were issued after the over-
allotment options were partially exercised, raising the total net proceeds
(after deducting underwriting commissions and other related listing
expenses) of approximately HK$288.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R D

The analysis on the utilization of the net proceeds from the Listing Date

to 31 December 2023 is as follows:

tHEBE

Percentage of the net
proceeds as stated in
the Prospectus and

—E-=F+-A=+—HHM &

RIEFRRESITAT

allocation of the net proceeds  Actual use of Unutilised
after taking into account net proceeds  net proceeds
the partial exercise of up to as at
the over-allotment optionon 31 December 31 December Expected
Use 30 July 2021 2023 2023 Timeline
Iy i
—E-=F “E-=F
RRERBIIFFERBFHEENR T=A +=A
BERRER-Z--FtA=+ =t-HH =t-H
ARATEAMESHEREIRN FrEHE e KB
i3 BAtk RERERAR FERERE bR
% of total
amount HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
RSN
Bt BEAT BEAT BEBT
Expanding our business through SREBAEBHE 56.8% 164.1 164.1 = Completed
various channels B IER
Continuing to enhance our operating BERARPARLRA 15.3% 44.2 136 306 2024/12/31
capability guided by users and HIERIA EER
driven by data
Continuing to enrich value-added services &% B ER 10.2% 295 19.0 105 2024/12/31
Continuing to incentivise, retain HEHE  BERBEATINU 7.7% 20.2 222 = Completed
and recruit talents in order to enhance B AN BRERE B IER
our human resources management
Working capital LEES 10.0% 28.9 2.7 262 2024/12/31
FINANCIAL RISKS Bt 7% 2 B

The Group is exposed to risks arising from its financial instruments

such as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group has not used any financial derivatives to hedge its interest
rate risk. All bank interests were received at fixed rates.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s financial instruments have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics such as instrument types and credit risk
ratings for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk

and impairment measurement.

EERBRNMRBHETAR)

R E R

SHRTANEHABEEE -

FERAR
REEIZAR

64 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

AEBEGE SR TAMELMNRER (20 RER

AEEVEERTESRI A TN ERAR B

RHEERBRSHROBERTA 1T

BERI M EERBRTHR - AEBEEERR M EEIE
mERIER & -



As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, amounts due from related parties and
other receivables included in the statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023, all cash and cash equivalents were
deposited in high-credit-quality financial institutions without significant
credit risk.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As all of the Group’s businesses were conducted in the PRC, the
revenue, profit and loss for the Year of 2023 were denominated in
Renminbi. The major foreign currency source for the Group was the
fundraising following the successful listing on the Stock Exchange
during the Period, all of which were in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not have significant foreign currency
exposure from its operations. The Group has not used any financial
derivatives to hedge its foreign exchange risk. The Group will closely
monitor its foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any outstanding
guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

LIABILITIES TO ASSETS RATIO

Liabilities to assets ratio is calculated based on our total liabilities as at
the end of the relevant period divided by our total assets as at the end
of such period. As at 31 December 2023, our liabilities to assets ratio
was 75.6% (as at 31 December 2022: 62.4%)).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

The Company recorded impairment losses under expected credit loss
model of approximately RMB181 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. The expected credit loss provision was on receivables.

Certain debtors are companies in the property development industry. Due
to the overall economic downturn in China and the cycle in the property
development industry, the collection of such receivables was slow.

The Company has engaged an independent valuer to assess the loss
rate in relation to the receivables due from related parties and made a
bad debt provision with reference to the assessment results.

The Company is actively taking varieties of measures to recover the
receivables.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Group is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance to protect the Shareholders’ overall interests.

The Company has adopted and applied the code provisions under the
CG Code as its own corporate governance code. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under Part 2 of the CG Code during
FY2023.

The Board should establish the Company’s purpose, value and
strategy and satisfy itself that they are aligned with its culture.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, The Board consists of three executive
Directors (namely Ms. Zhou Qin, Mr. Wu Xu and Mr. Liu Chao
respectively), two non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Tian Ming, the
Chairman and Mr. Liu Yong) and three independent non-executive
Directors (namely Ms. Katherine Rong Xin, Ms. Lu Mei and Dr. Chen
Kevin Chien-wen respectively). An updated list of Directors and their
roles and functions is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, respectively. Their names and biographical details
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this report. The Board has the overall management of the
Company’s operations, as well as the responsibility for overseeing and
formulating the overall business strategy.

There is no financial, business, family and other material or relevant
relationship among the respective Directors, the chairman and the
general manager of the Company.

In FY2023, the Board has consistently complied with Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three
independent non- executive Directors and at least one independent
non-executive Director who shall have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting and financial management expertise. The
three independent non-executive Directors account for one-third of the
Board, which meets the requirements of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, that is, the independent non-executive Directors of the listed
issuer must represent at least one-third of the Board. The Board
believes that the Board has sufficient independence to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders.
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DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE RECORD

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy, operations and financial performance of the Group. Directors
can participate in person or through electronic communication. The
Board holds at least four meetings per year at a frequency of
approximately once a quarter, and will arrange ad hoc meetings if
necessary. The date of each meeting is set in advance so that the
Directors can attend the meeting in person.

For the Year of 2023, the attendance records of the Directors at Board
meetings, meetings of special committees under the Board and
general meeting are as follows:

EEHERE

B =5 E B2 1 AR 0 N Bl FE 7 52 B 1) EE R R
LDERPBRER -EFAUBRALSM - BAlEBE
EFBRASTA2N - EZRBEFTEH R BF
BROEINAEHREE WEFTERTHERS
#oBREHERNARYELHTE  UWEEEH
FJhFEeE -

“ZF EFHFEZRER EFRERH
ZESRAURBRARENHFELCHAT

=
8

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ESR ERZERE FMZEEE REZEE SN
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Zhou Qin A#Lt 4/4 NATER 1/1 1/1 2/3
Mr. Wu Xu RIBEH 4/4 NATER N/ATE A N/AT 3/3
Mr. Liu Chao BB 4/4 N/A i B N/AiE A N/ATER 3/3
Non-executive Directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) HAXE(EFR) 4/4 N/ATRE N/ANE N/ANE 3/3
Mr. Liu Yong Liu Yong %64 4/4 N/ANE A N/AZNE A N/ATER 3/3
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Ms. Lu Mei Bt 4/4 22 N/ATE R 1/1 3/3
Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen ~ BREXTE+ 4/4 2/2 1/1 NATER 3/3
Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Katherine Rong Xin 22 & 4/4 2/2 11 11 3/3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing all major matters of the
Company, including formulating and approving all policy matters,
overall strategy, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising the duty performance of senior management. Directors
shall make objective decisions based on the Company’s overall
interests.

The liability insurance of the Directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company to prevent and cover certain
legal liabilities that may arise in the course of performing their duties.

BOARD AUTHORISATION

The management consisting of executive Directors and other senior
management is authorised to implement the strategies and guidelines
approved by the Board from time to time and is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operations of the Group. The executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the Group’s overall business, coordinate overall
resources, and make financial and operating decisions. The Board also
gives clear instructions on its management powers (including
circumstances where the management should report to it) and will
regularly review the authorisation arrangements to ensure that they are
suitable for the needs of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure the timely release of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Directors are not aware
of any significant uncertainties related to events or conditions, and
these uncertainties may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the going concern standard.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Independent non-executive Directors play an important role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgments, and their views are of
great significance in the decision of the Board. The functions of
independent non-executive Directors include holding impartial views
and judgments on such issues as the Company’s strategy,
performance and control; and reviewing the Company’s performance
and monitoring performance reports.

All independent non-executive Directors have extensive academic,
professional, industry knowledge and management experience, and
have made positive contributions to the Company’s development by
providing professional advice to the Board.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has
been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules, and
the Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his/her independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent.

DIRECTOR TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
customised training at the time of appointment. Subsequently, the
Directors will obtain the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements, as well as the Group’s
business development, and they will be encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to expand their knowledge and
skills.
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All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
Director/taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for
seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the
Company a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 December 2023.

The following table sets forth the training received by the existing
Directors of the Company during the year:

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HILUBFE 28
E=ERHRERSIERESZRBZARBMN S
kAR R, 2 I E ARSI, EERN S 2R
RE2ESBEEXRRRIBRNBERE  YEH
ARRIRHEPTEZIFI 2 8% o

TREVN AR BREESNFAREZHE

Reading
materials
related to

regulation and

governance

Continuing (newspaper,

professional publication or

Directors training information)
BEERR

ERMBEME

(34K - FI¥I=R

=23 BEEEEZI &)
Ms. Zhou Qin A g i+ Yes & Yes &
Mr. Wu Xu RBgEE YesH YesH
Mr. Liu Chao 2B L E Yes B Yes B
Mr. Tian Ming MBS YesH YesH
Mr. Liu Yong Liu Yong /£ 4 YesH YesH
Ms. Lu Mei B+ Yes & Yes B
Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen PREEXE L YesH YesH
Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Katherine Rong Xin 22 4= Yes & Yes
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming is the Chairman and
Mr. Wu Xu is the chief executive officer of the Company. The Company
considered that the division of the responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer is clearly established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date. The Company entered into an appointment letter with
each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors for a term of three years. Each Director shall be subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

At any time before the expiration of the Director’s term, the
Shareholders may dismiss any Director by an ordinary resolution at any
general meeting convened and held in accordance with the Articles of
Association, despite the contrary in the Articles of Association or the
existence of any agreement reached between the Company and the
Director (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under that
agreement).

Under article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. According to CG Code B.2.2, every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Tian
Ming, Mr. Wu Xu and Mr. Liu Yong shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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POLICY TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, which includes:

(1)  The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

(2)  The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors. The meeting should include reviewing the
performance of the Board and the flow of information of between
management and the Board.

(8) The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(4)  The Company will, upon reasonable request, provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to perform their duties to the Company.

The above policies will be reviewed on an annual basis for its
effectiveness.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Board or Board committees shall be supplied with adequate
information, in a timely manner, by the senior management, to enable it
to make informed decisions. Such information supplied shall be
complete and reliable. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has the right to
separately and independently access the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries, if necessary.

Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informal decisions on matters placed before it. Directors will receive a
prompt and full response to his/her enquiry, if any is raised.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee adopts a variety of methods to determine
candidates for directors, including recommendations from Board
members, the management and professional intermediaries. In
addition, the Nomination Committee will consider director candidates
appropriately submitted by Shareholders. The evaluation of the
Nomination Committee on director candidates may include, but is not
limited to, review of resumes and work experience, personal interviews,
verification of professional and personal recommendation letters, and
performing background checks. The Board will consider the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee and be responsible for
designating candidates for directors to be elected by Shareholders at
the Company’s general meeting, or appointing suitable candidates to
serve as Directors to fill Board vacancies or as supplements to Board
members, and to comply with the Articles of Association. All director
appointments should be confirmed through a letter of appointment
and/or service contract, which should state the main terms and
conditions of director appointment.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following qualification
requirements, which are the requirements for candidates to
recommend potential new Directors to the Board or continue to
provide existing Directors:

° Personal and professional conduct and integrity;

° Nominees’ proven personal achievements and abilities and their
ability to make reasonable business judgments;

° Skills that complement the existing boards;

° Ability to assist and support management and make a significant
contribution to the success of the Company;

° Understand the time and effort required for board members to be
trusted and to perform their duties diligently;

Candidates for independent non-executive directors should meet the
“independence” criteria set out in the Listing Rules and the composition
of the Board complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee shall consider other appropriate factors as
it considers appropriate to the best interest of the Company and
Shareholders.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Details of emoluments of the Directors and chief executive and the
remuneration of each of the five highest paid individuals are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in FY20283. In FY2023, none of the Directors has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. There were no emoluments paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The remuneration is determined by reference to the experience,
qualification, position and performance of each Director and senior
management and the goals, strategies and performance of the
Company. The remuneration is also aligned with the market practice
and conditions. The Group also has in place the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as long term incentive for performance.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band
in FY2023 is as follows:
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Number of
Remuneration band (HK dollar) individuals
MRl (Brt) N
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 2
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 2
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The payment and amount (if any) of dividends depend on the Group’s
operating results, cash flow, financial position, legal and regulatory
restrictions on dividends, future prospects and other relevant factors.
Shareholders will be entitled to receive dividend on a pro-rata basis
based on their respective paid-up Shares or paid-up capital which has
been credited to the Shares. The Company determines the declaration,
payment and amount of dividends at its sole discretion. The proposed
payment of dividends must also be at the discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval.
The Board will conduct annual review on the dividend policy and does
not guarantee any declaration or payment of dividends in any specific
amount for any specific period.

As at 31 December 2023, no arrangement was reached pursuant to
which the shareholders of the Company waived or agreed to waive
their dividends.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties,
including:

° To develop and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance, including anti-bribery, anti-corruption matters and
whistleblowing disclosures;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the Directors;

and

° To review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (CG Code).

In FY2023, the Board has performed the above duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.283 of the Listing Rules and has established its written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of
such auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial
statements of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial reporting
function and their training arrangement and budget, and to review the
risk management and internal control systems as well as their
effectiveness.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Katherine Rong Xin, Ms. Lu Mei and Dr. Chen
Kevin Chien-wen, being independent non-executive Directors. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen, an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate accounting and
related financial management expertise, which meet the requirements
of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the requirements under Code Provision D3.3(e)(i) of
the CG Code, the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with
the auditors of the Company. For the Year of 2023, the Audit
Committee held 2 meetings with the senior management and the
independent auditors of the Company, (i) to consider the independence
of the independent auditors and the scope of their audit; (i) to review
and discuss the risk management and internal control system of the
Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit and risk control
management function of the Company, and (jii) to consider the 2022
annual results and the annual report, the 2023 interim results and the
interim report and the opinions and report of the independent auditors,
and submit the results to the Board for approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with the CG Code and has established its written terms of
reference. The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors’ and to review and/or approve matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, namely Ms. Zhou Qin, an executive Director, and Ms.
Katherine Rong Xin and Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen, being independent
non-executive Directors. Ms. Katherine Rong Xin, an independent non-
executive Director, served as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

For the Year of 20283, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting,
to work with the matters including determined the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors, assessed performance of
executive directors and approved the terms of executive directors’
service contracts, performed by the Remuneration Committee, and
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. The
committee members also reviewed the share award scheme, granting
of share awards and share options to certain Directors and employees
and recommended the Board to approve.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in
accordance with the CG Code, and has established its terms of
reference. The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
among others:

(1) To review the structure, size and composition of our Board on a
regular basis and make recommmendations to our Board regarding
any proposed changes to the composition of our Board;

(2)  Toidentify, select or make recommendations to our Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and ensure
the diversity of our Board members; and

(8) To assess the independence of our independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to our Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment, reappointment and removal
of our Directors and succession planning of our Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, namely Ms. Zhou Qin, an executive Director, and Ms.
Katherine Rong Xin and Ms. Lu Mei, being independent non-executive
Directors. Ms. Lu Mei served as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the Year of 2023, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
At the meeting, the committee members reviewed the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and considered the election and
re-election of Directors based on the nomination procedures of the
Company. For details, please refer to the section headed “Nomination
Policy” of this report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM

The Board, with the support of the finance department, is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements of the Group. In preparation
of the financial statements, the Group adopted HKFRS and consistently
used and applied appropriate accounting policies. The purpose of the
Board is to make a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s
results in its annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and to
make appropriate disclosures and announcements in a timely manner.
Under Code Provision D.1.1 of the CG Code, the management will
provide explanations and necessary information to the Board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of financial and other information
submitted to the Board for approval.

The scope of work and reporting responsibilities of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s external auditor, are set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liu Chao act as company secretary.
Mr. Liu Chao has conducted and received at least 15 hours of
continuous professional learning and training in accordance with Listing
Rule 3.29 to update his skills and knowledge.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the guidelines for
Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon specific
enquiries with all Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she
has complied with all applicable code provisions under the Model Code
in FY2023.

According to the Company’s requirements, the relevant management
personnel and employees are also subject to the Model Code, which
prohibits them from dealing in the Company’s securities whenever they
possess inside information related to the securities. The Company was
not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with the Model Code by
relevant personnel and employees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually.

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishing,
reviewing and implementing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The internal control system covers all major aspects
of the Group’s operations, including sales, procurement, financial
reporting, asset management, budget and accounting processes, as
well as compliance controls. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group also has internal audit and risk control functions,
which mainly analyze and independently evaluate the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems, and
report its findings to the senior management at least annually.

Regarding the Group’s risk management and internal control
measures, the Group has formulated a comprehensive set of policies
and guidelines, which detail all aspects of internal control standards,
process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks, division
of responsibilities, approval procedures, and personnel accountability.
The Group has implemented procedures and internal controls to
process and disclose inside information. In particular, the Group:

—  has handled in strict accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Disclosure
Guidelines issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

—  has established its own disclosure obligation procedures that set
out procedures and controls for assessing potential internal
information and for processing and disseminating internal
information;

— the procedures have been communicated to the Company’s

senior management and employees and the Company monitors
its implementation;
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— made extensive, non-exclusive information disclosure to the
public in financial reports, announcements and through channels
such as websites;

— adopted policy that supports anti-corruption laws and
regulations; and

— adopted a whistleblowing policy and system.

According to the overall strategy on internal control of the Company,
the Operation Department (48 %7 55F9) of the Group is responsible
for organizing and implementing related operations for internal control
this year, and is liable for providing the Audit and Supervision
Department (B3t E55232F) with relevant information on internal control
for the business, mainly comprising internal control design, operation
and self-inspection for internal control. Should there be any material
changes in internal control, reporting would be conducted in time. Self-
inspection for internal control would be carried out with draft report on
internal control completed, based upon the annual assessment plan of
the Group on internal control. When internal control defects are
discovered, internal control rectification would be implemented after
reporting for approval by the Audit and Supervision Department (&t
BEZXE0) and the Board of the Group.

The Audit and Supervision Department (ZE &t &%
prepare and review the annual plan for self-assessment on internal

22 &K) would organize,

control which would be organized and conducted by itself. Besides, it
would investigate and tackle violations of regulations and disciplines
therein, and would propose solutions to and report on important issues
occurring in the establishment of internal control. On the other hand,
the Board would review and approve the self-assessment report on
internal control of the Group, before the approval of the identification
report of substantial defects (including the defect rectification plan).
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For the Year of 2023, the Board has reviewed the relevant risk
management and internal control systems. Details are as follows:

(1)  reviewed the function of internal audit of the Group;

(2)  confirmed that the risk management and internal control systems
were reviewed on an annual basis. This review covered the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023; and

(8) listened to the work report on the Company’s internal control and
corporate governance made by the risk control and legal affairs
centre of the Company. Upon review, the Board of the Company
was of the view that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems were effective and sufficient.

The risk management and internal control systems are continuously
reviewed and evaluated by the Audit Committee and executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and evaluated by the Board at
least annually, covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. During the Year of 2023, the
Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and considered the
systems to be effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing and
supervising independence of auditors and objectiveness and
effectiveness of audit procedures. The Audit Committee receives letters
from the auditors, confirms their independence and objectiveness, and
holds meetings with the auditors for the purpose of consideration of
the audit scope offered by them, and consideration of and approval for
the fees charged by them and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services (if any). The Audit Committee also advises the Board on
appointment and retention of independent auditors.

82 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

R-F_=FE E=ZRCEHEBRREERA

EREEAEHIE o FBWT ¢
(1) BREASENAPEZBEE

2 HRACERFEHEREELANIPEILFHE -
AARBHRE-_T_=ZF—F—HE=_F
=+ -_A=+—B8I1tHHE; &

Q) BERAAFARRZESMEREHPFOLORER
AIRREERCEERBEHNTIERS - 1
EHERR  ARAAEZR/B/ERRFNA
MEZEMAREERNEARLITD

REEREMAmMELEHEaERE8aRATE

BETHERENF G REMEERES - 1
FT5 %@&AﬁﬁﬁD THELBFHESS
E—FBERTGE—R-RB_=FF BFR

%%E$An%ﬁﬁ%& R E
RREHNERERBLTEND -

BREZEE
EHIE - WR

R ET &
ERZERRARRLEEZBEINBE IR
BEAIREFNEBRERBEYE - ERZ B R EEH
BeR it - EREB Y MERETEIL - W REZBEERTT
SHRNEERHERENEZEE B EWRD
ERNAREEZRG (WA NBEREZT - &
REZEEENUBURBMNEZEINEERNESR
RHER -



PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged as the auditor of the Company
with a term of office till the end of the 2024 annual general meeting of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor ,
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:

EERUGE SRR B IS EE RA A RIAZBAD - (£
HERAR _Z_MNFRRBFRAEERA/L -#HE
“EC=HFF+ A=+ —HUEEE  BENEAR
NEVZBENEBIGES M EBMZMEMT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers 7B oK B G TR EASFT IR 2 BR TS
Audit services RS 2,000
Non-audit services (Note) FEZRE (M) 100
2,100

Note: The non-audit services was related to preliminary announcement of results
and continued connected transactions , the fee paid/payable for each non-
audit service was RMB50 thousand.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on our Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of a diversified
Board, and considers board-level diversity to be an important element
in supporting the achievement of the Company’s strategic goals and
sustainable development. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to make decisions based on the strengths of the
candidates and their contribution to the Board through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, experience, independence, skills, and knowledge, as well
as the Company’s business characteristics and future development
needs. The Company will select potential Board candidates based on
merit and his/her potential contribution to our Board while taking into
account the Board Diversity Policy and other factors of the Company.
Our Company will also take into consideration our own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy and succession planning candidates, will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits
of diversity on our Board.
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The Board, which reflects the current management of our Group,
comprises eight members, including a female executive Director and
two female independent non-executive Directors. As such, the Board
considers gender diversity has been achieved. The Directors of the
Company have a balanced mix of experiences, including business
management, property investment, real estate development,
accounting and audit, and administrative experiences. Furthermore, the
ages of the Directors of the Company range from 43 years old to 69
years old. The Company have taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company, including but
without limitation at our Board and senior management levels.

Taking into account the business model and specific needs of the
Company as well as the presence of three female Directors out of a
total of eight Board members, the Company considers that the
composition of our Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company. The Company has also taken and will continue to take
measures to enhance diversity at all levels of the Company, including,
but not limited to, the Board, management levels and general
workforce. Although the Company recognizes that the existing
composition of the Board can increase the diversity of the Board, it will
continue to refer to the Board Diversity Policy and apply the rules of
appointment based on the actual situation.

With regards to gender diversity on our Board, the Board Diversity
Policy further provides that our Board shall take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The
Group will also ensure that there is a gender gap when recruiting staff
at the mid to senior level so that there are female senior management
and potential successors to our Directors going forward. It is the
objective of the Company to maintain an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international
and local recommended best practices. As at 31 December 2023, the
gender ratio of the Group is as follows:
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DA DRI S EERRIE EIRERNRR R ER
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BB
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ANEBEZRKUEETA=-RLMES  HARF
RREZRNEKRSTARREZTRZ TIEEE -
AR ERIL ASEBRIEIE - REFAARAE
BAEENZT  BEETRREZRNEREE
|- BEARARAIEZRNRAENAAES
EZRNEHEE EeEBE2REZR/NE TR
R REBEERBUERZERA -

AREZRTHMERNZ T  EFERETTICHERE
—SPRE EEFRAEEEAENABRYRILES
o [ERMIB N IR B BV EL Bl - N5 BIE A FEAR
EREFRSMABURFELRNZRE  UERKAR
USREBAEBNEZRNEELTE - ARFH
BIEE2Z ) E 8 H L A K B A i B 8y
REFHR EUHHIZTcARF\EENFE - K=
Z=F+"A=+—R rxEEZERILHWT :

Types Male Female <2l B feg:
Senior management 50% 50% BRER 50% 50%
All employees 61.2% 38.8% FEET 61.2% 38.8%
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The Board will review the structure, size and composition of the Board
once a year to ensure the effective implementation of the Diversity
Policy of the Board members. The nomination committee will also
review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company treats all shareholders equally with an aim to ensure that
their rights can be fully exercised and their legitimate interests can be
safeguarded and that the shareholders’ general meeting can be
convened and held in strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The Company’s corporate governance structure is to
ensure that all shareholders, especially the minority shareholders, can
enjoy equal benefits and undertake corresponding responsibilities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board may
convene an extraordinary general meeting as it thinks fit. Shareholders
requisitioning extraordinary general meetings or class meetings shall
abide by the following procedures:

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Shareholders of the Company who would like to put forward any
proposals at the shareholders’ meeting should follow the above
procedures, and deposit such written requisition addressed to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, i.e. Unit 407, 4/F, 8
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining stable and constructive
communication with shareholders and investors, adheres to the
principles of integrity, regulation and high transparency, and discloses
relevant information in compliance with requirements under the Listing
Rules. The Group disseminates information to its shareholders in the
following manner:

(1)  delivering results and reports to all shareholders.

(2)  publishing announcements on the disclosure website designated
by the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company and
dispatching circulars for shareholders as required under the
Listing Rules; investors are enabled to access the Company’s
particulars, statutory announcements, and annual reports, interim
reports, inside information (if applicable), circulars and

announcements published since its listing on the website of the

Company, which can be found in the column headed “Investor

Relations” on the website.

(8) holding general meetings and extraordinary general meetings as
an effective communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

(4)  the “investor relations department” of the Company takes charge
of liaison with investors and analysts by answering their
questions, organizing field trips to the office premises and/or
project sites of the Group, gathering, in a timely manner, opinions
and comments from analysts and investors on the operation of
the Group, and considering and adopting them in the course of
the Group’s operation according to actual conditions.

(5) communicating actively with various parties, especially holding
briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one meetings
with institutional investors upon publication of results and material
investments.
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The Board is of the view that the above shareholders’ communication
policy is effective as there is direct two-way communication between
the Shareholders and the Company, and the Shareholders could put
enquirers to the Board throughout the year. The Board will continue to
review the effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policies.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.landseawy.com/,
where information on the Company’s businesses and projects, key
corporate governance policies and announcements, financial reports
and other information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may send written enquiries or requests to the company
secretary of the Company by one of the following ways:

Address: Unit 407, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2879 6805

Email: irwy@landsea.hk

As regards matters concerning nominating candidate(s) for election as
a Director(s) by shareholders and specific matters concerning
shareholder communications, the procedures of nominating director
candidate by relevant shareholders and the shareholder
communications policies are available on the website of the Company.

The articles of association of the Company were amended (the
“Amendment”) in order to comply with the new Listing Rules
requirements regarding the adoption of Core Shareholder Protection
Standards for shareholders’ information and protection. The special
resolution in relation to the Amendment was passed on 30 June 2023.
For further information, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 27 April 2023.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EERRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year of 2023.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of property management services, non-owner value-added
services, and community value-added services in the PRC. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the Year of 2023 is set
out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this report.

RESULTS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s results for the Year of 2023 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, including the discussion on the major
risk exposure and uncertainties facing the Group and the potential
business development course of the Group in the future, is set out in
the sections headed “Report of Directors” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report contains
part of the analysis on the Group’s annual performance using key
financial performance indicators. For explanations on the major
relations between the Company and its employees, customers and
suppliers, please refer to the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration Policies” and
“Report of Directors — Major Customers and Suppliers” in this report.

These discussions form part of the Report of Directors.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a fair
and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. The Group also puts ongoing
efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources to the
employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest development of
the market and the industry and, at the same time, improve their
performance and self-fulfilment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers. The Group enhances the relationship by
continuous interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing
market demand so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group
has also established procedures in place for handling customers’
complaints to ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt
and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group’s business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with
suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective
manner so as to ensure quality and timely delivery.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the Year of 2023, there was no material breach of, or
non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EERRE

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for the
Year of 2023 (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

BORROWINGS
For the Year of 2023, the Group had no borrowings.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the
Year of 2023 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year
of 2023 are set out on in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. The reserves available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2023 was RMB255 million.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
No donations made by the Group during the Year of 2023.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Year of 2023 and its financial position
as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 133 to 259 of this report.
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DIRECTORS =
For the Year of 2023 and up to the date of this report, the Directorsare  R_ZT-_=FEMEEAREB L 0T ¢
as follows:

Name of Directors Position

EEHR B

Ms. Zhou Qin (/E%)) Executive Director

g+ HITEE

Mr. Wu Xu (R]E) Executive Director

RBF&4E HITES

Mr. Liu Chao (ZIi) Executive Director

2FRE A4 WITES

Mr. Tian Ming (FHBE) (Chairman) Non-executive Director

MEASE (FEF) HHITES

Mr. Liu Yong Non-executive Director

Liu Yong Zt 4 EHITES

Ms. Lu Mei (&1g) Independent Non-executive Director
Bigz+ B IEHITES

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen (FE#Ex) Independent Non-executive Director
FRIECIE T B IEHITES

Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Independent Non-executive Director
Katherine Rong Xin 2=+ B EHITES

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS BEERBEL

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the ARAAESHITEECFIVRBEY @ AE=F-
executive Directors for a term of three years. The Company entered ZRA T 5D BIEAIEHTEE MBI ERITEE] L
into an appointment letter with each of the non-executive Directors and ~ Z{EpkfE - A= - RSEEARBE AN THAES
the independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years. TR ERTWEIRET - MIEEFEA QAL
Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election Al i B A B 7] M AN & B 7] 1A — F N FE o B
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. None & GEERERIN 1E0 N R IERREE L ©

of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its

subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year of 2023, none of the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interests in any
business which competes or is likely to compete with the business of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors were not aware
of any violation of such commitment.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions in which they were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

() LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES

EERBRFRB2RES

R-ZF_=FE HESFIARSFEENHEACE
EREMAA)NEREEEFERBEFHATERE
ﬁX%ﬁ%E’M{ﬁ%i‘%ﬂP%ﬁﬁEﬁ%ﬁ 5%43!5%%{7%
EX T HBEMERBBEAAHRNE

EERFETBRAERERQATRS -
HEROREFNERZRRE

R-ZB_=F+_A=1t—8 EFZRARFARR
TTHRABRARRRITMEEAE (ERELEHFR
IR IR BIE XV ER) RO (0 - AR A0 e (B HE 8 =
*ﬁ*ﬁﬁmﬁ&ﬂﬁiﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%wiﬁ%7&8"%5%[1m
ARBRBRANEE AR (BREEFRER
KRB GRAIBBGR X EFLR R ER A E
SFKR)  HRBEFZ R ERPIF 362150 5L
SRR IRFTIEM B LM AMNER AR - RE L
F‘ﬁ%ﬁ'JWﬁ%CS(ﬁEETEWﬁ“HFﬁ?ﬁiﬂ’\]%ﬁ?ﬂ‘la
HMEARA LB AR ORBANT

n RROWFE

Approximate
percentage in

Number of total number

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Held  of issued shares
e BT

R R 2

HE 51 REME iR B R BRED L
Mr.Tian Interest in controlled corporation 165,137,165 Note) 40.20%
BEE R rE ks 165,187,165 40.20%
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Note:

These include (i) 60,620,820 Shares held through Honor Limited; (ii)
23,998,345 Shares held through Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Honor Limited; (i) 202,000 Shares held through Easycorps
Group Limited (“Easycorps”); (iv) 4,316,000 Shares held through Greensheid
Corporation (“Greensheid”) and (v) 76,000,000 Shares held through Tian
Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (“Tian Family Investment”).

Mr. Tian is the sole and legal beneficial owner of Honor Limited. Greensheid is
wholly-owned by Landsea International Holdings Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by
Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management Consultants Ltd. (“Nanjing
Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Easycorps is a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Tian Family Investment is wholly-owned by
Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in these 165,137,165
Shares held by Honor Limited, Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, Easycorps,
Greensheid and Tian Family Investment pursuant to the SFO.

LONG POSITION IN SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(i

e

=% B% 17 82 4% (1) 35 8 Honor Limited 3 & 860,620,820 %
& 15 5 (i) i i@ Honor Limited 2 & F 72 &) Green Sailing
(PTC) Limited # & #)23,998,345 & A& 15 : (iii) i& i@
Easycorps Group Limited ([ Easycorps |) # & &
202,000 & f% 15 : (iv) i 18 Greensheid Corporation
([ Greensheid |) 5 A #9 4,316,000 R & 15 © [ (v)i5 i
Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. ([ Tian Family
Investment ) #7 4 #J 76,000,000 AZ A% 7

H % 4 A Honor Limited WM — & 2B = EA A o
Greensheid F3 Landsea International Holdings Limited 2
& ¥ % - 1M Landsea International Holdings Limited 81 i
AHEEERE PHESEHEREEREETHER
MERAR (MRBE|)HE34.15% RHELEES
1585% - RS ERAHEETEEREANRT -
Easycorps A H A2 B Em A A A A+ Tian Family
Investment 4 Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. 2 & # & * M
Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. LA 2 E B HEAN
AAEle Bt REBEFFRBERG - AEEFERRLSR
%% % Bl # Honor Limited, Green Sailing (PTC) Limited,
Easycorps, Greensheid & Tian Family Investment FT$5 5
165,137,165 AR AR R A 7 o

RARYE IR 0 FA R 5T 81 1R W B9 IR 47 S 1

"R

Approximate

Aggregate
long position
in the underlying

percentage
in total number
of issued shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares (Note 1)

HERITRMAEE

TAERA R 17 B9 HEIAE

EENR B HEntE FRHE%E (FsE1)

Wu Xu Beneficial owner 444,000 Note2) 0.11%

=B EmEA A 444,000 #=2) 0.11%

Liu Chao Beneficial owner 333,000 Note2) 0.08%

218 EmEEA 333,000 (iz2) 0.08%
Notes: B 5

1. The total number of shares in issue of the Company as of 31 December 1. BHE_Z_=F+-_A=+—8 KR AE2%

2023 was 410,765,000.

2. For details, please refer to the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” of this report.

131D #8805 410,765,000 A% ©

2. FAHHE F2HAREBRETS ] -
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(1l1) LONG POSITION IN SHARE AWARDS GRANTED
UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Aggregate
long position

() RBHEROGEBERENRD R
LS9

Approximate
percentage

in total number
of issued shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest in the shares (Note 1)
HEBRTROBHY
RERGH WA B
EEHA B, e HFRBE (BFEE1)
Zhou Qin Beneficiary of a trust 1,480,000 Motes 2, 3) 0.36%
(other than a discretionary interest)
[E# ErEXEA (BIEEERIN) 1,480,000 "2 3) 0.36%
Wu Xu Beneficiary of a trust 2,480,000 MNotes2.9) 0.60%
(other than a discretionary interest)
R18 EREXEA (BIEEERIN) 2,480,000 MiE2-3) 0.60%
Notes: B2 -
1. The total number of shares in issue of the Company as of 31 December 1. HE-T-_=F+-A=+—H AREIE%
2023 was 410,765,000. 1T 0 #2815 410,765,000 % ©
2. The awarded shares are held on trust by Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, 2. BEAMA-ZT-_—F—A+N\BNEFIEE -
the trustee of the Share Award Scheme of the Company, the trustee of REAR 1D R AN A Bl AR 0 22 B 51 8 89 2 5T A Green
the Share Award Scheme of the Company, pursuant to a trust deed Sailing (PTC) Limited LA 575 N #F 4 ©
dated 18 January 2021.
3. For details, please refer to the section headed “SHARE AWARD 3. BT  B2HARERDEEE ] —55 -
SCHEME” of this report.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the [ X BEEN R_T-_=F+_-_F=+—

Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required pursuant to the Model Code to be otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be

FERRREMATERG REER
DR KK

R-FE_=F+_A=1+—B BEZEMRH " T3
AL (XFEERARARDITRAR) RO
HERDTHEEIRREAEFRERARBEESR
HIBRPIFEXVERF 2 X370 B 2 R AR AR E K&

disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO:

Name

wEEB

X PTRBEHEE TR R MR AR R BIRIRE 5

Yp 2
KB 5RHI% 336 IR AT B B M AR IOXA -

Approximate
percentage in

Ms. Murong Xinyao (Note 3)
RAEHMt (M:E3)

i

Honor Limited (Note 4)
Honor Limited (Ff{z¥ 4)

Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (Note 4)
Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (Fff&E 4)

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (Note 5)
Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (BfizE 5)

Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (Note 5)
Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (K{3¥ 5)

Number of total number of
Shares held issued Shares
Capacity/Nature of interest (note 1) (note 2)
HEZRTREG
BFERMEA BE D
B REmME (k1) Batk (ME2)
Interest of spouse 165,137,165 (L) 40.20%
P (B 4 o
Beneficial owner and interest in 84,619,165 (L) 20.6%
controlled corporation
BB ARZEEE R
Trustee 23,998,345 (L) 5.84%
ZsEA
Beneficial owner 76,000,000 (L) 18.50%
Em=EA A
Interest in controlled corporation 76,000,000 (L) 18.50%

XL E S

MRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH
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EESRHE

Name

wEEB

Capacity/Nature of interest

510 EEME

Number of
Shares held
(note 1)

FEROHAE
(M¥&E1)

Approximate
percentage in
total number of
issued Shares
(note 2)
HERITRG
BB
Btk (FfEE2)

Hong Kong New Tourism Corporation
Limited (Note 6)
ERFIRERERAR (K 6)

A REEZ (£E ) R AR (Note 6)
MREHEE (£8) BRAR (H:Ee6)

ERH LIEESEBRETE AR (Note 6)
AR LIEESEERETAR (H:E6)

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government (Note 6)

AR ARBNEEEEEE
EEZE® (MiEe6)

Mr. Lin Befeng
Lin Befeng %4

Mr. Chen Huaijun (Note 7)
Chen Huaijun fe4 (Bt 7)

Lucky Front Investments Limited (Note 7)
Lucky Front Investments Limited (Ffi&E 7)

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Interest in controlled corporation
REEE

Interest in controlled corporation
REEE

Interest in controlled corporation

RPEEE R

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Beneficial owner and interest in
controlled corporation

BB ARZELEE R

Beneficial owner
EmEB A
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71,575,509 (L)

71,575,509 (L)

71,575,509 (L)

71,575,509 (L)

32,318,647 (L)

30,501,000 (L)

26,801,000 (L)

17.42%

17.42%

17.42%

17.42%

7.87%

7.43%

6.52%



Notes:

Save

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of 410,765,000 Shares issued by
the Company as of 31 December 2023.

Ms. Murong Xinyao is the spouse of Mr. Tian. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Murong Xinyao is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tian is
interested.

These include (i) 60,620,820 Shares held through Honor Limited; and (ii)
23,998,345 Shares held through Green Sailing (PTC) Limited. Green Sailing
(PTC) Limited acts as the trustee of the Green Life Trust, which is set up for
the purpose of a share incentive scheme to be adopted at least six months
after Listing, and is wholly owned by Honor Limited. By virtue of the SFO,
Honor Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Green Sailing
(PTC) Limited is interested.

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is wholly owned by Tian Family Holding Pte.
Ltd.. By virtue of the SFO, Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is interested.

Hong Kong New Tourism Corporation Limited is wholly owned by 7 & & 4 &
X (KB BRAR. BREMESE(EE)BR A A is wholy owned by R
¥ TR E =B AR &£ A which is in tun held as to 90.79% by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government (“Nanjing SASAC’). By virtue of the SFO, each of F
REGEX(CE)BRAR, mRNIHKREREAFREER T and Nanjing
SASAC is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Hong Kong New
Tourism Corporation Limited is interested.

These include (i) 26,801,000 Shares held through Lucky Front Investments
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Huaijun; and (i) 3,700,000
Shares held by Mr. Chen Huaijun. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Huaijun is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Lucky Front Investments
Limited is interested.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company is

not aware that any other person has any interests or short positions in

the Shares and underlying Shares, which is required to be notified to

the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

which is required to be entered in the register maintained by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

1. FEILEZALTRBROFOEE

2. BEARRR-_ZE-_=F+-_A=1+—BEETER®H
4280410,765,000 [R5t & o

3. RERGLTAMELENES - BEBSRRNEGES -
RABBL W ANE % ERAERORO T EE
i -

4. % % B 15 8L 12 () 38 8 Honor Limited 3% A #9 60,620,820
% % 15 ¢ R (i) 3 B Green Sailing (PTC) Limited #5 A& #9
23,998,345 % B& 1 ° Green Sailing (PTC) Limited #& 1£
Green Life TrustMI XA » ZertR AR EMED
NE R B A IR R E) FT &l M &% 2 B Honor
Limited2 E# B - BREBEZFHF KB EKH - Honor
Limited #% 18 /& 72 Green Sailing (PTC) Limited # & # #=
BIMRAD R A o

B Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. f Tian Family Holding
Pte. Lid. 2 B A ° IRIEE F KA E &M - Tian Family
Holding Pte. Ltd. # % 7% 7 Tian Family Investment Pte.
Ltd. A ERH RN P HEE R -

6. EBTIKBEBR AR AR ARG REHEE (EE)BRA
FAEEHA  HRERSHEX(EE) AR DR MHE R
THREEEERETARZERE  MERAHIIRE
EEEREARARNHEATARBFEAEEEEE
EEZEe ((HREEZE]IFE0.79% #x - BIEFE
AREBERS AR EL(EE)ARAT ER
%ﬁI&ﬁ%lﬁB&f&@T&r‘mlﬁ;ﬂE?&"wfj
REBHIKEREGRA R ARG P AR

7. % 5D B IE ()% BChen Huajun e £ 2 B AN A
&) Lucky Front Investments Limited #  # 26,801,000 fi%
B& 5 : R(i) B8 Chen Huaijun 5& & #5 A #9 3,700,000 A% A%

17 o BRIEFEH R EIEEH) - Chen Huaijun 55 A #48 B
Lucky Front Investments Limited # A # z= /9 B2 15 R # B
W o

BEXHHEEEIN R-E-_=F+-H=+—

B ARBEALAFBEAE A A TR B R AR
MPRAREEZ M ERAIFEXVEF 2305
BEAEARAEAERIAR - HRIEE %%&Hﬁ
B {5 P 58 336 1A T 17 B #) B R it WM e # 25 3k

o

\\\

m )
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions to the Group by certain eligible participants (as defined
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules) and/or to give incentives in order
to motivate certain eligible persons for the continuing development and
long-term growth of the Group. The Share Award Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption
Date, being 18 March 2022 and shall remain effective until 17 March
2032.

Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (“Green Sailing (PTC)”) has been
appointed as the trustee of the trust pursuant to a trust deed dated 18
January 2021, and holds Shares to be granted to the eligible persons
under the Share Award Scheme. As at the date of this report, Green
Sailing (PTC) holds 23,998,345 Shares on trust for the Share Award
Scheme, representing 5.84% of the number of issued shares of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Advisory Committee may,
from time to time, choose the selected participants to participate in the
Share Award Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares to
be awarded, the vesting conditions (if any) and the vesting schedule of
the awarded shares. An offer letter setting out, among others, the
number, the vesting conditions (if any) and the vesting schedule of the
awarded shares to be granted will be issued by the Advisory
Committee to the selected participants.
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The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award

Pefn R E 8 T B RF R GHEBEHRARRA

Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 July HIA-ZT-—F+ AR HNAE « &) EETE7
2022. Details of movement of the Share Award Scheme during the ARFEERESEFHFIMT :
Year are set out as below:
Cancelled/
Unvested Awarded Vested Lapsed Unvested
awards as at shares awards awards  awards as at
1 January during the during the during the 31 December Vesting
Category Date of award 2023 2023 year 2023 year 2023 year 2023 period
RZIB-=% TECZFE RIB-=R
-B-A =—B-=fE CB-=FE F8H/4¥M +-A=1+-A
Ehl #EAH AERRE RERG ERRRE %R AEBRB ] E
Executive Directors
HITEE
Zhou Qin 5 July 2022 1,480,000 - - - 1,480,000
&%) —E-C
+AEH
Wu Xu 5 July 2022 2,480,000 - - - 2,480,000
=18 S
+AAA
Sub-total of Directors 3,960,000 - - - 3,960,000
EE it
Five highest paid individuals 5 July 2022 1,000,000 — = = 1,000,000
during 2023 (excluding
Ms. Zhou Qin and Mr. Wu Xu)
“RCCERERRGMAT Z22Z
(MEERILLTR +AAA
RBELE)
Sub-total of five highest paid individuals 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
during 2023 (excluding Ms. Zhou Qin and
Mr. Wu Xu)
ZECZFRERBHMAL
(TEFEELZ L RRMESE) it
Other employee participants 5 July 2022 - - - - -
HihEE2HE —E-=fF
+AAHA
Sub-total of other 5 July 2022 - - - - -
employee participants
RtESSHE it —E-oE
+AEH
Total 4,960,000 - - - 4,960,000 Note
@t Btk
Note: BAE

The awarded shares were granted without purchase price and will all be transferred
from Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, the trustee of the Share Award Scheme of the
Company, to the names of the respective grantees after five years lock-up period, i.e.
on 5 July 2027.

The closing price of the shares immediately prior to the date of granting of award and
on the date of grant of award were HK$3.01 and HK$3.02, respectively. Please refer
to note 39.21 headed “Share-based Payment” and note 29 headed “Employee Share
Scheme” in notes to consolidated financial statements for the fair value of awards at
the date of grant, as well as the accounting standard and policy adopted.

BREHOEEBROITEREE 208N AFHEHEN=-F
o = = dﬂzﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁi’iﬁbufgﬂﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ%/\(}reen

Sailing (PTC) Limited ¥ % = E AR AR T ©

£ 1A AR IR ) 22 R B H AT S iR I 52D B B0 IR T B 0 )
7801 ITKR3.028T - FAREERMNNET AN R ER

SRRANEENREE - BN

[RAR ] K i aE 29 TR B AR A Et 8] o

B 765 R 2% PiY 2 39.21
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MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SCHEME

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share Award
Scheme shall comply with all applicable regulations, including those
imposed by the Listing Rules, and shall not exceed the individual limit
set out in Rule 17.03D of the Listing Rules.

VESTING PERIOD OF AWARDS GRANTED UNDER THE
SCHEME AND BASIS OF PURCHASE PRICE

Vesting period will be determined by the committee at its absolute
discretion, during which the trustee of the share award scheme shall
hold the shares on the terms of the trust deed, and the relevant
awarded shares shall vest in the selected participant during and on the
expiry of the applicable vesting period in accordance with the scheme
rules of the share award scheme.

Vesting conditions, which will be set out in the notice of award to the
relevant selected participants, will contain such conditions imposed by
the advisory committee as it deems appropriate with respect to the
entitlement of the selected participant to the awarded shares (including
the conditions in relation to the vesting, the vesting schedule and any
purchase price (if any)).

ACCEPTANCE

An Award shall be deemed to have been irrevocably accepted by a
selected participant unless the selected participant shall within five
business days after receipt of the notice of award notify the Company
in writing that he would decline to accept such awarded shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
recognising and acknowledging the contributions of the eligible
participants (including employee participants, service providers and
related entity participants as defined under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules) made to the Group.

On 5 July 2022, the Company offered to grant an aggregate of
6,476,600 share options to the option grantees to recognise and
acknowledge their contributions made to the Group in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the grant of share options were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 July 2022, movement of the share options

Wﬁkﬁ%%ﬁl%%K”ﬂE%%:;::

during the Year are set out as below: FEN -
Outstanding
Outstanding options
Exercise options as at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at 31
Date priceper  1January duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe December Vesting Exercise
Category of grant Share (HK$) 2023  2023year  2023year  2023year 2023 year - 2021:_3 period period
AZB-=
RZB==ZF t=A
—-A-AH =t-H
BRITEE HAROEN RZFZ= RZBZ= RSB-Z RIBSS HAGTEN
B RHAH (Bn) hROEE  £ERM  FEOR  FESE 0 FEAN RGOSR GRS i
Executive Directors
HITEE
Wu Xu 5 July 2022 3.02 444,000 - - - - 444000  Notes1,2  Notes 1,2
RfE —B__F 1.2 W12
tAnA
Liu Chao 5 July 2022 3.02 333,000 - - - - 333,000  Notes1,3  Notes1,3
e —T_Cf 1.3 B3
tARA
Sub-total of Directors 777,000 - - - - 777,000
EE )it
Five highest paid 5 July 2022 3.02 925,000 - - - - 925,000 Note 1 Note 1
individuals during 2023
(excluding Mr. Wu Xu
and Mr. Liu Chao)
ECERARREM S oF iz 1 it 1
AL (PefERIBEE  TARA
&yt
Sub-total of five highest paid individuals during 925,000 - - - - 925,000
2023 (excluding Mr. Wu Xu and Mr. Liu Chao)
ZE_CEREREHMAL (TAERBALR
HELL) it
Other employee 5 July 2022 302 4,572,300 - - - (722,800) 3,849,500 Note 1 Note 1
participants
EtEE2EE —EoCfF i1 it 1
tATR
Sub-total of other employee participants 4,572,300 - - - (722,800) 3,849,500
EftEESHE )it
Total 6,274,300 - - - (722,800) 5,551,500 Note 4
@t ik 4
Note: BsE -
1. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was 1. RN ERFE L A ERT& YT E &3.01%8 7T

HK$3.01, and the closing price on the date of grant was HK$3.02. The share
options granted are vested on the percentage of 25%, 35% and 40% on 5
July 20283, 5 July 2024 and 5 July 2025, and exercisable from 5 July 2023 to
4 July 2032, 5 July 2024 to 4 July 2032 and 5 July 2025 to 4 July
2032, respectively. Please refer to note 39.21 headed “share-based payment”
and note 29 headed “Employee Share Scheme” in notes to consolidated
financial statements for the fair value of options at the date of grant, as well as
the accounting standard and policy adopted.
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2. 111,000 shares vested on 5 July 2023 and become exercisable from 5 July
2023 to 4 July 2032; 155,400 shares will vest on 5 July 2024 and become
exercisable from 5 July 2024 to 4 July 2032; and 177,600 shares will vest on
5 July 2025 and become exercisable from 5 July 2025 to 4 July 2032.

&} 83,250 shares vested on 5 July 2023 and become exercisable from 5 July
2023 to 4 July 2032; 116,550 shares will vest on 5 July 2024 and become
exercisable from 5 July 2024 to 4 July 2032; and 133,200 shares will vest on
5 July 2025 and become exercisable from 5 July 2025 to 4 July 2032.

4. As of 31 December 2023, 1,387,875 share options were vested.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceeds 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date,
being 40,000,000 Shares, representing 9.7% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of this report.

Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 15 June 2021, and the Share Option Scheme
will expire on 14 June 2031.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted to each participant including both exercised and
unexercised options under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options granted to
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any share option schemes of the Company if
this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the terms of grant which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date
of grant. The subscription price will be determined by the board of
directors at the time the option is offered to the participants.

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT THE SHARE
SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2023 and as at the date of this report, 33,725,700
share options, representing 33,725,700 shares of the Company, were
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2023, 19,038,345 share awards were available for
grant under the Share Award Scheme.
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Under the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme, save as
disclosed in this report, there are no:

(i) participants with options and awards granted that is in excess of
the 1% individual limit; and

(i)  options and awards granted and to be granted to any related
entity participant or service provider in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue.

Saved for the above-mentioned Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had any other
share-incentive plan during the year ended 31 December 2023.

No service provider sublimit was set under each of the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE EQUITY OR
DEBT SECURITIES

For the Year of 2023, none of the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement enabling the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or
debt securities, including the debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

For the Year of 2023, save as disclosed in this report, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company or subsidiary or the controlling
shareholder was a party, and in which the Directors or their respective
connected entities were materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

From the Year of 2023, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” below, there was no significant contract
relating to the business of the Group between the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) and its controlling shareholders (or any of its/their
subsidiaries), nor was there any significant contract for the provision of
services by the controlling shareholders (or any of its/their subsidiaries)
to the Company (or any of its subsidiaries).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year of 20283, the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer, and five largest customers in aggregate, represented
approximately 2.9% and 7.4% of the Group’s total annual revenue,
respectively.

For the Year of 2023, the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest
suppliers and five largest suppliers in aggregate, represented
approximately 5.4% and 19.6% of the Group’s total annual purchase,
respectively.

Except that the controlling shareholder of the Company is interested in
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries for the Year of 2023,
none of the other Directors, their respective associates or other
Shareholders (to the knowledge of the Directors, who are interested in
more than 5% of the issued Shares) had any interests in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions have been entered into and/or continued
between certain connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) and the Company, and the Company made the following
relevant disclosures in accordance with Chapter 14A the of Listing
Rules:

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(a) Trademark Licensing Agreement
On 16 June 2021, the Company entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with Landsea Group (the “Trademark
Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to which Landsea Group
agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally grant the Group an
exclusive, non-transferable licence to use certain trademarks
registered by Landsea Group in the PRC (the “PRC
Trademarks”) for a perpetual term commencing from the date
of the Trademark Licensing Agreement on a royalty-free basis.

Landsea Group, as the registered proprietor of the PRC
Trademarks, is beneficially held as to 50% by Mr. Tian. Landsea
Group is therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction under the
Trademark Licensing Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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As the right to use the PRC Trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Trademark
Licensing Agreement will be within the de minimis threshold
provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For the Year of 2023, none was paid by the Group to Landsea
Group under the Trademark Licensing Agreement.

Landsea Green Management and Consulting Agreement
On 28 December 2020, Nanjing Property Management (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
services agreement with Landsea Green Management (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (the “Landsea Green
Management and Consulting Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to provide green management and
consulting services to Landsea Green Management and its
subsidiaries from time to time (the “Landsea Green
Management Group”). The Landsea Green Management and
Consulting Agreement has a term of three years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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(c)

Landsea Green Management is indirectly held as to 58.53% by
Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Landsea Green
Management and Consulting Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the Landsea Green
Management and Consulting Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB75.0
million, RMB78.0 million and RMB82.0 million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by Landsea Green
Management Group to the Group under the Landsea Green
Management and Consulting Agreement for the Year of 2023
was RMB11.4 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB82.0 Million for the Year of 2023.

Mr. Tian Properties and Consulting Agreement

On 16 June 2021, the Company entered into a framework
services agreement with Mr. Tian (the “Mr. Tian Properties and
Consulting Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide properties and consulting services to Mr. Tian
Associates. The Mr. Tian Properties and Consulting Agreement
has a term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2023, which
may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The following sets forth the principal terms of the Mr. Tian
Properties and Consulting Agreement:

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (i) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.
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Mr. Tian, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the Mr. Tian Properties and Consulting Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the Mr. Tian Properties
and Consulting Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB155.0 million,
RMB155.0 million and RMB156.0 million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by the Mr. Tian Associates to
the Group under the Mr. Tian’s Properties and Consulting
Agreement for the Year of 2023 was RMB79.0 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB156.0 million for the Year of
2023.

Landsea Green Management Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement

On 22 November 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Landsea Green Management (for and on
behalf of the Landsea Green Management Group) entered into
the exclusive sales agency agreement (the “Landsea Green
Management Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement”),
pursuant to which, Landsea Green Management Group agreed
to engage the Group as the exclusive sales agent of the
properties held by Landsea Green Management Group from the
commencement date to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the
Landsea Green Management Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement,
the Group shall pay the Landsea Green Management Group
certain security deposit for the performance by the Group of its
obligations under the Landsea Green Management Exclusive
Sales Agency Agreement.

Landsea Green Management is indirectly held as to 58.53% by
Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Landsea Green
Management Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(e)

The respective annual maximum amounts of agency security
deposits payable by the Group to Landsea Green Management
Group under the Landsea Green Management Exclusive Sales
Agency Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB4.0 million, RMB6.0
million and RMB3.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate security deposits payable by Group to Landsea
Green Management Group under the Landsea Green
Management Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement for the Year of
2023 was RMBNIl, which did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB3.0 million for the Year of 2023.

Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement

On 22 November 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Mr. Tian (for himself and on behalf of Mr.
Tian Associates) entered into an exclusive sales agency
agreement (the “Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement”) pursuant to which, Mr. Tian Associates agreed to
engage the Group as the exclusive sales agent of the properties
held by Mr. Tian and Mr. Tian Associates for the term. Pursuant
to the Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, the Group
shall pay the Mr. Tian Associates certain security deposit for the
performance by the Group of its obligations under the Mr. Tian
Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement.

Mr. Tian, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The respective annual maximum amounts of agency security
deposits payable by the Group to Mr. Tian Associates under the
Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB98.0
million, RMB183.0 million and RMB163.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate security deposits payable by Group to the Mr.
Tian Associates under the Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement for the Year of 2023 was RMB133.7 million, which
did not exceed the annual cap of RMB163.0 million for the Year
of 2023.
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Operation and Management Framework Agreement

On 16 December 2022, the Beihai Langrun Commercial
Management Limited* (1L /& 8A B /8 2% E 12 8 R 2 7)) (‘Beihai
Langrun”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industrial Development
Limited* ( L/ BAFFE E ¥ % E B A F) (‘Shanghai Landsea
Apartment”) entered into the framework agreement (the
“Operation and Management Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the members of the Beihai Langrun will provide
the members of the Shanghai Landsea Apartment Group with
apartment long-term lease operation and management services.

Shanghai Landsea Apartment is ultimately owned as to 50% by
Mr. Tian. Accordingly, Shanghai Landsea Apartment is an
associate of Mr. Tian and the transactions contemplated under
the Operation and Management Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the Operation and
Management Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB33.0 million,
RMB36.0 million and RMB36.0 million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by Shanghai Landsea
Apartment and its subsidiaries to Beihai Langrun and its
subsidiaries under the Operation and Management Framework
Agreement for the Year of 2023 was RMB22.7 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB33.0 million for the Year of
2023.

*  For identification purposes only
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(g) 2023 Landsea Green Management Properties Services and

Properties Consulting Agreement

On 18 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Landsea Green Management (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement
(the “2023 Landsea Green Management Properties Services
and Properties Consulting Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group shall provide Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Services to Landsea Green Management Group for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026.

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Landsea Green Management is directly and indirectly held as to
58.583% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.

The annual caps for service fees under the 2023 Landsea Green
Management Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB40.0 million, RMB40.0 million and
RMB40.0 million, respectively.
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(h)

(i)

112

2023 Mr. Tian Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement

On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Mr. Tian (for himself and on behalf of his
associates, excluding Landsea Green Management and its
subsidiaries but including its joint ventures and associates)
entered into the framework agreement (the “2023 Mr. Tian
Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall provide the
properties services and properties consulting services to Mr. Tian
Associates for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2026.

Mr. Tian, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Mr. Tian Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the 2023 Mr. Tian
Properties Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and
2026 are RMB80.0 million, RMB80.0 million and RMB80.0
million, respectively.

2023 Mr. Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services
Agreement

On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Mr. Tian (for himself and on behalf of his
associates, excluding Landsea Green Management and its
subsidiaries but including its joint ventures and associates)
entered into the framework agreement (the “2023 Mr. Tian
Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group shall provide exclusive property
sales agency services to Mr. Tian Associates for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026.
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Mr. Tian, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Mr. Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The respective annual maximum amounts of agency security
deposits payable by the Group to Mr. Tian Associates under the
20283 Mr. Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB120.0 million, RMB80.0 million
and RMB50.0 million, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Please refer to the section headed “Material Acquisitions and

Disposals” for further details of the connected transactions of the
Group entered into for the FY2023.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BY
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-

executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected

transactions and have confirmed that such continuing connected

transactions were:

(1)

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

conducted on normal commercial terms or better terms; and
carried out pursuant to the agreements of relevant transactions,

the terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

ARAEER FFRTESREBBRRASL

ERARBNBEEALT -Ht —FT-=%F
BEEBRYFHEERERB A T L

TR ZEK EMREIFE14AZITB FAR A

MRFERERS -
BE_ZT_WNE —ZT_RAFR-_T-RF
T-A=+—HALE=EFEEF AKE

TEC=FHAEBRYEEERERBEH
RENBLTEBBEANRIERISHNFER
BeEINABARKEI20088T AR
80.0EBTRARKS00EETT

BEXS
FRAASBER T _=-MFITUNBER
FIE - FLHIEREBREE] -

28 %

HEVFATESFHARAENSE
BERS

BHE EMAAE14A51E 2 EBIIENTES

EEFFERER S VEHIARSTHERERS
(1) RARE-REBAEXEEBRERFIL:

@ B REEGRRBEERTET K

B REFEIZNHHET MKXFHERBA

FeE WANAAQARRNERNE -

MRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH 113



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EERRE

REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS BY THE AUDITOR

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged to report on the

Group’s continuing connected transactions.

Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their findings

and conclusions of the review in respect of the disclosed continuing

connected transactions:

(1)

114

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
conducted, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual caps as set by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year of 2023 are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected
Transactions” in this annual report, no related party transaction of the
Group falls under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In relation to the continuing connected transactions mentioned above,
the Board confirms that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 17 June 2021, Mr. Tian and Honor Limited, the controlling
shareholders of the Company, executed a deed of non-competition in
favour of the Company to the effect that each of them will not, and will
procure each of their respective close associates not to, directly or
indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or otherwise be
involved in any business which may be in competition with the business
of the Group.

Mr. Tian and Honor Limited have provided the Company with a written
confirmation dated 18 March 2023, in which Mr. Tian and Honor
Limited confirmed that, from the Listing Date to the date of such written
confirmation, they did not have and their close associates did not have
interest in any business apart from the business of the Group which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF OR
EXEMPTION

There is no provision on pre-emptive rights in the Articles of Association
and under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Company is not aware
of any tax relief or exemption available to any existing shareholder by
reason of his/her holding of the securities of the Company.

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in any
doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in the shares of the
Company.

It is emphasized that none of the Company or its directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for,
purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares of the
Company.

LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Company did not enter into any new loan agreement, which
contained any covenant relating to specific performance of the
controlling shareholders and shall be disclosed as required by Rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors have confirmed that the
Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float under
the Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the latest
five financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary”
on pages 260 to 263 of this report.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report, respectively.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Group has purchased and maintained liability insurance for the
Directors for the Year of 2023, which provides appropriate cover for
the Directors.

The permitted indemnity is in force for the benefit of one or more
Directors of the Company, or of an associate company of the
Company, during the financial year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023, other than those purchased by the trustee for the
share award scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning management and administration of the whole
or substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into
during the Year of 2023, or subsisted at the end of the Year of 2023.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

@

On 19 February 2024, Suzhou Luteng Healthcare Technology
Co. Ltd.* (B&k N TH 4k BE (2R RHE B BR A 7)) (‘Luteng Healthcare
Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
procurer, and Nanjing Qingyu Elderly Service Co. Ltd.* (I R &
& EZ R AR D F) (“Qingyu Elderly Service”), as service
provider, entered into the service procurement agreement (the
“Service Procurement Agreement”) in relation to the
procurement of elderly care related services. The contract price
of the Service Procurement Agreement is RMB5,371,000 (tax
inclusive).

Qingyu Elderly Service is indirectly held as to 50% by Mr. Tian.
As Qingyu Elderly Service is an associate of Mr. Tian, it is a
connected person of the Company. The Service Procurement
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 8 March 2024, Nanjing Landsea Property Management Co.,
Ltd.* (A R EE B B R A7) (“Nanjing Landsea
Property”) and Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd.*
(EGIEMEEFELL AR AR (‘Wuxi Huilin Yiju”), both
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
the property transfer agreement (the “Property Transfer
Agreement”) with () Shanghai Langxin Property Development
Limited* (_E/8BA{E B HbE R E B R A A)); (i) Suzhou branch of
Shanghai Landsea Investment Management Limited* (= /& BA 3%
®EEEBRAREMND AR (i) Shanghai Langming
Property Development Limited* (_E /8 EZE HEFREZE AR A F));
(iv) Shanghai Langxu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* (_t /& EA
MEEEEAEMRAF]) and (v) Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd* (_E
BEEEEAR AR (“Shanghai Kunhong’), collectively (the
“Members of Landsea Green Management Group”),
pursuant to which Shanghai Kunhong agreed to transfer the
target property to Group Member A to settle the corresponding
outstanding amounts owed by Members of Landsea Green
Management Group to Nanjing Landsea Property and Wuxi Huilin
Yiju at a consideration of RMB9,071,671.

*  For identification purposes only
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Members of Landsea Green Management Group are indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Landsea Green Management.
Landsea Green Management is directly and indirectly held as to
58.563% by Mr. Tian. As Landsea Green Management is an
associate of Mr. Tian, it is a connected person of the Company.
The Property Transfer Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save for the above, there is no other material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or the Group after 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group for the relevant year
are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year of 2023, no forfeited contributions had been used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of remuneration of Directors and five highest paid individuals for
the relevant year are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the Year of 2024 (the
“AGM”) is expected to be held on Friday, 14 June 2024 at Landsea
Green Center, Building 5, Lane 280, Linhong Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, China. The notice of the AGM will be published on the
Company’s website (www.landseawy.com) and the website of the
Stock Exchange and despatched to the shareholders of the Company
in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EERRE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
THE AGM

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday,11 June 2024 to Friday, 14
June 2024, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7 June 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year of
2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

There has been no change of the auditor of the Company since the
Listing.

ACCOUNTS REVIEW

The Audit Committee of the Company has been established in
accordance with Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to review
and supervise the Company’s financial reporting, risk management and
internal control systems, and assist the Board in performing its duties
to the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year of 2023, and discussed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
internal controls, financial reporting and other matters, with the Group’s
management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable environmental
protection laws and regulations and has implemented relevant
environmental protection measures in compliance with the required
standards under applicable PRC laws and regulations.

For further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance will be disclosed in the ESG Report of the Company for
the Year of 2023 to be published at the same time as this report in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The 2023 ESG Report will be
published on the website of the Company at www.landseawy.com and
can be accessed at the section headed “Sustainability Development”
of the Company and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board
Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited

Mr. Tian Ming
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B

To the Shareholders of Landsea Green Life Service Company
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Life Service
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 133 to 259, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of trade receivables and other
receivables
° Impairment assessment of goodwiill
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Key Audit Matter
BARETSRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ESTNAEERRETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and other receivables

B 5 W 5 TR R A b B 558 7Y el 18 5P 1

Refer to note 3.1(b) (Credit risk), note 23 (Trade receivables),
note 24 (Prepayments and other receivables) and note 4(a)
(Critical accounting estimates and judgments for impairment
of receivables) to the consolidated financial statements.
FE2REAMBRRME3AD) EERR) - HE23(E5
JEWCFRIR) ~ BT 5 24 (FEAH FRIA Ko H ) & W RRIE) K Bt 5E 4(a)
(BWFIEREN B EH T R FAE) -

As at 31 December 2023, net carrying amount of the Group’s
trade receivables and other receivables was RMB215.19
million and RMB117.07 million respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised expected
credit loss (“ECL”) provision of RMB145.48 million and
RMB35.54 million respectively against trade receivables and
other receivables.

RZFBEZ=F+=-A=+—H  BESEEZEKFERH
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For trade receivables and other receivables with remarkably
different credit risk characteristics and occurrence of credit
impairment, management evaluated the distribution of
expected cash flows under multiple scenarios based on
experience of historical credit loss, business model, current
situations and forecasts of future conditions of contract
counterparties, and made corresponding provision for ECL
according to ECL rate and the related probability weight under
different scenarios. ECL was recognised on an individual
basis.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and other receivables are included below.
A B 5 e Y TR IE I E A FE WK TR TR E AT (A AR
BHRTX e

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and process of impairment assessment of trade
receivables and other receivables and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors.
BMTHREEEYE S EWIE & H MY RIE R E T b
ETHAEZERERIRE  BERMAGF I EEREZNIE
& R E B A R e E A KT 1% - Rk E R EE SRRt Y [E
AR -

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the
key controls over the Group’s assessment of ECL provision for
trade receivables and other receivables.

BT FAERMEIR EEEHEZRWFIAREM
EBRIEN TR E B BB EET e E Z i -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
provision for ECL of trade receivables and other receivables to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation process
by comparing the ECL as estimated in the prior year against
the actual collection performance of the customers and other
debtors in the current year.
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Key Audit Matter
HARETSRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ESTNAEERREETEE

For trade receivables and other receivables without
occurrence of credit impairment, they have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. Provision for ECL
of trade receivables is estimated based on historical data,
including the past settlement profile and incurred credit losses
in observed periods, and existing market conditions with
adjustment to reflect forward looking factors. Provision for
ECL of other receivables is measured at a probability-weighted
amount that reflects the possibility that a credit loss occurs,
and time value of money with consideration of past settlement
patterns, current conditions of the debtors and forward-
looking macro-economic information.
HNARBECGERENTEHEEEENESRKFIE &
BERBARNEERREBHE S EREKRBETHAE -
BHRWHERBEEBERERE L EURMLT  BREBE
REBAKBEBAAEENEEEBRARRRETR - Wi
THRBARMAEERE - i EWHIAERBEEEER
MENESFETE ZeBERREEEBEZENITREMER
BEEMKEEEER TERBTHEEER B ANE AR
ARAEMRBEEER -

We consider impairment assessment of trade receivables and
other receivables a key audit matter due to the significance of
receivables balance and the significant judgments and
estimates made by management in the impairment
assessment.

BAIRE 5 YR IR K H At FE W R IBRUE FT (4 A A = 5t
B2 READEWSREESRVBENEEREEETRE
ATl B 1 B K B R b E T e

We assessed the reasonableness of methods and assumptions
used and judgments made by management by (a) assessing
the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning methodology, (b)
inquiring management regarding the credit worthiness of
customers and other debtors, (c) analysing historical payment
pattern of customers and other debtors, (d) checking the
accuracy, on a sample basis, of the key data inputs such as
the aging schedule of trade receivables and other receivables,
(e) testing the accuracy of the calculations of ECL rates based
on the historical loss and forward-looking information, (f)
evaluated the rationale of management’s assumptions of
expected cash flow distribution based on business model, and
ECL rate and related probability weight under different
scenarios and (g) evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-
looking adjustments made by management;
BMERATAATEERERA T ERKRERAKLAIEH
SRt @ ERPEEBRERTEZNEEN (O
MERBEAZTFREMEBANGEE 02 MEF KA
EBANEL MR dmEREERE AR (WE
55 FE MR IR e HL A e U AR TR B BR S R P R ) O BT 0 ()R
BE S BB LA EEAATAREEER R E N ERE
NERBECERATEEEENBERReRENENRENE
BURQALERBEETRABR TMELNREMERARNE
B4

We evaluated the results of management’s sensitivity analysis
using reasonably possible changes of the relevant key

parameters.
KFEREEERE2EN A B ET(EEE RN U
EAhER -
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Key Audit Matter
BARETSRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ESTNAEERRETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwiill

& el 8 AT A

Refer to note 21 (Goodwill) and note 4(d) (Critical accounting
estimates and judgments for impairment of goodwill) to the
consolidated financial statements.

B2HEA VKRR T 21 (FE) R 4(d) (BERER
RAg e st bt RAE) -

As at 31 December 20283, the Group had goodwill of
RMB181.04 million.
RZEBE_=ZFF+_A=+—H AEENEEAARK

e —

181.04 A& T °

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management assessed the impairment of goodwill by
determining the recoverable amounts of the cash generated
units (“CGU”) based on higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use (VIU). The VIU calculation used
discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial budgets
approved by management. Management has engaged an
independent qualified valuer to assist them in the goodwill
impairment assessment.
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We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of ECL
provision of trade receivables and other receivables.
BMARE S EKFHIEREMENFIETEBREEEEEE
ATEH BB ERM -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgements
and estimates used in the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and other receivables to be supportable by
available evidence.

RIEFTAITIZ R - HAFIE IR B 5 UK IA & CE A JE KR
TREEE BB TR A Rt BRI B ER X -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill are included below.

BT B ETRERN R RFEN T -

We obtained an understanding of management’s assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
BMESHEBEERERENGONTERETFNTRE HA
NG hEr N HEE AR E S At E A E e E 5= (g
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We evaluated management’s identification of CGUs and
allocation of goodwill based on the Group’s accounting policy
and our understanding of the Group’s business.
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Key Audit Matter
HARETSRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ESTNAEERREETEE

Significant judgments and estimates were involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment. These significant judgments
and estimates include the adoption of appropriate model and
methodology to perform goodwill impairment assessment and
the use of key assumptions in the VIU calculation, which
primarily include annual revenue growth rates, gross profit
margins, long-term growth rates and discount rates. The
judgments and estimates are subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
goodwill impairment assessment is considered significant due
to uncertainty of significant assumptions used.
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We consider impairment assessment of goodwill a key audit
matter due to the significance of the goodwill balance and the
significant judgments and estimates made by management in
the goodwill impairment assessment.

BPRBAERENEREARENZE REARBEERT
BEAREEEBEEITREREN ERIELERHE K&

We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the external valuer engaged by management.
BMARTEEERAOINBTEMONER  BEEHR
ZEIL -

We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill
impairment and assess the appropriateness of the model and
methodology adopted by management to perform goodwill
impairment assessment and the discount rates, long-term
growth rates used by management, with the involvement of our
in-house valuation experts.
BPRBERENBEREN G YERMABHESR
H2ET %ﬁaﬁﬁmﬁ@ﬂ@%ﬁ%%%m&ﬂﬁﬁ
FEMEREMRANURERRARRXIZREE -

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the VIU calculation, including comparing
annual revenue growth rates and gross profit margins in the
financial budgets approved by management with the relevant
historical financial data and market data, where applicable.
B ETEREREEFEFEANETERENGIENE
BREEFERSEREMENEEERERH ENVKREE
HEEE - EERMBEIRART SR (WER) EfTHER -

We performed a retrospective review by comparing the
estimated cash flow forecasts prepared in previous year with
the current year’s actual results to assess the reliability and
historical accuracy of management’s forecasting process.
BPETTOELEES SLE-—FENRKFRSRERA
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Key Audit Matter
BARETSRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ESTNAEERRETEE
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We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity analysis
performed by management on the key assumptions to
understand the impact of reasonable changes in assumptions
on the recoverable amounts.
BMAEBTERBATOHERMESTNSEM - AR
BRNEEBRECHAIKRESENTE -

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of
the goodwill impairment assessment.

BFRE T BEREMN G ENEMERENE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the significant
judgements and estimates in relation to the goodwill
impairment assessment to be supportable by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEZHEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

E=FT==aft=H=+—HI|FFE

For the year ended

BEUTRYILLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= T

+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 AR®T T ARETFIT

Revenue Y g 6 931,275 889,454
Cost of sales and services HE KRS A 9 (785,898) (691,246)
Gross profit EF 145,377 198,208
Other income HAB WA 7 5,393 11,398
Selling expenses HE R 9 (23,768) (21,388)
Administrative expenses TR 9 (113,097) (102,192)

Impairment losses under expected FEHEEBEBRA THRESE

credit loss model 3.1 (b) (181,021) (45,914)
Other (losses)/gains — net Hh (E518) W= F 58 8 (2,428) (1,880)
Operating (loss)/profit e (FE),uF (169,544) 38,232
Finance income B 10 1,488 2,213
Finance costs BT R R 10 (117) (76)
Finance income — net B FSUR AR 58 10 1,371 2,137
Share of net profit of associates FEAG S & A BF W= 19 201 766
Share of net profit of joint ventures EiEE & EF K= 20 616 51
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATISHIAT (B518) %A (167,266) 41,186
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEHiE R,/ (F) 11 32,004 (11,900)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(E8), EF (135,262) 29,286
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended

BEUTRAYILLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= T
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARET T
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth2mE (F8) W
Items that may be reclassified to AJEEM 7B EmmIER ¢
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — BMEGINEEHE K EFE
foreign operations (4,246) (19,932)
Items that will not be reclassified to B TIEEH S EZERAER -
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — MEBINEEHE N Z 5
foreign operations 4,155 23,443
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEHM2E (FR) W
for the year, net of tax HERBIE (91) 3,511
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRZE(BR) \WHHEHE
for the year (135,353) 32,797
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LA T & 5 E{EFE R (BE), HEF :
— Equity owners of the Company — RNRRERER A (134,233) 28,420
— Non-controlling interests — FEfE R (1,029) 866
(135,262) 29,286
Total comprehensive (loss)/income DTELFEMERZE
for the year attributable to: (FBR), = E%E
— Equity owners of the Company — KRR HEE A (134,324) 31,931
— Non-controlling interests — FEER R (1,029) 866
(135,353) 32,797
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable Z2Q T#FZEEF A
to equity owners of the Company EiEER (BR),BR
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER (EB), /& 12 (0.349) 0.074
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRS (B18),/&F 12 (0.349) 0.074
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should it 4R & 2 [ Uk 25 35 & B2 BE BT B 5= — GBI A8 ©

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SREERER

As at 31 December 2023 R—ZE-_=4¢+=-HA=+—H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-= —_E-—
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETx ARETF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties TEME 15 365 750
Property, plant and equipment VI - HE REE 16 14,856 16,931
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 17 1,415 1,291
Intangible assets EEEE 18 127,919 48,718
Interests in associates BN TR FERS 19 1,398 2,377
Interests in joint ventures REEPENER 20 1,467 851
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISREE 27 68,099 32,102
Goodwill SRS 21 181,041 60,750
396,560 163,770
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables 2 5 W IE 23 215,188 309,095
Inventories FE 1,091 1,049
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE N CH Ath fE W SR8 24 137,562 228,117
Restricted cash SR HIIEE 25 4,643 780
Cash and cash equivalents BHehIREEEY 25 332,783 358,166
691,267 897,207
Total assets EEH#E 1,087,827 1,060,977
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBEEB
Lease liabilities HEARE 17 751 502
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTBRAE 27 20,543 10,228
21,294 10,730
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SREERER

As at 31 December 2023 R—ZE-_=%¢+=-HA=+—H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-= —E=-=
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®E TR ARETF T
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 kEMENFIE 26 564,046 411,824
Contract liabilities BHEaE 6 210,873 207,293
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 608 570
Current income tax liabilities BEAFRIS A E 25,906 31,532
801,433 651,219
Total liabilities EEHBEE 822,727 661,949
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to AAREREEARLELRRFE
equity owners of the Company
Share capital A% 7 28 3,421 3,421
Reserves e 30 255,455 388,344
258,876 391,765
Non-controlling interests R ER 31 6,224 7,263
Total equity RSB 265,100 399,028
Total liabilities and equity EBEREREE 1,087,827 1,060,977

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in FilisRE BEBBERELEFEH M T —OFEIE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 133 to 259 were approved by
the Board on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Wu Xu
R 8

Director

g

Liu Chao
28

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity owners of the Company

RRAEREA Al
Share-based Non-
Share Share - compensation Employee QOther Statutory  Translation Retained controling Total
capital premium reseve  share trust TESeNves Teserve: Reserve eamings Total interests equity
fEsH  ESRO
fx  RihEE G i AtBE  EERE  EREE  REEW B krRER  RaeE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WE  ARBTr ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2022 W=8--%-5-A 3421 268,017 - - (81,880) 16,667 (8,757) 159,947 361415 4,261 365,676
Profitfor the year EREA . . . . . - Y 28420 866 29986
Exchange difference arising from  £E SN EHEEH
translation of foreign operations  EXZE - - - - - - 3511 - 3511 - 3511
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2ER#EE
the year - - - - - - 3511 28420 31,931 866 32,797
Movement of employee share trust B2 IR(MEREERE
account - - - (2873 - - - - (2,873 - (2,873
Employee share-based compensation {8 & fRE K - - 1292 - - - - - 1292 - 1292
Acqistion of subsidiaries WERERE kX - - - - - - - - - 1915 1915
Contrboutions from non-controling. 3R RS £ &
interests 31 - - - - - - - - - 221 22
Aopropriation to statutoryreserve. ~ EEERER 30fe) - = - - - 4,800 - 4.800) - - -
Subtotal of transactions with AANGREREA
equity owners of the Company X5 /it - - 1,092 (2873) - 4,800 - 4,800 (1,581) 2,136 555
At 31 December 2022 RZB=Zf
+-A=t-H 3421 268,017 1,292 (2873 (81,880) 20,467 (24p) 183,567 391,765 7263 399,028
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SEREEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity owners of the Company

FRRRRERARL
Share-based Non-
Share Share  compensation  Employee Other  Statutory  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve  share trust reserves reserve Reserve eamings Total interests equity
RESRH  EERS
Bx  RBEE i R bRk iERE  EXGE  REEA & FARER  REER
Note RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

i ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARWTZ ARBTR ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARETR  ARMTR

At1 January 2023 W-g-zE-A-7 3 268017 1,202 (087 B8 20467 (4 183567 391765 T8 309028
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (134,233 (134,233) (1029)  (135,262)
Exchange difference arising ~ BEFNERELH

from translation of EXER

foreign operations - - - - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive loss A2EFE - - - - - - ) - (o1) - o)

Total comprehensive lossfor ~ FA2AFELE
the year - - - - - - O (134283 (13434 (1029 (135359

Movement of employee share trust  EERR (3 EHELE)

account - - - (1,265) - - - - (1,265) - (1,265)
Employee share-based compensation’g & f 12 8 - - 2,700 - - - - - 2,700 - 2,700
Acqistion of subsidiaries WEHBAR 3 - - - - - - - - - (10) (10)
Appropriation to statutory reserve HZEEGIE R - - - - - 4,203 - (4,229) - - -

Subtotal of transactions with ~ AR FEEEFA
equity owners of the Company ~ X5 /Mt - - 2,700 (1,265) - 4203 - (4,229) 1,435 (10) 1,425

At 31 December 2023 RZB=zf
tzA=t-R 3421 268,017 3992 (4,138) (81,880) 24,690 (331) 45,111 258,876 6204 265,100

HE L g

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read — _E 3t 47 & #e 5 5 B 5% i ERL BB BT PY o — GBI 78
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E —Z —

=F+A=+—RHIFE

For the year ended
BZELUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ETR ARETIT

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital injection in a joint venture

Capital injection in an associate

Dividend received from an associate

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Funding to related parties

Repayment of funding to related parties

Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash and cash equivalents

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from related parties
Repayment to related parties
Contributions from non-controlling interests
Principal elements of lease payments
Shares bought back for

employee share trust

Net cash used in financing activities

REFDHRERE
RERPMERE
ENFEH

AR TSR % F

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁs
REELETE
REERAEE

Sl WNCIE G )
BEYWE  BEERE
BEELEE

HEWE - BFEMREMEHR

HEREMESHIA

FIRAEE T &
[FIRAEE T th & B

BB ARNR  MREE

EREFED

REEZBHEEFHE

METHRERE
B S

K B RaEgt 77 B PSR 0R
[F) 8 gk 075 22 3K
FFEB ST E
HENRAEZED

S8 B IR (SR D

BEEEHE 2 F5E

34 132,040 70,554

(12,016) (16,652)

120,024 53,902

20 - (800)
19 (200)
19 1,470

16 (4,936) (6,725)

18 (1,916) (3,974)

104 4

128 8,902

35(e) (120,823) (313,566)

35(e) 181,106 207,778

33 (196,916) (26,329)

(141,983) (134,710)

34(o) (117) (76)

35(e) 140 87

35(e) (63) (37)

31 - 221

34(b) (2,076) (1,963)

30 (1,265) (2,873)

(3,381) (4,641)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
BZELUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 ARETR ARETF T

Net decrease in cash and ReRBSEEYRLDFE

cash equivalents (25,340) (85,449)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNReRREFED

beginning of year 358,166 444,093
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNIS B Sk B R & (43) (478)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year FARRERIRESZEEY 25 332,783 358,166

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _F#ll4R & & UL &S 2K /& B2 BE BT P 55 — HFBEI A8 -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1
December 2020 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
the Company'’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of property management services,
community value-added services, value-added services to non-
property owners and apartment operation and management
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 8 July 2021 (the “Listing”).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company and ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company is Honor Limited (“Honor”), a company incorporated
under the laws of British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and Mr. Tian Ming,
the non-executive director of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the
board of the Company (the “Board”) on 28 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(A) COMPLIANCE WITH HKFRSs AND HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) as issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622 (‘HKCO”).

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:
o Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
° Hong Kong Accounting Standards

° Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

— &R
RARFIRZZE_EF+ A —HARBEHREE
EEFIFER2ERTE(—NAAN—FE=ZRE
Bl - & iza RERT) ERERSTMK L A
REBRAA c ANQ A FEMMEE MU R
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARARBREZERRE - KARBIREMBR
Al(GEIAEE]) T2EPEARKNE
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RIS RIEE T RERE M ABRLE M ERR -
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ERE ADRANRBERA R RREIER
fi% 3 & Honor Limited ([Honor ] = — 1R ¥ 2
BRaES ((EBELHEE]) AEEMkL
WAE)) RAEEIERITEEHBPLELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

142

(B)

(€)

HISTORICAL COST CONVENTION
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ADOPTED
BY THE GROUP

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023. The adoption of these
standards and amendments does not have significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position.

° HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts

° Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments
to HKAS 8

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction — Amendments to HKAS
12

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
— Amendments to HKAS 12

° Classification by Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause — Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(D) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING
STANDARDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT ARE
NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
BEGINNING ON 1 JANUARY 2023 AND HAVE
NOT BEEN EARLY ADOPTED BY THE GROUP

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

A BAIARRE

2

RBLEE )
(D) HITEARBEELBITR
HMEMAR=-ZE=-=F—A

=%
—H

Mz BFEER  FRER

KE R TR

Effective for
annual periods

begin

ning on
or after

RUT B
At 3k
FEHEER

Amendments to HKAS 1
BEETEANE1R{EFTAR)

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ERE 1R UEFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BEMBREEAFE 165 (BFIA)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BRI ERE 7R R BB RS EL
E75% (BT A)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BEDERRBNIERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
M ZEAERBEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERERMBEERE

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEBRE L

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by

1 January 2024
—E-MFE-—A—H

1 January 2024

—E-MF—A—H

1 January 2024

—E-NF—-HA—H

1 January 2024

—Z-NFE—A—H

the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

BB RRBEST (KER])

Amendments to HKAS 21

BRGIERIE 215 (BRI A) Rz A] s

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

PBHRER A 25—
EHEFETIE

Lack of Exchangeability

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and

= =h

ERAREAREREE G

1 January 2024

—E-NE—A—H

1 January 2025
—T-hE—H—H

its Associate or Joint Venture

ARARELERC HANEELE

BERMBREENF 107 BB LA

55 285% (BT A) SR A
These new and amendments to existing standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

REEREBEN

AEBEEHRZEHMTLENNERE
ERT ARSI AN R BN E B SRR
RAIRAKOR ZA WMEAZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taking
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk.

(a) Market risk
(i Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s businesses are
principally conducted in RMB. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not
have major non-RMB assets and liabilities
denominated in Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) and
United States dollar (“‘US$”). The Group has not
entered into any forward exchange contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group closely monitors trend of interest
rate and its impact on the Group’s interest rate
risk exposure. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group currently has
not used any interest rate swap arrangements
but will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group

has no interest bearing liabilities at floating-
interest rate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverability of these receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverability of these receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

o Cash in banks
o Trade receivables
° Other receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit loss prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected credit loss provision for trade
receivables. The Group measures the expected
credit losses on a combination of individual and
collective basis. The expected credit loss also
incorporates forward looking information.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
expected credit loss provision for trade
receivables reconciles to the opening expected
credit loss for that provision as follows:

3 HBERER®
3.1 BiEmEk

FSESE

(b) EEREE(E)

(i)

EZEUHA
AEBEREBHBREE
AIZEOFR MR E M LTI AR
BREEBERFELRE &
ZH T FFE 5 EUGRIAE
AEEYENEEERR
ﬁﬂli%@%éﬂﬂ&%%i‘f

EGHERBEEFERE R
ﬁﬂf:ﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬁ#r&ﬁ@ﬁ%'\‘iiéf
o

RZEZ=FR=F=_—
+ZA=+—RH BHEK
FRIETE HA {5 & s 18 1 1 2 A
MEREEEBEERELHRN

-
Trade
receivables
B 5 EWFIE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Opening expected credit loss provision R-ZE--F—HF—HBH
as at 1 January 2022 HUBHEEERRE (18,648)
Additional provision BIMNEE (25,839
Written off i 85 35
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB R B A A (3,935)
Closing expected credit loss provisionas R-ZE-—F+=-H=+—HHK
at 31 December 2022 HARBHEEEERE (48,387)
Additional provision FEINE A (145,482)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uit 8 BT /28 2 ) (2,012
Closing expected credit loss provision R=B=-=F+=-HA=+—HH®
as at 31 December 2023 HARFEHEEHERE (195,881)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERBREE®

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 MERAKBEE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERE(E)
() Trade receivables (Continued) 0 BZENNIE(E)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the RZBE_=FR T
expected credit loss provision for the trade +ZA=+—H BFEWYK
receivables was determined as follows: HEEHEEEERENT

B

Carrying
Gross amount
Expected Carrying Expected (net of
credit loss amount credit loss impairment
31 December 2023 rate at default provision provision)
BHEE RELQR AHEE BEE
“E-=ft+t=fB=+-H B3 EEAE FREE CGIREERR)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  AR®TR  AR%TR

Provision on individual basis 1B B B E B

— Group | - F—H8 81.17% 58,527 (47,505) 11,022

— Group |l .| 76.79% 49,681 (38,149) 11,532

— Group Il = 32.62% 65,530 (21,379) 44,151

— Group IV — FNHE 72.90% 24,464 (17,834) 6,630

— Group V — FRH 81.83% 50,012 (40,926) 9,086
66.79% 248,214 (165,793) 82,421

Provision on collective basis SREERE

— Group 2 — 28 18.48% 162,855 (30,088) 132,767
18.48% 162,855 (30,088) 132,767
47.65% 411,069 (195,881) 215,188
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

Group |, Group I, Group lll and Group IV
represent groups of trade receivables with
different credit risk characteristics including
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
associates and joints ventures of the ultimate
controlling shareholder (“related parties”). Due
to the impact of continued downturn in China
real estate market and downward pressure on
the economy, the cash flows of such related
parties served by the Group are tightening
since the second half of 2023, resulting in
increasing trade receivables turnover days. As
at 31 December 2023, trade receivables
amounting to RMB198,202,000 from related
parties were assessed on an individual basis.
The Group considers there has been a
significant risk on collection of the trade
receivables and evaluated the distribution of
expected cash flows under multiple scenarios
based on historical credit loss experience,
operating model, current situations and
forecasts of future conditions of contract
counterparties. The management of the
Company assessed the expected credit loss
provision of the trade receivables due from
related parties by considering scenarios
weightings, bond price of Landsea Green
Management Limited and other factors, and
prepared sensitivity analysis using reasonably
possible changes of the relevant key
parameters. The management considered the
expected credit loss provision of the trade
receivables due from related parties provided at
31 December 2023 is appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

150

()

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Group V represent trade receivables due from
third parties arising from low-quality resident
property project. As at 31 December 2023,
trade receivables amounting to
RMB50,012,000 from third parties arising from
resident properties was assessed separately as
these receivables due from low-quality projects
that the Group had withdrawn from a service
provider during the year ended 31 December
2023 which leads to the low recoverability of
related receivables. The management assessed
the expected credit loss provision of the trade
receivables by considering scenarios
weightings, the current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors that
might affect the ability of the customers to
settle the related receivables.

Trade receivables on collective basis arise
mainly from resident properties. The
counterparties in Group 2 are mainly individuals
or property owner’s committees. To measure
the expected credit loss, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. As at 31 December 2023, the
expected loss rate for such trade receivables
was based on historic loss rates, including the
credit rating of counter parties and the aging
profile of these receivables at each reporting
period and probability of default of counter
parties on an ongoing basis. The Group
accounts for credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit loss on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
and adjust for forward looking macroeconomic
data.
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()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKERERE®
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 BERAKEE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERE(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) 0 BZENNIE(E)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the N E-_=FR_FT -
expected credit loss provision was determined +ZA=+—8  RBEIH
based on due date as follows: HEEMNBEAEESERE
LU
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4years 4-5years More than 5 years
SR-F -EmE ME=§ ZERE mZEf BENL
Related Third  Related Third ~ Related Third  Related Third  Related Third ~ Related Third
it S5 parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties  parties Total
31 December 2023 tZA=1-A BYr $c5  BES %35 BEF %25 BEA $Sr BES %35 BER £Z5 0 &%
Expected creditloss rate EHEEEER 4585%  2081%  6969%  3462%  7040%  5096%  75A7%  63.5%%  T5AT%  7354% NA  100.00%
Gross caryingamount B EAE
— Trade receivables - BAENTE
(note 23) (Hi£23) 80235 101,148 57013 64958 59701 27812 1027 12138 2 4837 - 1974 411,069
Expected credltloss REEEER
provision B
— Trade receivables —GHENEE (36790 (21,00) (397%5) (22489) (47405) (14174 () (M) (165)  (3550) - (1974 (195881)
Totd tradereceivables ~ ZHENFEAE 43445 80030 17218 42469 12206 13638 %/ 4427 61 1280 - - 215,188
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4years 45 years More than 5 years
SR-F —EWE e “EME UESiES RENE
Related Thid  Related Thid  Related Thrd  Related Thrd  Related Third ~ Related Third
“ZoCF paries  paties  parties  paties  paties  paties  paties  paties  pates  paties  paties  paries Total
31 December 2022 tZA=1-A BEr £Zp BER 5 BRR  E=p BMy ESh BMR 25 BBR EZh ot
Expected creditlossrate  BEEEFEBE 12.24% 807%  1224%  1940%  1224%  39.00%  1224%  61.22% NA  8383% N/A~100.00%
Grosscamyingamount  RELE
— Trade receivables - BARNGE
(note 23) (F&E23) 107807 123782 72061 20236 1,027 1342 827 5068 - 134 - 2199 357482
Expected credlt loss BHEEER
provision BE
— Trade receivables —BHEWEE (13205 (0856 8820 (59 (126 G048 (0 (3289 - ) - (1501 (4887)
Total trade receivables EC) - evE 94691 113926 63241 23707 901 8376 726 2402 - 47 - 698 309,09
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other receivables
The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the expected credit loss provision is
determined for each of those categories. The
Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit loss
on a timely basis. In calculating the expected
credit loss rates, the Group considers both
historical loss rates and forward-looking
macroeconomic data. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

BEERER &)
3.1 BBEBREE®)

(b) 1=ERE(E)
(i) B ERKE

AN &R E B H fth FE U RIE B
=EfER - REEEFERER
REETSHEINEREES
BRENIR - AEBEER
kEEETIREREEES
BEBEEERR AR &
HHEBEEERXR A&
Bt RELEEERATESE
LERERE - AEERH
EEEBBEXMKBEN®ER
Bhafian T

Expected
Group definition Basis for recognition of credit loss
Category of category expected credit loss provision rate
EHEE
HEhl FEEHHBENESR BRAAREFEFRBRBHEE BiE=E
Stage one Receivables have a low risk of 12 months expected credit loss. Where 1%-5%
default and a strong capacity  the expected lifetime of an asset is
to meet contractual cash less than 12 months, expected losses
flows are measured at its expected lifetime
FE—MEER EWRIEBNZARBRRERE 12@ABREESE - MEEEH
BEERRENMEEL FEBMLR12EA - REEE
REnE REBBMGEENTE
Stage two Receivables for which there Lifetime expected credit loss 5%-10%

FEPEER

Stage three

FE=MEER

is a significant increase in
credit risk since initial

recognition
BRI EERRBEE
I e FE WA

Receivables for which there
is credit loss since initial
recognition

B RREEEEER
HY JE U 3R I8
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FENEREEER

Lifetime expected credit loss

FEPEREEER

10%-100%



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERBREE#

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 BERAKEE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERE(E)
(i) Other receivables (Continued) (i) EfEWKHIE (&)
The expected credit loss provision for other RIEBE_=FR T
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 +ZA=+—8 EMEY
reconciles to the opening expected credit loss FIBTEREEBERHEE
provision are as follows: BB EEBEREEERN
T
Amounts Deposits
due from with Returnable
related related earnest
parties parties money Others Total
FE W R B ) RE
FE  AENES HES Hith @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARETRE ARETR ARBT ARETT ARETR

Opening expected credit R=F=—%+_=#

loss provision as at =+—AHED

31 December 2021 BHEEHRRE 6) (3,835) = (1,473 (5,314)
Additional provision BIMEE (770) (16,115) (3,672) - (20,557)
Recoveries el - - - 482 482
Written off 38 = - - 411 411
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yz E&ff B A &) - - - (193) (193)

Closing expected credit R=ZE=-—%+=#

loss provision as at =+—-BHER

31 December 2022 BHEEBEREE (776) (19,950) (3,672) (773) (25,171)
Additional provision BN (3,452) (30,288) - (5,471) (39,211)
Recoveries lqa| - - 3,672 - 3,672
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4t EEfI B A 7] (13) - - @) 21)

Closing expected credit R=—FE-=%+=#
loss provision as at =+—-AMER
31 December 2023 BHEEBEREE (4,241) (50,238) - (6,252) (60,731)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Other receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
provided for expected credit loss provision
against other receivables as follows:

3 HMKEBRER®
3.1 HMERBEE#)
(b) EERR(E)
(i)  AMpEKIE (&)
RZBE_=FR T
+ZA=+—8 x5Ex5
Hih W HRIBRIEREE

BREGEDT
Carrying
Estimated amount
Expected gross carrying Expected (net of
credit loss amount at credit loss impairment
31 December 2023 Category rate default provision provision)
BHEE RELQR AHEE REE
“Z-=ft+=B=+-H 5l BEE GHEELE BREE (RERERR)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR ARBTR
Amounts due from related parties Stage three 76.00% 5,580 (4,241) 1,339
(note 35(a))
R s Rk 7 3R0E (Pt 35(a)) F=BE
Deposits with related parties (note 35(a)) ~ Stage three 37.59% 133,660 (50,238) 83,422
BN 7 B iE & (Pt 35() F=BE
Others
Hith
— Provision on collective basis Stage one 1.68% 32,862 (553) 32,309
— SREERE F-RER
— Provision on individual basis Stage three 100.00% 5,699 (5,699) -
— [ERIEERE F=RR
177,801 (60,731) 117,070
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BEERER &)
31 BBEBREE®)
(b) EEREE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

For amounts due from related parties and
deposits with related parties, the Group
evaluated the distribution of expected cash
flows under multiple scenarios same as those
described in 3.1(b)(i). Management assessed
the expected credit loss provision by
considering scenarios weightings, the fair value
and liquidity discount of the collaterals and
other factors, and prepared sensitivity analysis
using reasonably possible changes of the
relevant key parameters. Management
considered the expected credit loss provision
of amounts due from related parties and
deposits with related parties provided at 31
December 2023 is appropriate.

MRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH

(i) Other receivables (Continued) (i) EfEWKHIE (&)

Carrying

Estimated amount

Expected  gross carrying Expected (net of

credit loss amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2022 Category rate default provision provision)

HHEER REDR BHEE HKEAEGHE

R+t A=1—H 55 BEX [AEikELE BEERE RERE)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBFT

Amounts due from related parties Stage three 12.24% 6,526 (776) 5,750

(note 35(a))

e W BBt 73 303R (P 51 35(a)) FRE

Deposits with related parties (note 35(a)) ~ Stage three 12.24% 162,997 (19,950) 143,047
BRI BN S (F7350) F-RE

Returnable earnest money (note 35(a)) Stage three 12.24% 30,000 (3,672 26,328
AREMNE S (M 35() F-RE

Others Stage one 2.28% 33,887 (773) 33,114
Hith FRER

233,410 (25,171) 208,239

5t FE LS B Bt U7 Sk T8 e B A g
FEBMEZSmE  AKH
ST £ B2 3.1 () (i) AT 22t 48 [R) &Y
ZEBATHERRE RS
S - EEEBBERER
S ERRNAAEBER
TR B 1 B3R LA R B Ath A = 5T
HIEHEEBERE  WE
FRAEER2EN S EA] 8
BHREIEFRESN - BE
BRER-_Z_=%F+=-H
=+ — B Bt E R T IR
MR T BB IR SR IR
HIEHEEEEREBREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

156

(i)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, other receivables
amounting to RMB5,699,000 from third parties
representing deposit receivables were assessed
separately as these receivables due from low-
quality projects that the Group had withdrawn
from a service provider during the year ended
31 December 2023 which leads to the low
recoverability of related receivables. The Group
considers the above mentioned receivables
were impaired (in stage three) as at 31
December 2023. The Management assessed
the expected credit loss provision of such
receivables by considering scenarios
weightings, the current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors that
might affect the ability of the counterparty to
settle the related receivables. For other
receivables other than those in stage three,
management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual credit
evaluations on the debtors’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability
to pay. These other receivables mainly
represent deposit receivables, payments on
behalf of property owners and advances to
employees which had low historical default
rates and there were no major change in the
composition and risk profile. Thus, these
receivables were under stage one and
management applies 1.68% expected credit
loss rate to the total other receivables for the
year ended December 2023. Credit risk of such
receivables remained stable for the year ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

3 HERBREE#
31 BBEBREE®)

Liquidity risk (c) HnEBELEE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining BENRDECRREESERE
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the RExeRekReFEY I
availability of funding through an adequate amount of BRFETHNE AR EERE
committed credit facilities. HITEQREE -
The Group finances its working capital requirements AEBFZFRANEERENE
mainly through internal resources. The Group’s policy BEESMER AEEMEK
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity REHERRERBHO RS E
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient EHEFK UBRREAFTEAIR
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit ERBECEBEMRATBNEER
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short - AmeHEE R K& RS
and long term. BEEK-
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREREEABRAZESHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on HAFEAHR - BAKEEN S &
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the BELINMAMBBI AR - # =
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in B =FRT__F+=H1
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows =t+—H ZEREENEBAE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can RAEB A HERNGRHKZER
be required to pay as of 31 December 2023 and HMELARIRBERE o
2022.
Less than
1 year or Between Between
repayable 1and 2 2and 5 Over
on demand years years 5years Total
PR-FH
BRER  ANT-EZ2  NTWE
EE k3 i RENE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2023 R=B-=f+-A=t-AH
Trade and other payables* 85 REMENTIE" 433,544 - - - 433,544
Lease liabilties (including interest REBE(BAETENT)
payments) 621 456 337 57 1,471
At 31 December 2022 R-B--#+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables* B9 REMERNTE" 277,224 - - - 277,224
Lease liabilties (including interest REER(BEFERT)
payments) 575 54 329 226 1,184

*

Excluding non-financial liabilities of accruals for staff
costs and value-added tax (“VAT”) and other taxes
payables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBERER®
3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.2 EXEKRER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBEEERANBERAREASERF
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BREERBE N - AERE AR R R E
concern in order to provide returns for owners and benefits MR AEMMEHREREN S - WA
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital R ENE RSB AR ERE R -
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the REFRIFABRERERE  AKEAEE
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AERBREIRGTORKRESRE  MRER
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new BER - BITHRSEGEER -
shares or obtain borrowings.
The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of AEERBEEBEL RETHERE
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated based on the total o L IR BB AER AR S EEG
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is calculated as total o BRREIRERBRENGEEER
borrowings including total lease liabilities and amounts due BRI EE B ERRE R IEN B &
to related parties as shown in the consolidated balance HFTHE
sheet.
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are MRZE_=FR_ZF__F+ZA
as follows: =t+—HMEEBGBLENAT :
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= T
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARET T
Lease liabilities (note 17) HE&E ME17) 1,359 1,072
Amounts due to related parties (note 35(b)) &1~ B8 E 75 2 IE (M 3£ 35(b)) 1,278 1,201
Total debt (EvrEEE 2,637 2,273
Total equity AR 265,100 399,028
Gearing ratio BEEBELE 0.99% 0.57%



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates

and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(A)

(B)

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES

The Group makes expected credit loss provision on
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group used judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history
of customers and other debtors, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
receivables and loss provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see 3.1 (b) above.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management considered each of the acquired group a
separate group of cash-generated-units (“CGU”) and
goodwill has been allocated to each of the acquired group.
Management assessed the impairment of goodwill by
determining the recoverable amounts of the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated based on the higher of value-
in-use calculation and fair value less cost of disposals.
Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment. These significant
judgements and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation method and the use of key
assumptions in the valuation, which primarily include annual
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin, long-term growth
rate and discount rate. Further details are given in note 21.

4

E RS fhat R A

AEEERRMELHE - A RBRE AT
SitiEE BERREE O ROEHBEERS
R Tt B EARR A EEEHH T
—EYBRFEEELRBERAEFLDELNSA
B REREK

(A)

(B)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

160

(€)

(D)

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

FAIR VALUE ASSESSMENT OF THE
CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS AND THE
RECOGNITION OF GOODWILL ARISING
FROM BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified customer
relationships and the recognition of goodwill arising from
business combinations. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the
valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rate, discount rate
and expected useful lives of customer relationships). For
details of the key assumptions used and the impact of
changes to these assumptions see notes 18 and 21.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the Board of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, community value-added services, value-added services
to non-property owners and apartment operation and
management services in the PRC. Management reviews the
operating results of the business as one operating segment to
make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM of the Company regards that there is only one segment
which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

2EEHR

EEERBELIZLERRE [EREER
RE)BEHNBRESECLKLENH - BEE
RREBRRARBNEEZR BEOIRE
R FHEEE D BRI -

HE T =F+"A=+—HIFE XK
SEFETFRENLEREDETERE &
EIEERY  FFEETEERBFRABTLE

EERE EEEREBNEEXEER—
BEEDBETRT  UEHBTFOENE
RAERREE - A ARRMEBEERE
ERBEE—ERNELERREN S -

AEENETELEERUNTE - Ht - &
E_T_=F+_A=+—HLEFEAREE
M2 EKREERE P E -
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6 REVENUE

Revenue comprises of proceeds from property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and apartment operation and
management services. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the

6 W=

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

W B IEMETERY  EXTHERE -
HEZERERABKLEREERBEEA -
REBRBE_ZTE-_=FK
A=+—BLFEMNRESNET :

—EoF+=

For the year ended

BEUTRHYILLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E== T
t=A=t+t-8 +=A=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR T T
Revenue from customers and recognised KB R R PER FE R K
over time
— Property management services — MEEER 703,152 621,786
— Value-added services to non-property — JEEE AR
owners 60,191 101,769
— Community value-added services — B ERTE 24,158 19,998
— Apartment operation and management —NEBREREERE
services 35,626 -
823,127 743,553
Revenue from customers and recognised KB R R IR A B i R 8 W s
at point in time
— Value-added services to non-property — JEEFHRERE
owners 45,991 85,691
— Community value-added services — R IEE RS 62,157 60,210
108,148 145,901
931,275 889,454
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6 REVENUE (continuead)

6 W=

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract AEEDHERUTHREEBEEHNEE
liabilities:
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= T _F
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Contract liabilities related to BT EBEEENENEE
— Property management services — MEEERY 199,331 201,469
— Community value-added services — thE I ERE 10,287 5,411
— Value-added services to non-property — JEEERERE
owners 1,255 413
210,873 207,293

(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVENUE

RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the goods

or services is transferred to the customer. Depending on

the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the

contract, control of the goods or services may be

transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the

goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s

performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

do not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

(A) WEER ST BR

WahEEmIMBHEHEEREEP
B T LARERR. o & an 2 IR H%5 B0 12 Il #E AT B
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1 - B Sk ARG R B R BE A R 485

. REHANE MEFTRSEK
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s AEBEEELABREPRIERIET
BERERINEE %
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6 REVENUE (continued)

164

(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVENUE

RECOGNITION (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or services.

The Group provides property management services and
community value-added services to property owners and
non-property owners and value-added services to non-
property owners. Revenue from providing services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered. The following is a description of the
accounting policy for the principal revenue stream of the
Group.

Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly, quarterly, semi-
annually or annually basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primarily responsible for providing the
property management services to the property owners, the
Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of service.
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6 REVENUE (continuead)
(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVENUE

RECOGNITION (Continued)

Community value-added services

Community value-added services primarily consist of: (i)
home-living services, which primarily include house
cleaning and home repair and maintenance, (ii) public
resources management services, which primarily include
public spaces leasing and advertising activities, (iii) property
agency services, which relates to the sales and leases of
second-hand properties and use rights of car park spaces.

The Group recognises revenue when services are rendered.
Revenue is recognised when the related community value-
added services are rendered at gross basis except for the
public resources management services and property
agency services where the Group acts as an agent, and is
primarily responsible for arranging and monitoring the
services, hence its revenue was recognised at net basis,
which is calculated by certain fixed amount or percentage
of the total property management fees received or the
contract purchase price. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately when the community value-added services are
rendered to the customer.

6 W=
(A) WEBREHEE®)
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6 REVENUE (continued)

166

(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVENUE

RECOGNITION (Continued)

Value-added services to non-property owners
Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include: (i) sales assistance services, which mainly include
visitors reception, on-site cleaning, security, repair and
maintenance services to assist property developers in
showcasing and marketing their properties at the pre-sale
stage; (i) preliminary consultancy services and other pre-
delivery services, including cleaning, inspection, repair and
maintenance services to non-property owners at the pre-
delivery stage and to a lesser extent, repair and
maintenances services after delivery where such services
are required by property developers based on inspection of
relevant properties; (i) property agency services for sales
of properties owned by property developers.

The Group agrees the price for each service with the non-
property owners upfront and recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

Apartment lease operation and management services
The Group enters into operation and management service
contracts with Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industrial
Development Limited (E /BB EEXERER A7)
and its subsidiaries and other independent third parties,
pursuant to which the Group provides the apartment
operation and management services for long-term
apartment lease projects including but not limited to: (1)
early-stage consultation services; (2) renovation work
management services; (3) daily operation and management
services; (4) marketing, planning and promotion services;
(5) commercial business promotion services; and (6) special
consulting services.

The Group charges a service fee for operation and
management service according to the terms in the relevant
contracts, which is generally a certain proportion of total
rental and other income and the revenue is recognised over
time in the period in which the services are rendered.
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6 REVENUE (continuead)

(A)

(B)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVENUE
RECOGNITION (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheet as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if
recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers services to the customer, the Group
presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever
is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. The increase in
contract liabilities was mainly due to the growth of the
Group’s business.

6 W=
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6 REVENUE (continued)

168

(C) REVENUE RECOGNISED IN RELATION TO

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

Wz ()

(€)

RENE BRI RS

TREJINAREHRREESNARE
ERAW ST -

For the year ended
BZEUTAHILEE

31 December 31 December

For property management services, value-added services
to non-property owners and apartment lease operation and
management services, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount that equals to the right to invoice which
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date, on a monthly basis. The
Group has elected the practical expedient for not to
disclose the remaining performance obligations for these
type of contracts.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in
short period of time, which is generally less than a year,
and the Group has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclose the remaining performance obligations for these
type of contracts.
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2023 2022
—E== —ZET-
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included FFAFVIENEBEESRNERER
in the balance of contract liabilities at the Uiz
beginning of the year
— Property management services — MEEERS 198,562 154,044
— Community value-added services — R IEERS 5,318 4,976
— Value-added services to non-property  — FE 3 12 (E R
owners 413 981
204,293 160,001
(D) UNSATISFIED PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS (D) REITHENERE

WMEREERS  FXERERGEA
BREREERBNE AREEAR
BRRAUERNSHAER NG S
HERHEASELSRICARTFPRE
WHNBE ASECEREREES
A THREZEFEOBLNEKRET
BHELE -

ALERERGNE  ERATTE—
FOERHARE MAKBECEEE
REETE  FTREZFAORLN
WARBITRORME -



7 OTHER INCOME

7

HA g A

For the year ended

BEUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

VAT deductibles (a) A (@)
Government grants (b) B 48 B (o)
Others Hitb

VAT deductibles mainly included additional deduction of
input value-added tax applicable to the Company and its
certain subsidiaries.

Government grants mainly represented financial subsidies
granted by local government and refund of the VAT under
the “immediate refund of VAT levied” policy. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to
these grants.

2,541 5,049
2,740 6,108

112 241
5,393 11,398

BREREBNEIEERERANARFRE
AHTHEBA AR ERERT RO R
e

BT B = B A3 77 R 4R T 80 A A
B K [ B E T AV BB | BUR TR IR B
RIE - BHEEZ TR B B R IE R IR
R EMmE AN -
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8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 8 Hith(FH) WRFHE
For the year ended
BZUTHHLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-
+=A=+-8 +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT R ARBTT

Net exchange gain/(loss) [ 5 ke, (E518) /F58 48 (3,989)

Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERZED
plant and equipment BB FE (22) (35)
(Loss)/gain on termination of leases IR ER (B18), W (65) 29
Net gain on disposal of investment properties i & % & 4 2 #) U 2575 58 61 1,607
Others H A, (2,450) 508
(2,428) (1,880)
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

For the year ended

BEUTHAHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-
+=BA=+—-H +=ZRA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Employee benefit expenses (note 13) EERARAEZ (F:E13) 431,129 435,638
Cleaning costs BRI AR 143,762 124,134
Security costs IRZZ A AN 116,863 79,565
Maintenance costs RE KA 52,617 44,996
Utilities ~REXRER 51,006 38,691
Sub-contract expenses for YIEREREH
property agency services ABEHAX 18,943 =
Office expenses WAERZ 29,618 33,989
Greening and gardening costs b R EE KA 19,447 15,898
Legal and professional fees FEERBEEER 16,411 13,539
Community activities expenses fEEBRZ 9,452 7,360
Depreciation and amortisation charges ENHEEE R 20,335 10,495
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B 357 B
— Audit services — BZRG 2,000 2,350
— Non-audit services — EEZARTE 100 93
Others Eih 11,080 8,078
922,763 814,826
Representing: ¥ -
Cost of sales and services HE MR A 785,898 691,246
Administrative expenses TEAX 113,097 102,192
Selling expenses HERX 23,768 21,388
922,763 814,826
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

10 FINANCE INCOME — NET 10 BB FE
For the year ended
BZUTHHLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
B =F —E -
+=A=+-8 +-A=1+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT

Finance costs B 75 B 2R
— Interest expense of lease liabilities - HEREFNEHAX (117) (76)
(117) (76)
Finance income B F5 I
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITEFERFELWA 1,488 2,213
1,371 2,137
11 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 11 SR (ER) X
For the year ended
BEUTRAYPILLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
t=A=+—-8 t=ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Current income tax BVERFR 15 %
— PRC corporate income tax (c) — FRAPEMBH() 5,323 24,310
— PRC land appreciation tax (c) — R IR {E R (o) 92 2,698
Deferred income tax (note 27) EIEFTSHE (M EE27) (37,419) (15,108)

(32,004) 11,900
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11

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did not
derive any income subject to Hong Kong profits tax during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in the PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate
on the estimated assessable profits for the years, based on
the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The provision for land appreciation tax is estimated
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. Land appreciation tax has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions.

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued
on 6 December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to
their foreign investors shall be subject to withholding tax of
10% and a lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied
when the immediate holding companies of the subsidiaries
in the PRC are incorporated in Hong Kong and fulfil the
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has not accrued any
withholding tax for these undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries in the PRC as the Group does not have a plan
to distribute these earnings from its subsidiaries in the
PRC.

11 B8 (ER) BxX @)

(A) ARFAARENEHEENF2ER
Ak (—NA—FESRAN - @A
RIS RS BSHMR TOEERS
ERAT it BEMMNEESH
8% -

(B) ZEHEFBR TR E N E T IE R B & F A
16.5%:TE -HRAEBREE_ZT
TR EF+A=+—HL
FELETMBHMNETBFEHHUK
A B B BB RSB B -

(C) AEEHRFTELEFELOAERBBD
RIFMEBRITER  RERE - AE
At 2 B E N B RR B4 M A 8 A B R A

H o
Eal

iR ER B AR B ARREE P B AR
BRIMOEBAEREME - LHIBEHRD
RIREEEMNRERTBEELBRE
W A T R HRIE R o

(D) BREXR-_FZLFT_ANBRMNHD
ERGRRERGD  RFFENEF—
A—B1#& B R R EEH) & M [ A
SN E 0 R B AR BRI 10% B TR
B W B E AR ERER AR
REBEMKYL  YNEPEEFTE L
] B B W15 TE e BERARTE » RIE RN 6%
MEEBEHNRE - AR AKE L E:+E
DIKTENBARNBEBRY KA
BN g3l = Kl Uy NI 0E
FER N REHERTRHR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

11

174

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the
applicable tax rates and total (loss)/profit presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the income

tax (credit)/expense is listed below:

11 B8 (ER) BxX @)
RERAREHENFERREA 2 ERSE
25§ (B518),/ W F @ em TR (%) /5
S EBRFIMT -

For the year ended

BELUTHAYLLFEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —_E_-

+=A=+—-8 +=-HA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARBTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISRLAT (BR), & F (167,266) 41,186

PRC land appreciation tax A+ IR (E (92) (2,698)

(167,358) 38,488

Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% B 25% 5T H M F IR (41,840) 9,622
Effects of preferential tax rates to different EBEREEAREBETRMEBRRMN

subsidiaries of the Group (i) 21() 4,665 (5,279

Tax effect of non-taxable income (i) B 78 3R B A B T 75 52 22 (i) (227) (204)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT HF A S RIS & 1,103 585

Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERRBERORIEZE 5,708 3,958

Others Hb (1,505) 520

(32,096) 9,202

PRC land appreciation tax FR B £ 3B (E 92 2,698

(32,004) 11,900
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11

12

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

)

(i)

Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (the
“CIT Law”) and implementation regulations of the CIT Law,
the income tax rate of 25% is applicable to the Group’s
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022. Some subsidiaries are qualified as small and micro
businesses and enjoy preferential income tax rate of 5% or
10% as approved by the local tax authorities for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Some subsidiaries
located in western areas of the PRC engaged in
encouraged industries and are subject to a preferential tax
rate of 15% in accordance with regulations for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Non-taxable income includes mainly share of results of
associates and joint ventures.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the purpose of computing basic and diluted earnings per

share, the number of ordinary shares has been adjusted for the
effect of 23,998,345 shares issued to Green Sailing (PTC) Limited
(“Green Sailing (PTC)”), representing 5.84% of the total shares
of the Company after completion of the partial exercise of the

over-allotment option, that have not yet been granted to

employees (note 29), and shares bought back pursuant to the a
share incentive scheme (note 29).

11

12

B (Ee) MX@

() WBEFPELEMSHE(LERSH
ED REEMRSFRABERIESN  #BEZ
o= RZEFE__F+ZHA=1+—H
WEFE AEEWRBRAREBNMEH
HEREBY BE-_T-_=FEKF_F
T2+ A=+—HILFE ' HBoH
BRARFE NMEEER  KE S
MR ER  ZH5% 3K 10% /) B E T
BHRMER - HE T -_=FR_T_—
F+-_A=1+—HLEFE  BTURF
HEFmm R EEEEEENHBE A A
RIEZERZE15% EERRE o

(i) BERBPWATIZBRFEEEBEDER
BELENESE-

R (58 &R
MABEEREAREFIRIME  TAREK
B 2 5L [A Green Sailing (PTC) Limited ([ Green
Sailing (PTC) ) 817 #)23,998,345 AX % {7 (18
ERTKE D ITEBEERERRNDFRD
BE584%)  ZERMDEARTEES
29) F RIBEAR M ZENET &8 B AR5 (5
29) R BIEH AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12
(A) BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding excluding the shares held by Green Sailing
(PTC) and shares bought back, if any, during the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

KREBRIRED) G E

R (B8 BF @)

(A SREX(EHR) BRI
BREX(BR),/ BAIDULEE=Z
ZEFRZIFEZZFFTZA=+—AHIL
FEARNAERER AR (B1B), &
FBR A ITIEINE B AR I 19 8 (7
61 ¥E 40 /5 Green Sailing (PTC) FT 5 A% (5

For the year ended

BZEUTBEHILEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—F=-= —F-=
+=A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
(Loss)/profit attributable to KRB ER G AFEN
equity owners of the Company (E518) &= 7 (134,233) 28,420
Number of ordinary shares for FTEERERZTH
the purpose of calculating basic TEREE (FR)
earnings per share (thousands) 384,827 386,467
Basic (loss)/earnings per share RRER (EBER),BF
(expressed in RMB per share) (AEBRARETIR) (0.349) 0.074
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(B) DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company’s share-based payment is
not of dilutive potential for the year ended 31 December

2023.

12 SR (EE) BA &)

FREE (B8R, /&5
S e 3B I 4E 7 158X
L BREERTH
F+-A=+—HILHF
S ROFRIAN S VE 1

(B) BR#E (EHE) BF

HHBERITE
AR FTE BT

cHEZLT =
ER/NGIIPN §%)
BRE-

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of TEEREE (BB BRI AR
the Company used in the diluted ZiN/NETE 2= WN X fi)
(loss)/earnings per share calculation (BE),wH (134,233) 28,420
Number of ordinary shares for ATEERER (BB B8
the purpose of calculating basic TR E (TR
(loss)/earnings per share (thousands) 384,827 386,467
Adjustment for: AT EIRFE -
— Assumed distribution of shares under ~ — &% 22 Eh a1 S78 T XA
share award scheme (thousands) B 5k (FRR)
(note 29) (fF5E29) - 36
Adjusted weighted average number of REEE SREE (F518),
ordinary shares for diluted (loss)/earnings 3 Fl /) & 38 I 4% 7 25
per share (thousands) niEEHE (FR) 384,827 386,503
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRREAN (&) &BF
(expressed in RMB per share) (AERARBYIR) (0.349) 0.074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 13 EERAMAX
For the year ended
BZEZUTHHILEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F — g
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - &e RIEA 359,339 364,252
Pension costs (a) RIRE R () 33,047 32,105
Housing funds, medical insurances and FEAES  BERRK
other social insurances (a) E MR8 (@) 26,800 27,420
Other employment benefits Hih g B &7 11,943 11,861
431,129 435,638

(A) Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in defined contribution retirement scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees.
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13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid employees during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

13 BEETEAMAXZ @)
(B) ZEEEEFMAL
HE_T-_="FR_ZFT-__F+=-H4
=+—HLEFE AfmeHHES

T

For the year ended

BZEUTHHILEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—Eo=F —E-=

t=A=+-8 t-A=+-~8
Director e 3 3
Non-director FE= 2 2
5 5

The emoluments of the remaining two (2022: two)
individuals during the year ended 31 December 2023 and

2022 are as follows:

HE—_ZT-_=FKrK-_FT-_—_F+=-A
=t+t—HLEFE - BTRBCE=_=

FmRB)ALTHMESOT

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EA#H®  FEEB - BIRE-
share options, other allowances and H 8L R B WAE T
benefits in kind 2,060 1,890
Contribution to pension scheme RIKRSET B 268 191
Discretionary bonuses 1B IEAL - -
Inducement fee to join or upon joining MAREE S INAREREEH
the Group <35) - =
Compensation for loss of office: BEER (R - - =
— contractual payments — BHFIE - =
— other payment — HAEIE - =
2,328 2,081
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

180

(B)

(€)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
The number of above remaining employees whose
remuneration fee within the following band is as follows:

13 EERAEX @
(B) EEBEHMAL (&)

EAFHHENIA THE N T EE AR
LN

For the year ended
BEUTAHLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -
+=A=+-8 +-A=+—H

Emolument bands (in HK$) N E (BT
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %8 7= 1,500,000,5 7T 2 2

SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by the employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(D) PENSION OBLIGATIONS

(E)

The Group only operates defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group participate
in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage,
which is pre-determined by the local municipal government,
of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by the
governments. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.

HOUSING FUNDS, MEDICAL INSURANCES
AND OTHER SOCIAL INSURANCES

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance plan.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred and forfeited contributions (on behalf
of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may not be used to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

13 EERAEX @)

(D)

(E)

MRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(F)

(G)

BONUS ENTITLEMENTS

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (i)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (ii) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

182

13 EERAEX @
(F) TEATREZ

XHNEAMBEKRA  REEE
RERBMEAKREELRE X
ERMEEML BREEREHA
SFETSEARAE LA

B BT HIS I+ =18 B A
GREAEESAT S0
e

(G) BEELEAR

BEBLENNASEE LT RKB AR
IHERSE R BE S B BERIAREUL
ERAF N - ARERATRHZE
FEEIMBEN  (AREEEIHD
REZSENE  REEANTFER
SETERFEI7REE B N BB
BN EARERKAR - HIRE—IRE
MR EREERNERT - BEREN D
RIEFHEMZEONEEHBEE -
K& RREBE12(8 A2 A H
BN ERE -

14 EETENRER

As the date of the report, the directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Qin

Mr. Wu Xu

Mr. Liu Chao

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ming
Mr. Liu Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Lu Mei

Mr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen

Ms. Katherine Rong Xin
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14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
The directors received emoluments from the Group for the

14 EEENRER @)

(A EEME
BE T _=F+-_A=+—HI&F

year ended 31 December 2023 as follows:

B BFEAKEWEBABMEIT

Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name 4 Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
Exm
RIKER
ik 2 MigTEA STt @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR¥Tn AR%¥Tx
Executive Directors iTEE
Ms. Zhou Qin At - 678 - 17 849
Mr. Wu Xu () RIBSAE() - 1,503 - 17 1,674
Mr. Liu Chao 2Bk E - 1,377 - - 1,377
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Tian Ming B4 - - - - -
Mr. Liu Yong (i) Liu Yong % 4 (ii - - - - -
Independent Non-executive ~ BV F#TES
Directors
Ms. Lu Mei Bigut 150 - - - 150
Mr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen BREX ks 150 - - - 150
Ms. Katherine Rong Xin (iv) Katherine Rong Xin Z &= (iv) 200 - - - 200
500 3,558 - 342 4,400
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The directors received emoluments from the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2022 as follows:

184

2

=F+-A=+—RHIFE

(A) EEM= @)
B=

—=— =

— =

14 EEENRER @)

E+=-A=+—BIitE

B BFEAKEWEABEIT

Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name g Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
EEXMm
RN
e & BlETEA SRR Mt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETE ARWKTE ARETE ARETT
Executive Directors iTEE
Ms. Zhou Qin At - 2,221 - 158 2,379
Mr. Wu Xu () RIBSEAE() - 1,080 - 146 1,226
Mr. Liu Chao Bk - 1,340 - 16 1,356
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Tian Ming HALE = = = = =
Mr. Liu Yong (i) Liu Yong % 4 (ii = = = = =
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES
Directors
Dr. Wong Chi Wing (i) FERE L (i) 63 - - = 63
Ms. Lu Mei Bigit 150 - - - 150
Mr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen BEXEE 150 - - - 150
Ms. Katherine Rong Xin (iv) Katherine Rong Xin Z 1= (iv) 144 — — = 144
507 4,641 — 320 5,468
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14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

(A)

(B)

(€

(D)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Mr. Wu Xu was the chief executive as of 31
December 2023.

(i) Mr. Liu Yong was appointed as the Group’s non-
executive director on 8 June 2022. The non-executive
directors did not receive any remuneration from the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: nil).

@iy  Dr. Wong Chi Wing resigned as the Group’s
independent non-executive directors on 2 June 2022.

(iv) Ms. Katherine Rong Xin was appointed as the
Group’s executive directors on 12 April 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TERMINATION BENEFITS

There were no additional retirement benefit received by the
directors except for the contribution to defined contribution
retirement scheme administered and operated by the local
municipal government in accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC during the year (2022: nil).

DIRECTORS’ TERMINATION BENEFITS
There were no termination benefits received by the
directors during the year (2022: nil).

CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

No consideration was paid to third parties for making
available the services of the directors of the Company
during the year (2022: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

15

186

(Continued)

(E) INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOUR
OF DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES

WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

No consideration was paid for making available the services
of the directors of the Company during the year (2022: nil).

(F) DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR

CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a

party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of 2023 or at any time during the year (2022: nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 EEENRER @)

(E) MEE ZEEESEHNZEAER

BRZEESNRESRREHMN
EX BUERREAXZNE
*il—

FR WEFRREARREENRBE
NHERRE(ZEZ_F : &) -

ESERXRE RHEHAEHNPHE
RER

RZTZ=FRIRFREMER - H
BIVEASEELEHR BEAEEA
R RARRESHREPERESMEE
BEEAERNTIMNEARS  THK
BH(ZE_F - |) o

15 REYE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-=E —_E-—
t=A=+—-8 +=A=t1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 750 7,552
Additions NE - _
Depreciation charge TEEH (54) (195)
Disposals HE (331) (6,607)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 365 750
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 REYE #)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the rental BE S =K -_TE_—_F+-_A=+—
income and operating expenses arising from leasing of AILFE HEREMEEENHEHS KA R
investment properties are as follows: LERZINT

For the year ended

BEUATHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
B =F —E -
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Rental income He A - 73
Direct operating expenses from properties REEAHSBARNMER

that generate rental income BEELERT 54 126
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of the N-_E—=FR - E-_—F+-_HF=+—8H
investment properties were approximately RMB1,604,000 and B"EMENLNFED B4 A AR1,604,000
RMB3,500,000 respectively. 5% % A R 3,500,000 7T ©
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% BEKZHE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements Buildings equipment vehicles Total
HE FE -£BR
MELE BF:  BOERB RE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETn AR%Tn AR¥TRT  AR%Tx
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=f-f—-H
Cost B 13,711 2,432 16,604 3,149 35,986
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (7,722 (434) (10,470) (429) (19,055)
Net carrying amount RESE 5,989 1,998 6,224 2,720 16,931
Year ended 31 December 2023  BZE-B=-=%
+-ZA=t-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 5,989 1,998 6,224 2,720 16,931
Additions NE 31M - 1,753 12 4,936
Depreciation e (3,505) (122) 2,177) (1,081) (6,885)
Disposals irf = - - (126) - (126)
Closing net carrying amount EREEFE 5,655 1,876 5,674 1,651 14,856
At 31 December 2023 R-EZ=%
t=A=t-H
Cost KA 16,882 2,432 18,183 3,161 40,658
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (11,227) (556) (12,509) (1,510) (25,802)
Net carrying amount EmFE 5,655 1,876 5,674 1,651 14,856
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 W¥  BERRE @)

(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements Buildings equipment vehicles Total
e HARER
MEEE BF  BAERE RE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETEH ARETT
At 1 January 2022 RZB--f-Hf—-H
Cost A 8,774 - 8,841 74 17,689
Accumulated depreciation 25E (4,696) - (5,139) (19) (9,854)
Net carrying amount EEFE 4,078 = 3,702 55 7,835
Year ended 31 December 2022  HE-ZE-—&
+ZA=t-HILEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 4,078 = 3,702 55 7,835
Additions NE 3,551 - 2911 263 6,725
Depreciation e (2,355) (58) (1,872) (385) (4,670)
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (note 33)  UREEHTE A Al (Hi5E33) 715 2,056 1,522 2787 7,080
Disposals & - = (39) = (39)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 5,989 1,998 6,224 2,720 16,931
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF
+ZA=t-H
Cost A 18,711 2,432 16,694 3,149 35,986
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (7,722) (434) (10,470) (429) (19,055)
Net carrying amount EEFE 5,989 1,998 6,224 2,720 16,931
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% WMERRE @
(Continued)
Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories MERINEGRE ZEKEFTA AT ER R

in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-—
+t=A=+-8 +t=A=1-~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Cost of sales $HE A 6,019 3,698

Administrative expenses THRAX 866 972
6,885 4,670

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to ERAMFIEAFEHK (RHEMERE

allocate their cost to their residual values, over the shorter of their MmE) A TNEHE (UREEBE) MEHEES

estimated useful lives or, in case of leasehold improvements, as BERAZHEFSREEE

follows:

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of their estimated HEWHERE  REGFTAIE S Ak iE A

useful lives or lease terms (AR E A%E)
Buildings 20 years gF 20
Furniture, fixtures and 3-5 years B KER 3ZESHF
office equipment YN
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 5 4
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17 LEASES 17 #HE
AMHREEA A E @ e AERAANREEE -

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a

lessee.
(A) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (A FEHREEE
Office
properties
i N S
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2022 R-FB-—_f—-F—H
Cost (DN 5,220
Accumulated depreciation R2FtinE (3,963)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,257
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FYRmFE 1,257
Additions NE 1,305
Acquisition of subsidiaries g B B 8 A B 1,007
Depreciation e (2,148)
Disposal & (130)
Closing net carrying amount FRIRMEFE 1,291
At 31 December 2022 R=B==F+=A=+—H
Cost DN 7,402
Accumulated depreciation Z2FrTE 6,111)
Net carrying amount IR FE 1,291
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=5+-"A=+t—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYIRMmFE 1,291
Additions NE 2,431
Depreciation e (2,174)
Disposal & (133)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 1,415
At 31 December 2023 R=-ZB-=F+=-A=+—H
Cost (DN 9,700
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (8,285)
Net carrying amount BRTEFE 1,415
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

17 LEASES (Continued)
(B) LEASE LIABILITIES

17 HE®)
(B) HEES®E

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-=F —_E-—
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AREF T

Lease liabilities HEAE

Non-current IERED 751 502
Current mE 608 570
1,359 1,072

(C) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
show the following amounts relating to leases:

C) REE2HEBERTEANEH

BA2AKRRFRERESHNSE
mF -

For the year ended

HBEUTHRHILEFEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EBZ=F —E -
+=ZA=+—-8B +=Z—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets £ HEEETEE A
— Office properties — WA 2,174 2,148
Interest expense (included in finance cost)  F. &5 (5t AR FS A AN)
(note 10) (MgEE10) 117 76
Expense relating to short term and HERREEERER@ENRX
low-value leases (included in cost (T ASHE R AR A AN LA &
of sales and services and administrative ~ 7TE RISz )
expenses) 3,283 2,461

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less.
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 B EE
Computer Customer
software relationships Total
sTE#EYG EFBE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 R=-ZB=--%—H—H
Cost (DN 6,041 = 6,041
Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,362) = (1,362)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,679 = 4,679
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE_-__fF

+TZA=+—HIEFE
Opening net carrying amount FEREFE 4,679 - 4,679
Additions RNE 3,974 = 3,974
Acquisition of subsidiaries W 5 BT B A 7] 102 43,445 43,547
Amortisation charge HIHE A (948) (2,534) (3,482)
Closing net carrying amount FAREKREFE 7,807 40,911 48,718
At 31 December 2022 R-EB-_—_F+=-A=+—H
Cost %N 10,117 43,445 53,562
Accumulated amortisation 25T (2,310) (2,534) (4,844)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,807 40,911 48,718
At 1 January 2023 R=-ZB-=%—HF—H
Cost %N 10,117 43,445 53,562
Accumulated amortisation 2T (2,310) (2,534) (4,844)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7,807 40,911 48,718
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-=F
+TZA=+—HILFE

Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 7,807 40,911 48,718
Additions NE 1,916 - 1,916
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) UK BERT B A 7] (Ff5E33) 2,128 86,379 88,507
Amortisation charge HIHER (1,057) (10,165) (11,222)
Closing net carrying amount HREEmEFE 10,794 117,125 127,919
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEB-_=F+=-A=+—H
Cost %N 14,161 129,824 143,985
Accumulated amortisation g (3,367) (12,699) (16,066)
Net carrying amount BREHE 10,794 117,125 127,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(A) SOFTWARE
Acquired software use rights are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 10 years on a straight-line basis, which
reflects the pattern in which the intangible assets future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed.

(B) CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS
Customer relationships acquired in business combinations
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
customer relationships have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected useful lives respectively.

Amortisation expenses were charged to the following categories
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

18 BREEE &)

(A) =EH
DESHETEREREEREAET
BT R AR B AL o SRER AR
H {5 EH AT 65 AR HR 10 LA B AR 8 -
2 B 4 1 5 B o O AT B 26 TR B R4S
iﬁo

(B) EFB%
TS & GH P18 1B B R TV R
WAMNATEER - EEWEAEA
R 0 8 PR 4 0 - AR BT B B A
B - B S RIEEH T EAE RN AR
ERITEHE -

BN RS 2ERERAA TERIHE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E_-= —_E-—
t+=A=+-8 +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Selling expenses HERMX
Administrative expenses TEAX
Cost of sales $HE A
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18
(C) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of Beihai Langrun
Commercial Limited (1L /8RB EE R G R A al, the
“Target Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, “Beihai
Langrun”) (note 33). Total identifiable net assets of these
companies as at their respective acquisition dates
amounted to approximately RMB81,399,000, including
identified customer relationships of RMB86,379,000. A
valuation was performed by independent valuers to
determine the fair value of the identified customer

BLEE®)

C) BT —_=F+=-A=+—HLF
B AEEWREIL G HEEEEGR
AR (BERLBIREMB AR - 58
[deE A1) (M3E33) - ZE R AN #
EXBWEBHRNAHBFEELETEL
A AR#81,390,0007t - R BEE
A= FREE A R 86,379,0007T B
HEMBEETHE  UNEEEHIER
BENATE BFEBEMAGBEER
MBEBREREL BEERFERNAT

relationships. The valuation method used for customer ENETESHEFEFEDT :
relationships is the discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions in determining the fair value of customer
relationships are disclosed as follows:
Expected
Annual life of the
revenue Discount Long-term intangible
growth rate rate growth rate assets
FENE BREEN
BRE BRE REBRE Bt EH
Beihai Langrun LEEE 9.5-11.8
0-11.6% 17.4%-22.7% 2.2% years F
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

REE QR TR ER

For the year ended

BEUTHHPILEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-_=
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
At 1 January nw—HA—H 2,377 1,611
Additions: b1y I
— Investments in an associate — REtE R RRE 200 =
Share of net profit of associates DB E A B F R e 291 766
Dividends received from an associate B B A A UE AR B (1,470) =
At 31 December R+=ZH=+—8H 1,398 2,377

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2023. The entities listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

196 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

ATEINAEER B _=F+-_A=+—
BB ZERR - T ERNBRAEREBR
AR AAEBEERRES - EMKIHER
BRMRETELXME  MEFEERL
IR FRER A LLBIAER -



19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19 REZE NTNERS &)

Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
EEny/
MR IER REREZAML FEEE REE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-=F —ECoCE —EC=F k- Sk 3
tZA=+-B tZA=1+-8 +=B=+-8 +ZA=1+-H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARETR
RETHESAANEREERART RETHESFNEREERAT PRCH 49,00 49.00  Equity Method 1,327 1,946
Dongyang City Investment ERE
Landsea Property Service
Co., Ltd.
HBIREREERREERAR HNARGEERREARAT PRCH 20.00 2000 Equity Method - -
Suzhou Langtong Green Elevator Ew%
Senvice Co., Ltd.
RARANERBERAR REBBANERBEERAR PRC # 49,00 49.00  Equity Method - 431
Chengdu Fulang Property Service Bt
Co., Ltd.
BMBAEANEERERAR  BNBSENNEEEERAR PRCH 49.00 49.00  Eouity Method - -
Huizhou Landsea Dezhou ERE
Property Management Co., Ltd.
BNmENIERERRAR BNmERTERERRAR PRC # 20.00 - Equity Method 14 -
Suzhou Wanling Commercial Bt
Asset Management Co., Ltd.
1,398 2,377
(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) EEBELAANAERIRER

LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF ASSOCIATES

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-=
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Commitments AHE
— Commitment to pay up the — EAEH R RERAR
subscription capital 6,500 6,010
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(B) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

ASSOCIATES

The Group applied the equity method in recognising its
respective shares of net profit or loss of associates. After
the Group’s interests in associates is reduced to zero,
additional shares of losses of associates were not
recognised if Group has not incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

19 REEEQXTNER &)
(B) AEREMLBE AT EER

AEBEFARDEERSEREBZER
BIHFEFBREE - ARENBE QA
MEDRETR  WARELEELSE
ESEEE ERRBERBNHE
AT S RBEIMNEIEBERRER -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

Aggregate unrecognised share of RIERIEALEEE N RFEBARE

net loss of associates

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

1,907 61

20 REELRENER

For the year ended

BZUTHBPILLEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
t=A=+-8 t-A=t-*8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

At 1 January ®n—H—AH 851 =
Additions: -

— Investments in a joint venture — REERENEE - 800
Share of net profit of joint ventures ElhaEhEF 616 51
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—8” 1,467 851
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20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at 31
December 2023. The entities listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

20

REELENERS @)
TXHBaAEEAR -_SE-=4—+_f
SH—BMARNE TXFIERELE
BEREBEERE L BRMBRA - M
VHEMERTARTIELE W MEA
YR L BB R EAE R E AR R o

Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
EENY/
EMALER BEERE% HEV:NS REE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
k- St “E-CF —BC-=f “E-F
tZA=+-B TZA=+-H TZA=t+-B TZA=+-8H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETI
LBMRE-ATABENEER LENGEE-ATARENEER PRCHE 51,00 51.00  Equity Method 369 =
BRAH BRAT EwA
Shanghai Landsea Savills
Property Management Co., Ltd.
BIRBgetiRBEBAn  BNRBEEEEREERAR  PRCH 40.00 40.00  Equity Method 1,098 851
Suzhou Gaolang Green Life Bt
Senvices Co., Ltd.
MIAENXERERAT MIHENXERERAR PRC & 51.00 51.00  Equity Method - -
Zhejiang Langheng Property b $ali
Management Co., Ltd.
BRAENEEREBR AR ARBEEERARAR PRC HE 51.00 51.00  Equity Method - =
Nanjing Lang Yue Property Bt
Management Co., Ltd.
1,467 851
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20 REELENER »)

(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) BAREELENAERIREE
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT
VENTURES

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-—
t+=A=+-8 +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Commitments HEYE
— Commitment to pay up the — B RIEE AN EIE
subscription capital 8,085 1,200
(B) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF (B) RERELEELEFEFE
JOINT VENTURES
The Group applied the equity method in recognising its AEEFARDAERSEQRAEGED
respective shares of net profit or loss of joint ventures. After ERFANERES  c AEERESEDE
the Group’s interests in joint ventures is reduced to zero, MNEZRETR  WASENEELSE
additional shares of losses of joint ventures were not ERETETIREECELTRIE
recognised if Group has not incurred legal or constructive AT SRRAEINEGEEELFEEE -
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREET T
Aggregate unrecognised share of net REREEEEDEFEELESR
loss of joint ventures 281 -
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21 GOODWILL

21 BHE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E=-= T
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Cost at 1 January RK—A— BB A 60,750 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) IR b8 A | (MT3E33) 120,291 60,750
Net carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HNKREFE 181,041 60,750

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H

Cost RN 181,041 60,750
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - =
Net carrying amount R FE 181,041 60,750

Goodwill is measured as described in note 39.6. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating segments.

BB 0.6 Tt E - E T HH -
BegFETRERNR  HiHhREHEAE
WMENEERERNES - AIE AT HETA
A WARAR R BEBEAR - HE—
HEENEEEEARLEERNBEREE -

BRENEAME  BERIKEEREELE
- BEASEIHBERERELHENER
AHEENZEREELENXSAHBETE
HEBEMEL SEASEEMRBRAZE
ERAREEMREERNREE - B2ENH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

21 GOODWILL (Continued) 21 8@
Goodwill was allocated to the following CGUs: @ BEEIEEUTHESEESM:
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-—
+=BA=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Dream Seeker International Limited Dream Seeker International Limited
(‘Dream Seeker”) ([ Dream Seeker |) 60,750 60,750
Beihai Langrun plobisa:G b 120,291 =
As at 31 December 2023, management performed impairment R-ZE-_=F+_A=+—"H EEE
testing on goodwill based on five-year cash flow forecasts. With BEAFHE RSN BETRE
reference to the recoverable amounts assessed as at 31 AR - 2ER=-_Z=_=F+=-A=+—
December 2023, the directors of the Company determined that B WARE S5 ARAIESRE
there was no provision for impairment of goodwill for the year HE_ZT_=—F+-_HA=1+—HILFE
ended 31 December 2023. The following table sets out the key WEEERERE TRV ESKLE
assumptions for the CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated AHENRSEAEMNFEERRE
to them:
Annual Gross profit
revenue margin (% of Long-term Pre-tax
growth rate revenue) growth rate  discount rate
EFI =
FEWRE S ON:Y R BAl
BRE Bo) BREE BRI =
Dream Seeker Dream Seeker 41%-8.0%  17.2%-19.5% 2.2% 19.9%
Beihai Langrun oSy b 2.0%-3.7%  67.6%-69.6% 2.2% 15.5%
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21 GOODWILL (continued) 21
Management has determined the values assigned to each of the
above key assumptions as follows:

Annual revenue growth  Average annual growth rate over the
rate five-year forecast period was based
on past performance and
management’s expectations of
market development.

Gross profit margin Gross profit margin was based on past
performance and management’s
expectations for the future.

Long-term growth rate  This is the weighted average growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the budget period. The rates
are long-term average growth rate
for the related industry in which the
CGU operates.

Pre-tax discount rate Reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant industry and the countries in
which they operate.

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of Dream
Seeker (including goodwill) of RMB125,910,000, which was
calculated based on value-in-use calculation, exceeded its
carrying amount by RMB22,537,000. As at 31 December 2023,
the recoverable amount of Beihai Langrun (including goodwill) of
RMB204,954,000, which was calculated based on value-in-use
calculation, exceeded its carrying amount by RMB2,068,000.

BE®)
ERECEE RS LS ETERENE
ET

EEHRER TEEINNOTHEEE
EPHENBERRREE
B mISERNTES -

ESTIES EFEDERBERRNME
EEHARKNES -

SHEEE  ZUEDAREEEEMN
SN 4 e B MO DA T A58
ER - S RARSES
BT BT
EHTIERE -

FiATRAIR & R Bk ERFARETT R M A AT
ERREENSEERE -

R-_ZBE-_=ZF+_-_A=+—H0 ERFEHE
{8 5T B Dream Seeker ) A] W Bl £ %8 (B IE &
&) 5 AR ¥125910,0007C © BEREEB
AR #22,537,000t c R=ZE=_=F+=H
=+—RB ERNFEREBEFEILEME (R1E
PE) By AT U Bl & B8 & A R #5 204,954,000 7T
BEREE H A K% 2,068,000 7T °
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21 GOODWILL (continued)

The directors of the Company have undertaken sensitivity
analysis based on the reasonably possible changes for above
key assumptions by taking into account the volatility of the
business and industry in which the goodwill allocated projects
are engaged. The following table sets forth all possible changes
to the key assumptions of the impairment test and the changes
taken in isolation in the value-in-use calculation that would
remove the remaining headroom as of 31 December 2023:

21 HE®)
AADEEORBE LR T EMBHOAIEAT4E
BE VERINESREEBEEARELY
RATEERE M EITHRERE DN - &I
TR B BB B Rk 0 TS AT AR B A R R
EAEETE RSB ERR B =
F+-A=+—BWFEBBLBH NS

Dream Seeker Beihai Langrun

Dream Seeker 1635 B

Annual revenue growth rate FREWZIER K -8.0% (Revenue -4.3% (Revenue
2024 to 2028 2024 to 2028

annual growth annual growth

rate decrease to rate decrease to

3.8%—7.3%) 1.9%-3.6%)

-8.0% -4.3%

—TWFEZRE (ZZEZmEE

“ENEFE ZEN\FFE

st REPEE Wasig R KBS

3.8%-7.3%) 1.9%-3.6%)

Gross profit margin EViES -10.9% (2024 to -0.7% (2024 to
2028 gross profit 2028 gross profit

margin decrease to  margin decrease to

15.3%-17.4%) 67.1%-69.1%)

-10.9% -0.7%

(ZZE-mF (ZZ-ZmEE

ZET)N\F —EN\F

EMNEFER EMREE

15.3%-17.4%) 67.1%-69.1%)

Long-term growth rate REIER X -31.8% (Long-term  -1.7% (Long-term
growth rate growth rate

decrease to 1.5%)  decrease to 2.2%)

-31.8% -1.7%

(REAIER =X (REfIER X

TrEZE1.5%) TrEZE2.2%)

Pre-tax discount rate ORI 18.3% 0.8%
(increase to 23.6%) (increase to 15.6%)

18.3% 0.8%

(% 23.6%) (%= 15.6%)
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the
respective balance sheet date as follows:

22 ZENESsWEMITA
REBEBEXD AEEBAUTERT

>

/i

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= B F
+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEBEK A ENeREE
Trade receivables (note 23) 2 5 e R IE (M52 23) 215,188 309,095
Other receivables (note 24) H b W IE (i FE24) 117,070 208,239
Restricted cash and cash and cash XERFIEEARIRE &
equivalents (note 25) REEEY (MiE25) 337,426 358,946
669,684 876,280
Financial liabilities tEAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HREHEK AT ENTREAE
Lease liabilities (note 17) HEBE(ME17) 1,359 1,072
Trade and other payables* (note 26) B 5 & E b S 518 (B E26) 433,544 207,293
434,903 208,365

*

Excluding non-financial liabilities

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is disclosed in note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.

* TEEFERAE

AREEFAERES R T AMEBNSERRN
MEFSI1HE AEER_Z_=FK=F
T+ A=t HFEBRNRAGEER
BAENSECRHEENKRRE -
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

206

23 EZEWRIA

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—Eg-= T
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETT
Trade receivables (a) B 5 e WGIE ()
— Related parties (note 35(c)) — BB (F13E35(0) 198,202 181,811
— Third parties —F=F 212,867 175,671
411,069 357,482
Less: provision for impairment (note 3.1(b)(i)) 78 : 3T BR B4 (BT 5+ 3.1(b)(i)) (195,881) (48,387)
215,188 309,095

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services income under lump sum basis and value-added
services provided to property owners and non-property
owners.

Property management services income are received in
accordance with the terms of the relevant services
agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the
issuance of demand note.

The receivables from the provision of value-added services
to non-property owners are usually due for payment upon
the issuance of document of settlement.
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 EZEWRIE®

@ (Continued) @ (&)
The ageing analysis of the current trade receivables based BRZEQMENRERE S EKGIER
on the invoice date is as follows: BoITET
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E=-= T

+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Related parties a7
— Less than 1 year — PR—%F 80,235 107,896
— 1to 2 years — —EMF 57,013 72,061
— 2to 3 years —WME=F 59,701 1,027
— 3to 4 years — =FOF 1,027 827
— 410 5 years — NERF 226 =
198,202 181,811

Third parties E=F
— Less than 1 year — LR—%F 101,148 122,441
— 1to 2 years — —EMF 64,958 30,143
— 2 to 3 years —ME=F 27,812 13,723
— 3to 4 years — = EWF 12,138 5,795
— 4to 5 years — NERF 4,837 1,357
— Over 5 years — BFHRAE 1,974 2,212
212,867 175,671
411,069 357,482
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of trade RZEBEZ=FR_ZE=__F+=H
receivables approximate their carrying amounts. =+—H - BSREKZFENAFERER
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24 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 FE{FHIER HftEWFIE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-—
+t=A=+-8 +t=A=1-~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Prepayments A FRIE
— Prepaid taxes — I FIE 6 =
— Prepayments to suppliers — I T HEROTERN KIE 10,775 10,426
— Prepaid VAT and other surcharges — TG E R R H AT & 1,722 2,067
— Other prepayments — HEMIBIE 7,989 7,385
20,492 19,878
Other receivables H b e W s I8
— Amounts due from related parties — FEURE R 5 5 (M9 7E 35(a))
(note 35(a)) 5,580 6,526
— Deposits with related parties — BB AEENES
(note 35(a)) (Pt3E35(a)) 133,660 162,997
— Amounts due from non-controlling — RE TR R FIA
interests 980 -
— Deposits — &e 14,559 17,557
— Returnable earnest money — AREWNES
(note 33, note 35(a)) (MIE33 ~ BI=E35(a)) - 30,000
— Payment on behalf of property — REENFH@
owners (a) 15,734 13,483
— Others — HAth 7,288 2,847
177,801 233,410
Less: provision for impairment (note 3.1(b)(i)) 38 : 1B B (Bt 5 3.1 (b)) (60,731) (25,171)
117,070 208,239
137,562 228,117
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24 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@ As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amounts
represented the payments on behalf of property owners
mainly in respect of utilities and elevator maintenance costs
of the properties.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, other receivables were
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
prepayments and other receivables were denominated in below

24 ENFEREMERIRE @)

@ RZEZ=Fk=-_ZT=-_—_F+=A
=+—H %ZSoHETIER L RAEE
EMERNERREMAREENK

RZE_=FR_FE-_—F+_A=+—
H b e U 3 TE A IR K B E EE HR

KRB =Fr-_T-_—_F+-A=+—8"
ERFEREMERFIENEREREEREATE
BEEHE

currencies:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—_E=-= —_E-
+=A=+—-H8H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T
RMB AR 137,481 227,257
HKS$ BT 81 860
137,562 228,117

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of

prepayments and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts.

R-B-=fR-—F——F+-A=1—8
B SRR R B A I 0 2 (B B BR
E18%
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25 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

25 SRFBEURRERASEE

)]
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F_—
+=ZA=+—-B +tZ-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Restricted cash ZPR RS

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY

The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in below currencies:

4,643 780
332,783 358,166
337,426 358,946

ERHAREUNBEE IR CEEYNREE
EHENFERE -

XRHBEEUANBE SR CEEYNREE
BIATE®EHE -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F — g

+=ZA=+—-8 +=-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT

RMB AR
HK$ BT
us$ ETT

Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents temporarily
restricted for disputes of property management service contract.
All the restricted cash are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2023.
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2,300 2,444
337,426 358,946

YRR EEAMEEERBEOMUDME
HEXENReEREFBY R_FT_=
T-A=+t—H FAEXREIBEESHUAR
®IIME -



26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26 EZRHMENRE

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-= T
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-—B=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Trade payables 5 ' FIE 265,418 148,201
Other payables H fib < 3008
— Amounts due to related parties — FE{ AR 5 5008 (M RE 35())
(note 35(b)) 1,278 1,201
— Amounts collected on behalf of — REEWERFRIB
property owners 131,785 110,837
— Deposits received — B e 19,283 12,662
— Consideration payables — EARE 4,700 =
— Others — Hh 11,080 4,323
Accruals for staff costs BTRARETER 109,622 103,050
VAT and other tax payables FE TG E B R H Ab A 18 20,880 31,550
564,046 411,824

RoB-=FR-F-_F+-A=+—-8"
H 5 KA BN TR RE E R AT ERE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximate their fair values.

R =FR T _—F+_HA=+—H"
FERTRAE S BB AEIER - R REEREE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due to related
parties were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

R-E-—_=FxR-_T-_—&F+-A=+—8"
REWREmERBAENE Z RN FIARER
DT :

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables based on goods and services received is as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= T
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETF T
Less than 1 year DR—F 242,602 144,857
1 to 2 years —EmMF 20,782 3,344
2 to 3 years WE=4F 2,034 =
265,418 148,201
WESserEREERAT/ —So=aax 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 EIEFREH
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —_EF2—=
+=B=+-8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BR—FREENREMSHAE
after one year 20,543 10,228
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTISREE -
— to be recovered within 12 months — R 12 M@ B Uk El 57,039 21,077
— to be recovered after 1 year — A1 F& Uk E 11,060 11,025
68,099 32,102
Deferred income tax assets, net RIEFTISREEFE 47,556 21,874
The movements in deferred income tax, net are as follows: RIEFTIS T F M EE T ¢
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Bz =2
—E-=F —E-=
+=B=+—-8 +=-A=+—H©
IEFEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 21,874 15,377
Credited to profit or loss (note 11) Fr B (FFE11) 37,419 15,108
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A A (11,737) (8,611)
At 31 December R+=—RAR=+—H 47,556 21,874
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to

offsetting, are as follows:

27 EEMRBH (&)
AT RE I TS B B

Change in
fair value of
identified
assets upon
acquisition of

#eh
2

g -

subsidiaries Total
52 B8 Bt
NEREH
BEEN
AFERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBT T
As at 1 January 2022 RZEZZF—H—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B /8 A ) 10,862 10,862
Credited to the consolidated statements of FTAGEEEKER
comprehensive income (634) (634)
At 31 December 2022 N-TE-_—_F+=-_HA=+—H 10,228 10,228
As at 1 January 2023 R-ZE_=%F—HF—H 10,228 10,228
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) U BB BT B 2 7 (B £ 33) 12,243 12,243
Credited to the consolidated statements of FFAGEEEKER
comprehensive income (1,928) (1,928)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H 20,543 20,543
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

214

2

=F+-A=+—RHIFE

27 EERBH (&)

The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to

offsetting, are as follows:

BB SEHEEZSNT

Impairment
of Accrued
receivables staff costs Tax losses Total
FE W R 18 et
HE =N HiEEE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 5,978 7,886 1,513 15,377
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B B BB A ) 1,032 912 307 2,251
Credited to the consolidated it AZRA 2 E Wz E
statements of comprehensive
income 11,411 2,227 836 14,474
At 31 December 2022 NZ_E -
+—A=+—H 18,421 11,025 2,656 32,102
As at 1 January 2023 R-ZTE-_=%F—H—H 18,421 11,025 2,656 32,102
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk & A & (FHEE33)
(note 33) 509 (3) - 506
Credited to the consolidated 5t ALZRA ZE W E
statements of comprehensive
income 37,778 38 (2,325) 35,491
At 31 December 2023 R-ZTE-_=%
+—A=+—H 56,708 11,060 331 68,099
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27

28

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEMRBH®)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry- BEEMEHEENREENRIBEIERER
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax ME LA BT RE 378 38 7 O JIE mR 0% F &2 3R AR A £ 1A
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group AR R-_ZE_=F+_A=+—8H"
did not recognise deferred income tax assets for the tax loss of 7 & B 4k A TE BT 1R A R ¥ 8,419,000 7T (U4
RMB8,419,000 as at 31 December 2023 in respect of losses N EELEEARARERTRANEREAR
amounting to RMB84,928,000 that can be carried forward # 84,928,000 7T) MEREIEFTIS T & E ©
against future taxable income.
As at 31 December 20283, the Group has unrecognised deferred RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H Xx&5EBAH
income tax liabilities arising from undistributed profits from the AERRLEMEREE MRFABERER
Group’s subsidiary in the PRC to its immediate holding company SERTRENMBARTES K THRES
in Hong Kong. No provision has been made in respect of such BB B AR A& A o AR A A B AT 4E
withholding tax as the Company is able to control the timing of HEMB AR D RNEMAESEHZEEF
distribution from its subsidiaries and the directors expect that RABRRKTEDIR  WEALZEEN
such profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. MetiREE -t REBREMS B AARE
Retained earnings in this respect amounted to RMB182,919,000 182,919,000 7T °
respectively.
SHARE CAPITAL 28 A
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares of the Company
ZERER PN )N
HK$ RMB’000
BT ARBT T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each % 0.01 7 T 89 3 i A%
Authorised: EE
As at 1 January 2023 and RZE_=F—HA—8K

31 December 2023 —F-=F+=-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 -
Issued: 2T
As at 1 January 2022 and R-ZZE__F£—HF—HBk

31 December 2022 —E-_—_F#+=-B=+—H 410,765,000 4,107,650 3,421
As at 1 January 2023 and RZE-_=F—HA—8Xk

31 December 2023 —E_=F+=-A=+—H 410,765,000 4,107,650 3,421
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29 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

216

(A) SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

On 4 January 2021, Green Sailing (PTC), a private trust
company was incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
and wholly owned by Honor. On 18 January 2021, a trust
was established with Green Sailing (PTC) being appointed
as the trustee, for the purpose of potential future share
incentive schemes (“Green Life Trust”). In accordance
with the trust deed of the Green Life Trust, a committee (the
“Committee”) established and authorised by the Company
will make all decisions and provide instructions and
recommendations to Green Sailing (PTC) as trustee in
relation to the Green Life Trust and the potential future
share incentive schemes. As of 31 December 2023,
23,998,345 shares were held by Green Sailing (PTC).
These shares are treasury shares owned by the Company
until they are granted to the employees.

On 18 March 2022, the Group adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Incentive Scheme”) as an incentive
to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Pursuant to the Share Incentive Scheme, existing
shares of the Company on Green Life Trust will be
transferred to relevant grantees for awarded shares
(“Awarded Shares”) until such shares are vested with the
relevant grantees in accordance with the rules of the Share
Incentive Scheme. The Awarded Shares will be awarded
with reference to the performance, operating and financial
targets and other criteria determined by the Board from
time to time.
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29 EERGETE
(A) K17 EEEETE

RZZEZ—F—AMH - hAEFERF
Green Sailing (PTC) 7 2 & iz 2 B & - it
R BER AR WA Honor 2 & A °
N_E=_—F—H+A\B KRRIKIL
—IB{5%E  Green Sailing (PTC)EZ T A
SEEA ¢ B AR R SRR 4N 89 AR 1 B2 B
=t 2/ M 5% ([ Green Life Trust ) ° R
Green Life Trust {5 5E 2 4% * &N A R X
VU EENZEe ([ZEEE®])#BA
Green Life Trust }& A] 8g 78 A< 2Kk B9 A% 17 82
Bt ERFMBEARE R =4F
+=A=-+—H  Green Sailng (PTC)#
523,998,345 % - ZE R M AN AFF
BERERFRGD BEZFEROETES
ALk o

RZZFEZZF=A+N\A8  NEEFEH
B0 BB ET & ([ s metEl) - ER
BEARTEESMELNER - BB

BRERERAEENFELCERERM
HE A WEAEEE—SEERS|E
BAL - BEBRMDEEIEE] - KRBT
ZAENZEABERIARRBRERNIE
REEE R (TSR ]) - I LA Green
Life TrustRABBAE R AT B - EEH#
R D IR IR AR 17 2D 5T 1 60 45 B 55 B 7 AR
BAERERARL - RBEROIELEZEER
TRHEEMNRE KERVBERUR
HMZETF R -



29 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(A) SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)

On 5 July 2022, the Board resolved to grant 4,960,000
Awarded Shares to 3 eligible participants according to the
rules of the Share Incentive Scheme. The vested awarded
shares were granted, and will all be transferred from Green
Life Trust to the names of those eligible participants on 5
July 2027. Share-based payment expenses at the amount
of HK$2,996,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,700,000) were recognised as staff costs and share
based compensation reserve respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted by the Company
are as follows:

20 EERHDETE (®)
(A) BREEREE (&)

RZBE-_—_F+AHH EERHRE
BRGOEZEENRE M=FEE®K
2 B8 3 % 1 4,960,000 A% 22 B B 17 © B
EEEDRMEEE  UERZT=t
£+ A 7 H f Green Life Trust 3% & :%
ZEERSHERT HE_TZ-=F
F+TZA=+—HLFE UBRHBER
T # R 3AF{E2,996,00078 7T (B E R
#AR%2,700,0007T) ER BIEREE
TR N K2 AR SR B % 145 o

ARRFE G RBRDOFBLT

Outstanding at Granted Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
Name of employees EEHSE 2023 the year 2023
R-BZ=%F R-ZB==
—HA—H +=A=+-—8
e RATE FREE 8 RATHE
Directors ==

Zhou Qin I5E) 1,480,000 - 1,480,000
Wu Xu ey 2,480,000 - 2,480,000
3,960,000 - 3,960,000

Other employees Hihfgs
In aggregate 48Tt 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
4,960,000 - 4,960,000
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29 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

218

(B) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 June 2021, the Company conditionally adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date of the Listing unless
terminated earlier by the Board or the shareholders in
general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of 400,000,000 shares,
which is the expected shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of Listing (excluding any shares which may be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option).

On 5 July 2022, the Company offered to grant an
aggregate of 6,476,600 share options to the eligible
participants with an exercise price of HK$3.02 per share.
25%, 35% and 40% of the share options granted will vest
on 5 July 20283, 5 July 2024 and 5 July 2025, respectively.
As of 31 December 2023, the share options were out-of-
the-money, as the exercise price of the share options
exceeded the average market price of the Company’ s
common stock, and no share options have been exercised.
Existing shares of the Company will be bought back by a
trustee appointed by the Company and be held on
employee share trust for the relevant grantees. As of 31
December 2023, 2,537,000 shares were held by employee
share trust (31 December 2022: 1,174,000 shares).
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20 EERHDETE (@)
(B) BERRESTE

RZTEZ—FA+HRB  XAEEAR
R R B AR st 2 ([BE AR ARG EI)) -
BRIFEERIMERRREASIRATR L
EAREL S TRIBRETESE £
HEABET 10 FHA A B R B K

REBREGTEIR TRENE BRE
BB TRITHRMHEE LIREH
7~ 15 2 48 400,000,000 % f% 15 9 10% -
BNZARA RFEEAR L B B 17k (1
B HE A R R L AR R A 1T {5 1 AT BB 1T Y
FARG) °

R-_ZE-_—_F+ARH ARAAEE
B2HEZHE L& 6,476,600 iE
B - ITEEASRI.02E T - FTiRt
BERRAERY 25% ~ 35% K 40% D Bl =&
=+ AEB - —_E-_WFE+ARH
T RAF+ARAHBEE -HE_Z
Z=F+ZA=+—H BREERE
SMREE - REAABRERNITEER BT
ARAREBROFHTE  WETERE
fEHE - ARRZEZFEABEARQRR
Bl - MEEBRGETRBEEARA
BE - R-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—8"
LA & 8 B 15 {5 5F #% 8 2,537,000 % % 153
—E—_—F+=-A=+—H:1,174,000
BRAR(R) o



29 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Movements in the number of shares options outstanding
are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2023
BE-Z=Z=

tZA=+t—BHLEE

29 EERHETE (&)
(B) HBREFE (&)
R TE B AR IS B 1

5

AT

For the year ended
31 December 2022
He—_ZT_—_—

TZA=t—RILFE

Average Number of Average Number of

exercise share exercise share

price in HKD options  price in HKD options

YT EE FHITEE

(Brx) BREZHE () MBREHE

At 1 January n—HA—H 3.02 6,274,300 - -

Granted R4 - - 3.02 6,476,600

Forfeited 28I - (722,800) - (202,300)

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 3.02 5,551,500 3.02 6,274,300
Vested and exercisable Rt+=-—A=+—H

at 31 December 5B K AT 3.02 1,387,875 3.02 =

RE R ARITEBRAENER B 8 RIT

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

following expiry date and exercise price: EELT
Share options
outstanding
31 December
Grant date & AH Expiry date  Exercise price 2023
—E-=
+=ZA=+—H
Y R AT
&% B T8 BB IR
5 July 2022 RZE-_—_F+AHH 4 July 2032 3.02 5,551,500
R-E=ZF
+AMA
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30 RESERVES 30 f#&
Share-based
Share  compensation Employee Other Statutory Translation Retained
premium reserve share trust reserves reserve reserve eamings Total
KiEE RESHEE EERBER Rt EERE ESfE REEF ag
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
sk ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2023 N-®-=E-f- 268,017 1,202 (2873 (81,880) 20467 (246) 183,567 388,344
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (134,233) (134,233)
Exchange difference arising £ESHEREEH
from translation of foreign  E 3 %%
operations - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive loss £t 2R - - - - - 1) - (91
Total comprehensive loss A2 EFELE
for the year - - - - - 1) (134,233) (134,324)
Movement of employee share  (ES R 3RS
trust account - - (1,265) - - - - (1,265)
Employes share-based ESRESH
compensation - 2,700 - - - - - 2,700
Aopropration to statutory A2 ETHA
reserve (a) - - - - 4,223 - (4,223) -
Transactions withequity ~ XA TERERA
owners of the Company X% - 2,700 (1,265) - 4,223 - (4,223) 1,435
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=ZE
+zp=t-H 268,017 399 (4,13) (61,880) 24,690 (337) 45111 255,455
At1 January 2022 R-B-Z£-f-H 268,017 - - (81,880) 15,667 (3,757) 159,947 357,994
Profit for the year FhER - - - - - - 28420 28,420
Exchange difference arising EE SN ERELMN
from translation of foreign E % 2
operations - - - - - 3511 - 3511
Total comprehensive income F A2 HH&AE
for the year - - - - - 3511 28,420 31,931
Movement of employee share {8 B &7 (E3E 2
trust account - - 2,873) - - - - (2,873)
Employee share-based ESRERM
compensation - 1,292 - - - - = 1,292
Appropriation to statutory ~ AZATEE
resenve ) - - - - 4800 - (4,800) -
Transactions with equity ~ RAATBREAA
owners of the Company X3 - 1,292 (281 - 4800 - (4,800) (1,581)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-CE
+zf=t-H 268017 1292 873 161,680 20467 46) 183,567 388,344
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30 RESERVES (Continued) 30 f##E &)

(A) STATUTORY RESERVE (A)
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC and the Company’s Articles of Association,
companies incorporated in PRC are required to transfer no
less than 10% of their profit after taxation calculated under
PRC accounting standards and regulations to the statutory
reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the fund
reaches 50% of their registered capital. The statutory
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
relevant authority, to offset previous years’ losses or to
increase the capital of respective companies.

EEME

R I% BIAERE AR R S AR I A R AR B H
MEERAR - R BEEMKIHAE
ARTLPRERZENE10% (RIEH
Eest BRI RROFE) BRERTER
BES BHEEECRAREINEME
KEB0% ° AT RERENEESFH
MBI ER - DA AN EHBEFE
MEESIEMERBHER

31 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 31 FERER
For the year ended
BZEUTHHILEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= =S
t=A=+-8 +t-A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

At 1 January Rn—H—H

(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER),#F
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) U BE B B A A (B 5E33)
Contribution from non-controlling interests IR ERTE

At 31 December R+=ZHAH=+—H

7,263 4,261
(1,029) 866
(10) 1,915

- 221
6,224 7,263
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32

33

222

DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2023. The directors of the Company have
determined that no dividend will be paid in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 16 December 2022, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Nanjing Langjun Commercial Management
Limited* (R R BAEL 5 ¥ B 12 B R A 7], the “First Vendor’,
owned as to 50% by Mr. Tian Ming), Huge Wealth Group Limited
(RHE &£ B AR A Al, the “Second Vendor”) and the Target
Company to acquire the entire equity interests of the Target
Company at a total consideration of RMB201,700,000 (the
“Acquisition”), of which RMB199,683,000 is payable to the First
Vendor, and RMB2,017,000 is payable to the Second Vendor.
Through the Acquisition, the Group will acquire the apartment
long-term lease entrusted operation and management business,
thereby expanding the businesses and service boundaries of the
Group, and adding new revenue and profit growth points, which
are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, the Group has
paid a deposit in the amount of RMB30,000,000 (the “Deposit”)
to the First Vendor as of 31 December 2022 (note 24).

On 24 February 2023, the Group, the First Vendor, the Second
Vendor and the Target Company entered into a supplemental
agreement in relation to certain amendments to the payment
arrangements of the Acquisition. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreement, the First Vendor agreed to acquire, and the Group
agreed to sell, 100% equity interests in Shanghai Liansheng
Zhichuang Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (/8B B2 Al &
H# AR ARG, a subsidiary of the Group, “Shanghai
Liansheng”) with a consideration of RMB197,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). Shanghai Liansheng has no other assets and
liabilities other than cash and cash equivalent of
RMB197,000,000. The consideration for the Acquisition is set off
at an amount equal to RMB197,000,000 against the
consideration payable by the First Vendor to the Group for the
Disposal.
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33

R E
HE—_ZT_=F+-_A=+—BItEE I
IR  ERIERRE c RRBIEERT
THEBEZZTE_=F+-_A=1+—RHLFE
RS

WEEH B AT

XBKE6t
RZZEZZF+ A+ B AEEEER
A EEIEER AR ([E—HEH] HEBA
EEHEH 0% ER)  ZEEEER AR ([
—EAD RBEBRARGIMREEERE A
WHEEZEARN2IRE BREAARK
201,700,0007T ([WEB=EE]) r EH ARK
199,683,000 TSN TE—EH - MARKE
2,017,000t EX N TE_E - BBKES
B AEEBUBREAAEZACEEEE
o mMBBARNEENER KRB ER 15
MEFHBRARFEERS FEARE RE
BREMERAZ - BRERESERS &2
—E-—F+=-A=+—H AEEEMAZF
—BH X ffEe AR 30,000,000 T ([#E£])
(Mt3E24) -

RZE_=ZF_A_+HH X~&EE F—
EF FZEBEAREERARRBBEEMNK
THME T L ARtRE -  BRERHAER
FOEEBEFRABEKEMASERELEARN
EENBAR LEMBERAERZERABRA
Bl (TERBE]) M100%KE REAAR
#197,000,000 T ([HEEHE]) - RE2 KB
©EE W ARE 197,000,000t © /20
WHEEMEERBE - B FEHNNREUE
LN AR 197,000,000 TR S EEIKIEE — &
FRHEEEEENASENNRE -



33 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33 WEMHB QT @)
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) XBE6t 2
As the First Vendor is an associate of Mr. Tian Ming and thus a HRE-—BARBALENBEA AR
connected person of the Company. Therefore, the equity transfer NEMEE T - Bt REEEREENK L
agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the Company MBRANEMAZEB TARRNBERS ' 75
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and are also subject to EETEMRUNEVAETEETHNER  AF
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ RBIRRERE BREFIAGERZ
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. TEC=F=A-F+HBT MEBRBRM
An extraordinary general meeting was held on 20 March 2023 HoWESHEEEBIRRAIEERAFTH
and the Acquisition included in the proposed resolution was duly IExCAA o
passed by the independent shareholders by way of poll.
The Disposal has been completed as of 31 March 2023. The HE-_T-_=F=A=+—H  H&E=EPR
First Vendor has returned the Deposit to the Group as of 31 EN o BE_T-_=F=A=+—8 ' F—
March 2023. After the acquisition, Beihai Langrun became a BFERAAREERELRS - NUNESIEE -
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. ERAEKR AR ARINEENB AR -
Purchase consideration BERE Beihai Langrun
bl=1:: b
RMB’000
ARET T
— Cash consideration — RafE 201,700
Total consideration HRAE 201,700
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33 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

224

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition

are as follows:

33 WEKE QT @)
X6t B

HBEFEEMERNEERARDT

Beihai Langrun

bli=3: b

RMB’000

AREFIT

Intangible assets mRARE 88,507
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSMEE 506
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 16,333
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS 3008 & H th e W 518 846
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFED 84
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIEAE (12,243)
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b fE AT 5R8 (11,345)
Contract liabilities AHEE (320)
Current income tax liabilities BUVHAFTIS T & & (969)
Total net identifiable assets acquired at fair value BAFEMEZBWEHAEEFERRE 81,399
Less: non-controlling interests B FEE R R 10

Add: goodwill (note 21) g (HeE21) 120,291
Total acquired net assets at fair value BEAVEMECEWEEEFERR 201,700

Cash outflow on acquisition: W 2SR

Total consideration settled by cash LR EENBNRE 201,700
Considerations payables (note 26) e E (M 7E26) (4,700)
Cash in the subsidiary acquired Frus skt B A RIME & (84)
196,916

The goodwill is attributable to Beihai Langrun’s profitability in EEFEBRILEABERS & &1 R 7%

apartment lease operation and management service and
synergies expected to arise after the Company’s acquisition of
the new subsidiary. None of the goodwill is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes. See note 21 above for the changes

in goodwill as a result of the acquisition.

BsE21 o
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34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

34 ReREEHR

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A REXKFBES
Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to cash BRETISBLAT (B 18),Ma FIl BRAC & S 7 A
generated from operations is as follows: BRSHOEERET

For the year ended

BEUTHAHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—g-= o

+=A=+—-8 +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (note 16)

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18)

Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 17) fi FA#E & EE#E85 (FF5E17)

Depreciation of investment properties
(note 15)

Interest expense (note 10)

Net loss on termination of leases (note 8)

Net gain on disposal of investment
properties (note 8)

Share of net profit of joint ventures (note 20)

Share of net profit of associates (note 19)

Net exchange gain/(loss) (note 8)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (note 8)

Employee share-based compensation
(note 29)

Impairment provision under expected
credit loss model (note 3.1(b))

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase in contract liabilities
Increase in restricted cash
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

BrET1S R AT (B518), 5 7 (167,266) 41,186
BT 5 IEEH 52
YE - BN RIEITE (H5E16)

6,885 4,670
Em B EHE (K5E18) 11,222 3,482

2,174 2,148
BEYEIE (HiE15)

54 195
B (HEE10) 117 76
iﬂﬁﬂﬁéﬂé;ﬂ?%ﬁ(mﬁw 65 =
HERE RN FEE (HEs)

(61) (1,607)
JE{G & &0 F I (HIFE20) (616) (51)
FEAGEEE A e F U (IFE19) (291) (766)
P& 5 ek (E518) 7#58 (Mf:E8) (48) 3,989
HEYWE - BERRENEE

/?%E (lz'ﬁ ufs) 22 35
1E B R HESREN (P 5E29)

2,700 1,292
FEHEEEEEN TRRE
B s (BIsE3.1(b)) 181,021 45,914
35,978 100,563
BEL G EE
F&@gm), wmd (42) 186
B 5 e W IE I N (34,915) (102,227)
%E\WL/T/\IE &ﬁ&ﬁ{ﬂﬁ”&ﬁ/\

(&), 8 (4,414) 16,143
A#BEEM 3,260 9,322
R HI3R & 12 0 (3,863) (420)
B 5 K& E b e R IEE N 136,036 46,987

96,062 (30,009)
REXBFBRES 132,040 70,554
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34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing

34 BEREER #®)

(B) MEZBFFELSENHR

TRFMAESEREEHAELAEN
) (BRASNIFRCES) - BER
BRELARARSREURKRER
ERNBRAKEGARERERTR

BEPMBRERE -

activities.

Amounts due

to related
parties Lease liabilities
(note 26) (note 17) Total
PEAF
B A RIE HEEE
(MizE26) (FizE17) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—H 1,201 1,072 2,273
Addition of lease liabilities FIEHEAE - 2,431 2,431
Lease cancellation HEBUH - (68) (68)
Cash flows — principal paid HenE — BENAE 77 (2,076) (1,999)
Cash flows — interest paid RERE — BENFIA - (117) (117)
Accrued interest expense EET R B - 117 117
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEZ=%F
+=—A=+—8© 1,278 1,359 2,637
As at 1 January 2022 RZZE__F—F—H 1,151 927 2,078
Addition of lease liabilities HEBEEM - 1,305 1,305
Lease cancellation HEBUH - (159) (159)
Cash flows — principal paid Reneg — BNEe 50 (1,963) (1,913)
Cash flows — interest paid RERE — BEFFIE = (76) (76)
Increase from acquisition of Uk B BT B8 2 R) 4 0
subsidiaries - 962 962
Accrued interest expense FEET A BRI - 76 76
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F
+=—A=+—8H 1,201 1,072 2,273
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35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 35 BEELTERERS
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party balances and transactions BRéra M BmRSITHENZS@E S 4
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the BERR G AEEBBETIEREHRRER
Group had the following significant balances and transactions: 2

(A) OTHER RECEIVABLES (A) HibpEWERE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E_-= —_E-
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Amounts due from related parties (i) A LSz (2 Bt 75 KA (i)
— Fellow subsidiaries — REKBRA 2,881 2,076
— Joint ventures and associates of — RERERBRENEE R
the ultimate controlling shareholder NEt &N T 2,699 4,450
5,580 6,526
Deposits with related parties (i) ER B Bk 77 B R R 1% 2 (i)
— Fellow subsidiaries (iii) — [RI M 2 = (i) 22,257 43,000
— Joint ventures and associates of — REERRROEERE
the ultimate controlling shareholder NG 111,403 119,997
133,660 162,997
Returnable earnest money (note 24) REHE S (HiE24)
— Joint ventures and associates of — REERKRERNEEhE
the ultimate controlling shareholder PN E/N] - 30,000
- 30,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(A) OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i) As of 31 December 2023, current amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates
of the ultimate controlling shareholder are interest-
free.

(i)  Deposits with related parties represent security
deposits paid in connection with the exclusive sales
agency agreements entered between the Group and
fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates
of the ultimate controlling shareholder, which are
refundable after the sales of all properties subject to
such agreements or the expiry of the term of the such
agreements, whichever is earlier.

@iy As of 31 December 2023, deposits with related
parties amounting to RMB13,660,000 was overdue
according to the exclusive sales agency agreements
entered between the Group and the fellow subsidiary.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties
approximate their fair values.

(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

35 EEEERRERS &)

(A) EfthEWRE (&)
) BE_FE-_=Ft+-_HA=+—8H"
7N HA FE UL [R) 2 P B & B A Je &R 4%
ERBERNGEEERBE QT
REARRE -

(i) EERAMTAEREMESRENATE
Ko 5] 3 B 188 2 ) B A AR 4 B R
GORo R Y Y RN VA -
RHEREWBZNORER

ARREZEHHELERNBYE
DR RNk EI’JHJ%IZEJ:/% (A&RFH
) BIR

iy RZEZ=F+=—A=+—H"
BEANEEER RN E QAL

B REERIE R S
BRANIES AR 13,660,0007C

B e

FE U BB 75 SRR RO AR E B B E

Eo

AFER

(B) EEAMGRE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-_F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETF T
— Joint ventures and associates of — REERBRROGERE
the ultimate controlling shareholder PN EENE] 768 676
— Fellow subsidiaries — RARWEBAA 510 525
1,278 1,201

All amounts due to related parties are non-trade in nature,
unsecured and interest-free.
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35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES

AL ERRERS (&)
(C) BESEWEE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E=-= B F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

— Fellow subsidiaries
— Joint ventures and associates of
the ultimate controlling shareholder

(D) CONTRACT LIABILITIES

— REKBAR
— RREBRBRRNE

125,131 115,232
BhE

73,071 66,579

198,202 181,811

(D) EWAE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-
t=A=+t-B +-A=+-~H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

— Fellow subsidiaries
— Joint ventures and associates of
the ultimate controlling shareholder

Contract liabilities from fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures
and associates of the ultimate controlling shareholder are

trade in nature.

— RARNBATR

— REEEBRRNE

16 395
1,488 18
1,504 413

K B[R ZH B X B DA R iR AR PR AR AR R A9
BECEEBERTNAGNEERES
HE -
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35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 35 BHMAERERS (#)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (E) BHAXS
(i)  Funding with related parties (i) HHEBLESHER

For the year ended
31 December 2022
BHE_T__F+_-_A=+—H

IEFE
Funding Repayment of
to related funding to
parties  related parties
Investing Investing
=)
[m B 7 & HEER
K& BE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBTT

Fellow subsidiaries GESL=- NG 45,077 (46,259)

Joint ventures and associates of BRIERBERNEERE
the ultimate controlling shareholder AT 268,489 (161,519
313,566 (207,778)

For the year ended
31 December 2022
BE_Z-__F+-A=+—H
IEFEE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties  related parties

Financing Financing
KB B
BPTERIE  mEEN T B
AE &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBTT

Fellow subsidiaries =N 2 =

Joint ventures and associates of the RISERBEROEGEDE
ultimate controlling shareholder AT 85 (37)
87 (37)
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35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 35 EEEERRRS &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (E) BBEARZ (&)
()  Funding with related parties (Continued) () EBIFBLELERE)

For the year ended
31 December 2023
BE-E-_=f+=-H=+—H

LHFE
Repayment of
Funding to funding to
related parties related parties
Investing Investing
) BA B 75
MBS HE HEER
RE RE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®T

Fellow subsidiaries GEShy=NG 111,421 151,766

Joint ventures and associates of REERR R G &%
the ultimate controlling shareholder P8 El/NE] 9,402 29,340
120,823 181,106

For the year ended
31 December 2023
BE-E-_=f+=A=+—H
LFE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties

Financing Financing
REBABT
MAEHIE [REBELTENR
& mE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR®T

Fellow subsidiaries GES N PNE 8 23

Joint ventures and associates of RISIERBEROEGEhE
the ultimate controlling shareholder AT 132 40
140 63
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z—E —=F+_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

35 EEEERRERS &)

(E) BMAXZ (&)

(i) Management services, other income and (i) EERY - BMRARBKEX
finance cost
For the year ended
BEUTHEHILEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= T
+=ZA=+—H +Z—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART ARET T
Value-added services income to BRERBRRAR R B A
non-property owners from fellow M IESE F IR AL {EHW%
subsidiaries of the ultimate A
controlling shareholder 19,833 48,071
Value-added services income to BRERERBRRNEGEEER
non-property owners from joint B N RIMFEE F IR
ventures and associates of 3B AR 5 A
the ultimate controlling shareholder 56,561 93,091
Property management services income Sz A& RE AR R AR R E A
from fellow subsidiaries of RHEMEE i@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ&)\
the ultimate controlling shareholder 4,563 11,538
Property management services income BIERBRRNEERER
from joint ventures and associates of Hﬁﬁ ENARMENYEEE
the ultimate controlling shareholder Az 7 U A 9,485 9,181
Community value-added services BAAERBRAR R HEA
income from fellow subsidiaries of 1R 4t [ 3 ﬁﬁlﬁ%”ﬁl?\
the ultimate controlling shareholder 42 44
Community value-added services income  FxARERE AR & B D E K
from joint ventures and associates of B N AR Rt (R 1B (E
the ultimate controlling shareholder BR S UL A 1,538 167
Rent expense from fellow subsidiaries KB LR AR R B[R R
of the ultimate controlling shareholder Uy i e - 1,105
Apartment lease operation and BEERBRRARRMEA
management services income from RENABLERE i@ﬁlﬁ'&
fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate WA
controlling shareholder 22,235 -
Apartment lease operation and AR IR A& & 1b 3 S B
management services income from VNG T RENABEERE
joint ventures and associates of B R A
the ultimate controlling shareholder 493 =
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35 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii)

Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

These related party transactions were conducted in
accordance with terms as agreed between the
respective related parties and the Group. The
Directors have confirmed that all the aforementioned
related party transactions during the years ended
December 2023 and 2022 were conducted in the
ordinary course of business.

(F) Included in employee benefit expenses are key management

personnel compensations which comprises the following

35 EEEERRRS &)

(E) BBtARS (&)

(i) EERY - EHMKAREEKEK
(%)
ZERBM AR ZBES B ]
)77 BN & B 1 FE M IR REAT ©
ETERR BE_ZE-_=FK
R CEFTZAEFERM LM
FIEBB AR 2N ATELR
EHHET

(F) SARBEFBEEIANIEEBARH
B B4E A THERI -

categories:
For the year ended
BEUTHHIEEE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=5F —EF-=
+=BA=+—-H +=ZRA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx ARETFIT
Short term employee benefits EHEERT 7,273 8,194
Contributions to retirement RIREFIF 2R
benefits schemes 305 280
7,578 8,474
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES
(A) COMMITMENTS

@

(ii)

234

Operating lease arrangements

The Group — As lessee

The Group leases various offices under non-
cancellable operating leases expiring within 6 months
to three years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal,
the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see note 17 for further information.

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases (short-term or low-value lease)
contracted for at the end of the reporting period but
not recognised in the financial statements are as

(A) 7&iE

M

36 RERIREE

REHEZH

AEE — (ERAHEA
AEEREFAIRBELEHEER
RERARIE MRANEAZE
=F-REHEBRRT— BFF
BERERREEEN EE&
B - R EHERER A EX A

AEEERZERE EHMREE
ERERIN) BRERAREE  H
EMBFLHME7 -

RmEHRETHERR B H
RERNTARELEEE (Y
SEEEHEHE) B TOKEHEN
RN

follows:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—E-= —_E-—
+=—A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Within 1 year 1FR 1,003 1,147

The Group — As lessor
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did
not have any material lease receivables.

Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did
not have any material capital commitments.
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36

37

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

(B) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not
have any outstanding guarantees or other material
contingent liabilities.

36 RERIAREE#)

(B)

RAREE
n=

T=FER-FE=_F+=A
=+—8B AEBTEITMKREEER
HEMBEAKAEE -

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37 FEMBELA
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has direct and indirect R-EBE-_=F+_-_F=+—H AEEEE
interests in the following subsidiaries. Unless otherwise stated, NEERTINB AR EAEZ - BB AT
the proportion of ownership interests held equals to the voting BSN TS E RO ER AN EE T
rights held by the Group. BB -
Place of incorporation/ Directly
establishment and Date of incorporation/ owned or Principal
Company name operations establishment Kind of legal entity Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  activities
AL/ AL/ ERRE
ARER RUREEHS RIAH EERBRH Bl R+=B=+-B EEER TEEH
2022 202
I
Landsea Greeniive Intemational Company Limited BvI 23 October 2019 Limited liability company 50,000 shares of US$0 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
RERAES —E-hEtA=1=A ARAA 50000 EX RERR
SREEETHRE
Southern Land Interational Company Limited BVI 7 November 2019 Limited fiability company 50,000 shares of USS0 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
ABRUHE “2-NET-AEA BRAA 50,000 B REER
SREEETHRG
Dream Seeker Intenational Limited BVI 22 December 2022 Limited fiability company 50,000 shares of US$1 each 100 100 Indrect Investment holding
EERAES a3 BRAF 50,0008 53 RAER
tZA=tzA BREE1XTHRN
Landsea Green Life Holdings Company Limited Hong Kong 5 November 2019 Limited liability company 1 share of HKS1 100 100 Indrect Investment holding
&% Z2-NET-RER  BRAA 1REE1ETHRG i3 REER
Southem City Holdings Company Limited Hong Kong 21 November 2019 Limited liability company 1 share of HKS1 100 100 Indrect Investment holding
&% ZZ-nE ERAR 1REE1ETHRA i3 KRR
+-A=1-H
Landking Life Service Company Limited* Hong Kong 13 December 2021 Limited fiability company 1 share of HK$1 100 100 Indlrect Property management services
HELERBARAR & “2--F+-R+=R ERAA 1REE1ETHRA i NEERRHE
Nanjing Landsea Property Management Co., Ltd. * PRC 12 January 2006 Limited fiability company RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
BRRFERARA e “ZFRF-AtCA  BRAA AR 100000,0007C i3 NEERRE
Anhui Xindi Ruiyi Property Senvice Co., Ltd. * PRC 13 July 2010 Limited fiability company RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indrect Property management senvices
REISHENEREARAA hE ZE-3EtATZR  ARAA ARH10,000,00070 3 NEERRIE

BREBEFRBERARD/ —FT-_=F4%R
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= — | =
37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 TEMB AR &)

Place of incorporation/ Directly

establishment and Date of incorporation/ owned or Principal
Company name operations establishment Kind of legal entity Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  activities

HRRL/ HAL/ ERER
ARER RUREEHS HIAH EERRER i) R+=A=+-B SEEEE IERH

2022 2023
St S
Nanjing Landsea Sports and Cultural Development PRC 12 July 2011 Limited fiability company RMB3,500,000 100 100 Indrect Fitness service
Co,, Ltd.*

ARARBELERARAA i “B—%tAt-H ARAA ARH35000007 53 BHRE
Nanjing Landsea Shenlu Property Management Co,, Ltd. *  PRC 15 December 2014 Limited liability company RMB21,600,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
ARRRENEERARAA i “2-ME+-ATRA ARAA ARH21,6000007 53 NEEERH
Nanjing Mejjia Environment Engineering Co., Ltd. * PRC 16 March 2018 Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Engineering services
AREFERIRARLR i “B-\§ZAtRE  ARAA ARH5,0000007 53 TiEfkH
Nanjing Langtuo Property Management Co., Ltd. * PRC 20 November 2019 Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Investment holding
ARRNFERARAR i Z2-Ft-AZTB ARAA ARH5,0000007 53 RERR
Langhong (Nanjing) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. © ~ PRC 18 December 2019 Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indrect Investment holding
% (AR CXERERAA i ZE-AFTZATAR ARAA AR 100000007 53 RERR
Landsea Property Management (Xuzhou) Co., Lid.* PRC 16 January 2020 Limited fiability company RMB2,000,000 51 51 Indrect Property management senvices
RRENRER (BN ERAA HE “BoRE-AtRH ARAA AR 2,000,007 i3 NEERRE
Suzhou Huiyaju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Lid. * PRC 4 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
HNERERDEBLERAA HE Z22FFZRmA BRAA AR %1,000,0007 i3 FHESRRHE
Hangzhou Hulln Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Lid. *  PRC 5 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
MNESERRHESLERAR HE ZZ-TEZRRA BRAA AR %1,000,0007 i3 FHESRRHE
Changzhou Huiin Yiju Real Estate Agency Co., Ltd. * PRC 16 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
FNTESRRRESRERAR HE “RoRESATAE ARAA AR %1,000,0007 i3 FHESRRHE
Nanjing Hulin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co,, Ltd. * PRC 17 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
HREBERRHEEZARAA i BRAR ARE1,0000007 Bk FHELLRE
Chengdu Huilin Yilu Real Estate Brokerage Co,, Ltd. * PRC 20 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
RAEBERRHERLARAR i ZE-TFSACtE ARATA ARE1,0000007 Bk FHELLRE
Shanghai Hulin Yiju Real Estate Agency Co., Ltd. * PRC 24 March 2020 Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
REBEERHESLERAR HE Z22REZRCTMA BRAA ARES,000,0007C i3 FHESRRHE
Wuxi Hulin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. * PRC 17 Apri 2020 Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
BSENEERNERLERAA HE ZZ2REMATERE BRAA AR 1,000,000 i3 FHESRRH
Shanghai Langxing Business Management Co., Ltd. * PRC 30 Apri 2020 Limited fiability company RMB3,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Real estate brokerage services
EERAERERARAR HE ZZ-TEMAZTA  ARAA AR %3,000,0007C i3 FHESRRH
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37 EEMBE AT (®)

Place of incorporation/ Directly

establishment and Date of incorporation/ owned or Principal
Company name operations establishment Kind of legal entity Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  activities

HRRL/ HhRL/ ERHE
ARER RUREEHS HIRH HERBEH i) R+=B=+-B SHERE IERH

2022 2023
Sl k- St 3
Jiangsu Landsea Sea Lake Property PRC 10 May 2020 Limited fiability company RMB10,000,000 40 40 Indirect Property management services
Management Co., Ltd. **
IEF N EERERAT il “RoRERATE ARAA ARE10,0000007 Bk NEEERH
Wuhan Huixianju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. * PRC 3July 2020 Limited iability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate brokerage services
REERERHERLARAR il “Z-TEEA=A ERAR AR 1,000,000 3 EHESRRS
Sichuan Langshang Property Management Co., Ltd." PRC 9July 2020 Limited iability company RMB1,000,000 50 50 Indirect Property management services
BB n#ERERAR il ZECZFLAAR O ARAA ARE1,0000007 Bk NEEERH
Guangxi Landsea Shenlu Information Technology PRC 29 September 2020 Limited iability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Management consulting senvice
Consutting Senvice Co., Ltd. *
REMA AR ESRTAARBERAR ik ZECREAACTIE ARAA ARH5,00000070 3 EREARE
Guangxi Landsea Meiu Information Consultancy Co., Ltd."  PRC 30 September 2020 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Management consulting sevice
EEARERESAWARAA HH “Z2EFAASTR BRAA ARH5,0000007 3 EREARE
Shanghai Shilan Cutture Communications Co., Ltd. * PRC 2 February 2021 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Advertising senvice
HEREXERARAT HH “E--%-RZH BRAR AR5,000,000 7 i EERE
Anju Landsea Property Senvice (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. * PRC 22 April 2021 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 51 51 Indirect Property management services
REBFIERBE BN ERAT e “E--—EMA-+-0 ARAA ARH5,0000007 3 NEERRY
Anhui Xindi Zhihui City Technology Senice Co., Ltd. * PRC 21 July 2021 Limited fiability company RMB10,000,000 51 51 Indirect Management consulting sevice
REMEEA T RREARAA HE “Z--FtA=1-R BRAA AB#10000,0007 3 BREARE
Xi"an Langze Property Management Co, Ltd. * PRC 23 July 2021 Limited fiability company RMB1,000,000 51 51 Indirect Property management services
BRAENFERARAA e “E--E+AC+=H ARAA AB1,000,000 7 i EE
Anhui Weijia Commercial Operation Co., Ltd. * PRC 29 September 2021 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
ZHRERZELERLT HE “Z--FAAZTAR BRAA ARH5,0000007 3 NEERRY
Mianyang Langyue Property Management Co., Ltd. * PRC 20 December 2021 Limited fiability company RMB1,000,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
BERHNZERERAR HE “Z--F+ZAZ1R BRAA ARH1,0000007 3 NEERRY
Anhui Langrui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. * PRC 24 December 2021 Limited fiability company RMB17,600,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
REPHOFERARAT HE 5% BRAA AR 17,600,007 3 RERER
tZA=tmA

Suzhou Lvteng Health Technology Co., Ltd. * PRC 18 February 2022 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Advertising senvice
FNTRERRHAARAA e Z2ZZFZATNE ERAA AEH5,00000070 3 BERH
Anhui Wejjia Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. * PRC 17 June 2022 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Real estate hrokerage services
RHEEREELARAT lEd ZRoCERATEE ARAA AEH5,00000070 53 BHERLRR
Anhui Wejjia Parking Lot Management Senvice Co,, Ltd.*  PRC 21 June 2022 Limited fiability company RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Property management services
RHREERESERRBEARAA e —E--EXAZT-B BRAA AEH5,00000070 53 NEERRH

BREBEFRBERARD/ —FT-_=F4%R
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37 EEME AT (®)

Place of incorporation/ Directly

establishment and Date of incorporation/ owned or Principal
Company name operations establishment Kind of legal entity Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  activities

HRRL/ R/ ERER
ARER RUREEHS HIRH EERRER i) R+=A=+-A SEEEE IERH

2022 2023
St k- St 3
Anhui Wejjia Advertising Media Co., Ltd. * PRC 21 June 2022 Limited fiability company RMBS5,000,000 100 100 Indrect Advertising senvice
RHkRESERARLA HE Z2--#7A+-B ARAA ABRH5,00000070 53 BEMRH
Behhal Langrun Commercial Management Limited * PRC 2 June 2021 Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 100 Indrect Property management services
TEREEZERARAR HE Z3--55RZR  BRAA AB#10,000,0007 53 NEERRH
Beihal Langxin Commercial Management Limited * PRC 7 December 2022 Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 100 Indrect Property management services
FENEEFERERAR HE ZRoCETZAYE O ARAA AB#10,000,0007 53 NEERRH
Suzhou Langcan Housing Leasing Co, Ltd. * PRC 24 November 2021 Limited liability company RMB500,000 - 100 Indrect Property management services
FNBERRERRAT HE 22514 BRAR ARB50000070 53 NEERRH
Z1mA
Suzhou Langyiju Commercial Management Senvice PRC 25 Noverber 2021 Limited liability company RMB500,000 = 81 Indirect Property management services
Co, Ltd.*
FNMBERZERREARAR HE ZEE1-8 BRAT ARH500,0007 3 NEERRE
3R

Anhui Jinyu Mantang Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. "~ PRC 28 February 2023 Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 - 100 Indrect Real estate hrokerage services
RHCERZRHELLARAT HE —E-£-A-f\B ARAA AERH5,00000070 53 EHERLRR
Notes: B 5L

Hox

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort by the
management of the Group in translating their Chinese names as they
do not have an official English name.

In accordance with the cooperation agreement with the co-developers
and the articles of association of this company, the Group has
controlling power in the shareholders’ meeting and board of directors’
meeting in making decision on the operational and financial activities.
Accordingly, the Group has exposure or rights to variable returns from
its involvement with this company, and has the ability to affect those
returns through its voting position and the existing rights to direct the
relevant activities. Thus this company is accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Group.
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

38 ARAREERBERRFABEE

ARREEEEBR

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A TRIRE 37,254 36,722
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments H b fE W IE -
and deposits ENRIER RS 262,760 261,905
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIREEEY 1,208 2,689
263,968 264,594
Total assets EEHT 301,222 301,316
Current liabilities REBEaE
Other payables H b S 5E 15,888 11,198
Equity =
Share capital and premium AR R (B 3,421 3,421
Reserves s @) 281,913 286,697
Total equity REHBE 285,334 290,118
Total liabilities and equity EERERETE 301,222 301,316

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board

on 28 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf.

Director

EF

ARAEERBRECR T _MF=A
“TN\BEEZRME  YERA/RE -

Director

EF

MRReEERBERAR/ T _=FFH
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(A) ARFRFEES

38 APAEEEBRRHERE &)

Share-based
Share  compensation Employee Other Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve share trust reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE RESMEE EERGER Efofit EifiE i ER 3t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2023 W=E-=f£-f-H 271,008 1,292 (2873) 35,469 19,325 (37,524) 286,697
Exchange difference arising from A8 S EHE£H)
tranglation of foreign operation  EXZ % - - - - 4,155 - 4,155
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - (10,874) (10,374)
Total comprehensiveloss ~ £A2EFELE
for the year - - - - 4,155 (10,374) (6,219)
Movement of employee share BRI E
trust account 29 - - (1,265) - - - (1,265)
Employee share-based EERERH
compensation 29 - 2,700 - - - - 2,700
Subtotal of transaction with ERERZ /it
shareholders - 2,700 (1,265) - - - 1,435
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE
+2p=+-H 271,008 3092 8,139 35,469 23,480 (47,898) 21,013
At1 January 2022 R-B-Z5-f-H 271,008 - - 35,469 (4118 (24,783) 271,676
Exchange difference arsing from /590 ERE LS
tranglation of oreign operation X Z 5 - - - - 23,443 - 23,443
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - (12,741) (12,741)
Total comprehensive income A2 E W4 E
for the year - - - - 23,443 (12,741) 10,702
Movement of employee share ~ EER(TEFEES
trust account 29 - - (2,873 - - - (2,873
Employes share-based EERERH
compensation 29 - 1,22 - - - - 1,202
Subtotal of transaction with  ERRRH /it
shareholders - 1,292 (2,873 - - - (1,581)
At 31 December 2022 R=Bzzf
+-A=1-8 271,008 1,292 (2,873 36,469 19,326 (37,524) 286,697
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of other potential material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group, consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

39.1 SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

39.2 ASSOCIATES
Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 39.4 below), after initially being recognised at cost.

39 HttBEE AT HERE

M TSI B AR BT B B TS SRR B BT SR A A
HMEEERGABR -BREZBHA B
AZEBRENAEIN = MFREERER -
MBRER BB ARNR B KB B AR AR
BmaR -

39.1 KB &l

MBAR AREBZEHHAEEE (R
EREBEER) HMAEEAEXLEH
SEE SRS E RN R -
BA I EBEERNENYERED
W RIS B Y % R R A o Y
BATGEHEEBEAEE Y ARER
ANE - BiEslERIE Y ARIUESA
N

NAERS EHEEBRFERZH
ARBRERSHTHE BEXZBEER
EAMEEEELTRE TRIRER
BRI THE - MBARNETHRE
R EREHE - AR BN KB
R BRRES — 2 -

Y /B8 X BB K48 A e P WO IR AR R
DHREREERARE  HAa2ERE
REGERREHRPEBIIR

39.2 & N A
MERNTAASEHEEEATE NN
EIGIE RN EERE - %
BRBERAEEFA20%ZE50%1%
T o R E QR RIRE V) P IRA AR
RENERSFEAR (BT XK
39.4) °
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

242

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.3 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 39.4 below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheets.

39.4 EQUITY ACCOUNTING

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 39.12.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec)
39.5 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN

30 HMEEERSHEEEE &)

OS5 HREFIESEHNMNE L FHE

SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Group.

39.6 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations not under common control
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations not under common control,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

244

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
39.6 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred;

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity;

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
39.6 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

39.7 SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

39.8 SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

246

(a)

(b)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, while the Company’s functional currency is
HKS.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within “other (losses)/gains — net”.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec)
39.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued)

HEMEBEEEARSTTHRERE 2
39.9 MR E ()

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

39.10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec)
39.10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 39.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised as “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

39.11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, representing properties held for
leases, are held for rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and are not occupied by the Group. The Group
measured its investment properties at cost, including
related transaction costs. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their
estimated useful lives in 20-40 years.

39.12IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

39.13INVENTORIES

Inventories are assets which are in the form of materials or
supplies to be consumed in the rendering of services. Inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.14 FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCI), or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.14 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

250

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments
at amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in “other income” using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in “other (losses)/gains— net”,
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.14 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for
further details.

39.15 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in consolidated balance sheets when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and
other receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See note 39.14 and note 3.1(b) for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade and
other receivables and a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

39.17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

39.18 SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30 HMEEERSHEEEE &)

39.19 B 5 & HAth B {4 7R IR

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

39.20 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the country
where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current income tax also includes PRC land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

254

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.20 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.20 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

30 HMEEERSHEEEE &)

39.20 ENHA R IESE FR S 8% (&)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

39.21 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to
employees via the share option scheme and share incentive
scheme. Information relating to the share-based payment
is set out in note 29.

The Group operates above schemes and plans to
recognise the contributions by employees. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
options and restricted shares is recognised as employee
benefit expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the value of the options and
restricted shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,

which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.21 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and restricted shares that are
expected to be vested. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to other reserves.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes of
awarding shares to eligible employees under share
incentive scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s cash
contributions and recorded as contributions to employee
share trusts, an equity component. The administrator of the
employee share trust buys the Company’s shares in the
open market for award to employees.

39.22 PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.23INTEREST INCOME

HBEEASTHBREBRE @)

39.23 R 2 W A

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of “other income”.

Interest income is presented as “finance income” where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

39.24 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate.

39.25 LEASES

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T —_=F+—_A=+—HIFE

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
39.25 LEASES (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL 39 HtBEE XS BERBE ()
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.25 LEASES (Continued) 30.25HE (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the EREEERKATTE - BREUTEE:

following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability e THEBGEMVFHESE

e any lease payments made at or before the e RFE B ISk AR AT VE R £ A
commencement date less any lease incentives EMZ RIS NRNHEEE
received =

e anyinitial direct costs, and o  (ERIVIMEEKE : K&

e restoration costs. o {BIERKA o

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the EAEEE—RREEREAFHAIME

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a EFH(UAREERE) NEGENE -

straight-line basis.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a REASBEEATLBANKLCEHENE
lessor is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis SWAREBHRAEFENIBRER -
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining RERKEEHEREENIBEZERA
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the MABEEENREE  WHRHEBHNE
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease HEERAERNEEERAEMEZ - &
term on the same basis as rental income. The respective HEEEERAMHEFAEEGER -

leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

39.26 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION 39.26 X B 7k
Dividend distribution to the owners of the Company is RARNRER AD RN KBERSER
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s AEIREKES (WEA) #EN RN
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are RASE RARRRWNMERENER A
approved by the shareholders or directors, which aE-

applicable, of the Company.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB RE

TABLE 1: OVERALL PERFORMANCE

"IE—  HERR

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E-=F ZE--f T ZZZTF ZIT—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT AREBTT AREBETT ARETT

Income WA 931,275 889,454 737,218 600,906 432,789
Growth rate BREXR 4.7% 20.6% 22.7% 38.8%

Gross profit EH 145,377 108,208 186,073 160,730 101,100
Growth rate ERE -26.8% 6.5% 15.8% 59.0%

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),&F -135,262 29,286 58,342 65,560 34,307
Growth rate HRE -565.5% -49.8% -11.0% 91.1%

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners A BB A &L

of the parent (B518),/ & -134,233 28,420 58,331 65,560 34,005
Growth rate HRE -572.3% -51.3% -11.0% 92.8%

Gross profit margin EF=E 15.6% 22.3% 25.2% 26.7% 23.4%

Net (loss)/profit margin F (E18),/FHx -14.5% 3.3% 7.9% 10.9% 7.9%
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TABLE 2: RESULTS BY BUSINESS LINE

RIEZ  REBREAIWEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
T2z T ZT-—F ZT-THF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Income from property T B RISBA
management 703,152 621,786 469,911 409,829 296,971
Growth rate R 13.0% 32.3% 14.7% 38.0%
Income from community value- R E R WA
added services 86,315 80,208 67,085 50,167 37,562
Growth rate R 7.5% 19.4% 33.7% 33.6%
Income from value-added FEEFEZERBLA
services to non-property 106,182 187,460 200,222 140,910 98,256
Growth rate BRE -43.3% -6.5% 421% 43.4%
Income from apartment operation A B &% & & B 1B RIS KA
and management 35,626 - - - -
Growth rate #RE - - - - -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB RE

TABLE 3: SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET

RIE= EEEERREE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F ZE--f ZE-—% ZZTZTF ZIT—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 215,188 309,095 215,426 115,611 58,343
Total current assets MEEERE 691,267 897,207 809,671 592,587 956,508
Total assets BEBE 1,087,827 1,060,977 847,982 615,911 982,527
Contract liabilities EHEE 210,873 207,293 160,280 146,663 113,133
Trade and other payables 25 REMENFIE 564,046 411,824 302,284 310,816 315,971
Total liabilities BEBE 822,727 661,949 482,306 487,528 919,770
Total assets BERE 1,087,827 1,060,977 847,982 615,911 982,527
Current ratio TREN L & 0.9 1.4 1.7 1.2 1.8
TABLE 4: SUMMARY OF STATEMENTOFCASH XR&EN  RERERFTE
FLOWS
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —ET-— B ZTE-_THE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Net cash (used in)/from meEs (FrA),/ iBRE
operations R 120,024 53,902 (1,084) 92,921 117,246
Net cash (used in)/from investing % &%) (Fr ),/ FiisER 4
activities FEE (141,983) (134,710) (96,625) 119,629 733,266
Net cash (used in)/from financing ~ E& &%) (Fr /) Fii5H &
activities R (3,381) (4,641) 228,103 (554,641) (278,463)
Net (decrease)/increase in RBeRREEEY
cash and cash equivalents CR ),/ hnFsE (25,340) (85,449) 130,394 (342,091) 572,049
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 332,783 358,166 444,093 314,265 656,290
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TABLE 5: DETAILS OF INCOME FROM
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

RIEE YEEERBWABHA

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—B-z=f T T —E_TF _—FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT AR%®TRT ARETR
By property types RYEFERE S
Residential properties EEYE 614,102 536,607 413,079 358,819 257,054
Commercial and office buildings %R EFE « B H RS
as well as urban service 89,050 85,179 56,832 51,010 39,917
By property developer BY¥HRERESD
Properties developed by PSR ERRENDE
Landsea Green Management 217,023 223,855 215,984 211,743 188,622
Properties developed by joint BRseEE e E ARH
ventures and associates of ey ES
Landsea Green Management 99,646 93,303 75,2883 41,519 26,285
Properties receiving project ARG EEERENME
management services from
Landsea Green Management 39,293 38,989 31,522 24,759 22,203
Properties developed by BYE=FHRBENYE
independent third-party 347,190 265,639 147,122 131,808 64,861
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVRF1E

Attributable

Nature of interest of
Location property the Group Lease term
it MEMLE AEEELER FH
15 underground parking spaces in Landsea Parking space 100% Medium-term lease
International District
No. 259, Changjiang Middle Road
(RITHE)
Zhonglou District
Changzhou City
Jiangsu Province
LERE ==X |v2 100% H ERFE A
=Yl

EIZERRITHRE 250 9%
PREBERE M T 15 EE A
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